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City ofF RicHmono

OFFICE OF THE MAvYOR

November 10, 2005

Members of the Governing Council, and the Citizens of the City of Richmond, Virginia

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Richmond, Virginia (City) for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2005 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City’s management. To the
best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner
designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds of the City. All
disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the City’s financial activities have been
included.

The financial statements included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) have been prepared
in conformance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) for
governmental units as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The public accounting
firm of KPMG LLP has audited the financial statements contained in this report. Their auditors' report precedes the
basic financial statements. The unqualified auditors' report expresses their opinion that the City's basic financial
statements are fairly presented in all material respects in accordance with GAAP.

The report is presented in three sections: Introductory, Financial, and Statistical.

The Introductory Section, which is unaudited, acquaints the reader with the City, the nature and scope of
services provided, economic forecasts and a discussion of major initiatives, and the organizational structure of the
government.

The Financial Section contains the public accounting firm's report, the City's Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A), basic financial statements, required supplementary information (which is unaudited) and
supplemental combining fund financial statements (which are audited in relation to the basic financial statements taken
as a whole).

The Statistical Section, which is unaudited, contains selected financial and other statistical data covering
multiple fiscal years. This information reflects the demographic and economic data, financial trends, and the fiscal
capacity of the City.

GAAP requires management to provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the
basic financial statements in the form of MD&A. This letter of transmittal is designed to compliment MD&A and
should be read in conjunction with it. The City’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the
independent auditors.

Overview of the City

The City of Richmond is a municipal corporation of the Commonwealth of Virginia and is the state capital.
The City of Richmond was incorporated in 1782. It currently occupies 62.55 square miles and serves a population
of 192,494 as of 2004. As a full service independent city, it is autonomous of any county or other political
subdivision. Its citizens are not subject to taxation by any county or independent school district for any purpose.
The City of Richmond is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal property located within its
boundaries. The City provides a full range of services. These services include police and fire protection, sanitation
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services, the construction and maintenance of highways, streets and infrastructure, recreational activities and cultural
events. In addition to general government activities, the City provides gas, water and wastewater services to its
citizens as well as sireet lighting service.

At June 30, 2005 the City government was organized under the Mayoral-Council form of government with
the City Council (Council) setting policies for the administration of the City. Under the Mayoral form of
government, the Mayor serves as the Chief Executive Officer of the City and is responsible for the proper
administration of City government. Former Virginia Governor L. Douglas Wilder was elected at large for a four-
year term in November 2004. The Mayor appoints a Chief Administrative Officer, subject to the consent of a
majority of the members of Council. The Chief Administrative Officer serves at the pleasure of the Mayor, carries
out the City Council’s policies, directs daily operations and appoints administrative department heads as well as
other officers and employees of the administration. The Council is composed of nine members elected from single
member districts. The President of Council and the Vice-President are selected by a majority vote of its members
every two years. The Council appoints the City Assessor, the City Internal Auditor, and the City Attomey, who is
the legal advisor to the Council, the City administration, boards, commissions and agencies of the City. The Council
has the right to remove those agency heads and employees appointed by Council.

The financial reporting entity includes all funds of the primary government, as well as all of its component
units. Component units are legally separate entities for which the primary government is financially accountable.
Discretely presented component units are reported as a separate column in the government-wide financial statements
to emphasize that they are legally separate from the primary government and to differentiate their financial position,
results of operations and cash flows from those of the primary government. The City’s discretely presented
component units are the Scheol Board of the City of Richmond (School Board), Richmond Ambulance Authority,
Hospital Authority of Richmond, Port of Richmond Commission, Richmond Redevelopment and Housing
Authority, Richmond Behavioral Health Authority, and the Broad Street Community Development Authority.

Local Economy

Richmond is the capital of Virginia and is located in the central part of the state. Located halfway between
Boston and Miami, Richmond is ideally situated in the focal point of the economic corrider of the east coast.
During fiscal year 2005, the City faced both opportunities and challenges. By virtue of its size, location, economy
and importance to the Commonwezlth, the City has diverse capital needs in areas including infrastructure, buildings,
schools, economic development and services. The economy and populace of the City provide a unique foundation
for its financial stability. Richmond has a thriving and diverse economic base with manufacturing, retail, services,
distribution, banking, and state government comprising the major components of economic activity within the City.
Now regarded as an industrial and financial center, the City is emerging into the country’s newest high-technology
location. The array of industries includes semiconductor, biotechnology, pharmaceutical, food processing and
distribution.

The City has a variety of economic development initiatives and projects that will serve to bolster the tax
base and overall financial strength of the City. The unique presence of the State Capitol, the Commonwealth’s main
state offices, Virginia Commonwealth University, Virginia Commonwealth University Health Systems, Virginia
Union University, and University of Richmond, as well as the three Fortune 500 companies headquartered in the
City has enabled the City to continue to serve as a focal point for business and jobs in central Virginia. There are a
total of seven Fortune 500 companies in the Greater Richmond area.

The Greater Richmond area is also a stronghold of financial power serving as the location of the Fifth
Federal Reserve District Bank, the major operations of Capital One and SunTrust Bank in addition to numerous
securities and investments firms including the new headquarters of Wachovia Securities, the nation’s third largest
retail brokerage.

Furthermore, there are many more exciting developments that will add new permanent and temporary jobs
to the Greater Richmond area. Philip Morris USA Inc., one of America’s largest corporations — headquartered in the
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Greater Richmond area — has announced the opening of the Philip Morris USA Research & Technology Center at
the Virginia Biotechnology Research Park located in downtown Richmond. This development includes a total of
$300 million dellars within the City; constructing a 475,000 square-foot center with the employment of 500
scientists, engineers, and support staff. Philip Mortis recently relocated its corporate headquarters from New York
to Richmond. Along with the 300 plus employees relocating to Richmond, the company committed to over $250
million in capital improvements to its existing operation facilities in the City of Richmond.

Genworth Financial, formerly GE Financial Assurance, plans to headquarter its company into the Greater
Richmend area, bringing the eighth Fortune 500 headquarters into the Greater Richmond area. Tredegar
Corporation, a global manufacturer of plastic films and aluminum extrusions, announced that Tredegar Film
Products would move its Research and Development and technical centers to Richmond, VA. An investment of
$6.5 million, the Tredegar relocation will also create 40 new jobs. Cavalier Telephone, a leading provider of
telecommunication services, headquartered in Richmond, VA has announced the addition of a new sales, operations
and customer support facility in Richmond, VA. Operating within the Mid-Atlantic region, Cavalier Telephone will
consolidate several existing locations into the new 80,000 square foot office, bringing of 400 individuals — including
150 new positions. Virginia Credit & Finance Inc. has also announced the development of a new debt collection
customer service center. This project will create a $1 million investment, adding 150 positions to its Richmond
operations. Additionally, CyMed, America Online, Inc., Martin Call Center, Computer Science Corporation,
Northrop Grumman, Altria Corporate Services, and Prolific Technology have conducted office operations

" expansions during 2005.

An attraction for labor, the Greater Richmond area’s civilian work force increased from last year by
approximately 40,000 individuals creating a workforce over 600,000; drawing from more than 40 localities
stalewide. The City’s unemployment rate for the fiscal year 2005 has decreased from last year’s percentage of 4.4%
to 3.6%; coinciding with the Commonwealth of Virginia’s unemployment rate — a rate lower than the national
unemployment rate of 5.5%. Additionally, the per capita personal income of Virginia has increased from $33,671 to
$35,477 — an income healthier than the national per capita personal income of $32,937.

The majority of business space for occupancy remains in the office, office warehouse, retail, and industrial
classes. Companies have actually begun to shift operations from Class B space to Class A space, decreasing the
occupancy rate from last year (89.3%) to an occupancy rale of 82.5%. The occupancy rate of retail was steady at
91.23% at of the end of the second quarter of the 2004 calendar year.

The City continues to grow stronger fiscally and more economically diverse with each passing year. The
City’s objective is to maintain this trend while continuing to make investments in itself; this sustains the City’s
encouraging economic condition and positive oullook.

Major Initiatives

The City provides a full range of services including police, fire, cultural, recreational, park facilities, public
works, refuse collection and human services. To better target spending in an effort to achieve strategic goals, Council
and the administration have adopted several key priorities around which budgetary, policy and administrative decisions
are made. The initiatives include youth and family success, public safety, neighborhood preservation and
beautification, transportation and economic development. A discussion of key priorities, along with major initiatives
related to these, follows.

Mayoral Inifiatives:
Traancy Prevention Initiative
Due to high truancy rates in public schools, a major initiative was implemented to address this problem

beginning with the 2005-2006 school year. Led by the City departments of Justice Services and Police, the Truancy
Reduction and Prevention Program (TRAPP) consisis of an intensive approach in three target neighborhoods where
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there is a high incidence of crime and truancy. A service center was established in each target neighborhood
(Hillside, Mosby and Highland Park). Justice Services and City Police have partnered with schools, social workers,
juvenile court, non profits and residents to address individual, family and community issues that lead to truancy and
crime. Citywide truancy sweeps are also conducted.

To address truancy, a multi-disciplinary approach is used that includes individual and family assessments,
academic support, parental education, youth employment, family counseling and support, drug prevention
initiatives, aggressive case management employment and other programs.

Kevy features of TRAPP include:

1) Expands the number of personnel assigned to address the City’s truancy prevention efforts;

2) More proactive than before, as three unexcused absences will lead to a parental conference to discuss
the studen!’s truancy and identify reasons for not atiending school;

3) Utilizes a citywide hotline number (646-ABCD) whereby citizens, merchants and others can report
truant children;

4) Provides greater community outreach, due to creation of neighborhood service centers;

5) Transfers the core truancy prevention function from the City school system to the Mayor’s office, with
the corresponding transfer of funding/equipment/etc.

Street Repair Initiative

Determined to improve upon quality-of-life municipal services such as roadway mainfenance, the City
Administration launched an aggressive repair program that has corrected almost 12,000 potholes since March. The
program has achieved a 97 percent success rate of repairing pothole problems within two days of being reported.
Additional funding of $400,000 enabled the creation of additional staff positions and the purchase of equipment that
can permanently repair potholes rather than temporarily fixing them through manual methods.

Gang Reduction

Taking a more proactive approach to addressing gang violence here, the Richmond Police Department
formed the Gang Intelligence Unit in 2004 to concentrate on ways to reduce gang activity within Richmond.
Richmond also serves as a national model for anti-gang initiatives. The City is the site of a $2.5 million, three-year
national law enforcement pilot program addressing gang-related violence. Administered by the Virginia Attormney
General's Office, the program coordinates programs and resources to combat gang-related activity here. Richmond
is one of four cities chosen nationally to participate in this pilot initiative.

Intelligence sharing, training and investigate assistance is a collaborative effort among organizations at all
jurisdictional levels, such as the FBI, U.S. District Attorney’s Office, Virginia State Police, Virginia Department of
Probation and Parole, Virginia Department of Corrections, and police authorities in surrounding localities.

Vacant and Abandoned Property Cleanup

Richmond is one of seven cilies that has joined the Vacant Properties Campaign, a national initiative
designed to reclaim vacant and abandoned praperties and restore vitality and livability to city neighborhoods. The
Campaign, the first systemic, multi-city effort addressing blighted properties, partners national experts with local
officials, non profits and residents in developing strategies for reclaiming streets and neighborhoods.



With an estimated 2,500 blighted properties across the city, the benefits to Richmond of participating in the
Vacant Properties Campaign will include: (1) developing an inventory tracking system of vacant properties; and (2)
implementing processes for the fostering greater building code compliance and the sale, rehabilitation or demolition
of identified properties.

Other Initiatives:
Youth and Family Success

The Department of Parks, Recreation and Community Facilities Department supports the City’s goal of
Youth and Family Success and continues to grow and add to its programs. The Depariment continues to improve
its After School Program for children in kindergarten through fifth grade. The program has been elevated to a stand-
alone division. In addition, all 19 elementary school sites have either obtained state licensure or preliminary
licensure,

In Athletics, the Department has expanded support for youth baseball and 33 new teams were organized for
spring play. The Department also hosted the regional Traditions of Golf Tournament in 2004 and hosted the national
tournament in August 2005. The Richmond Racers, the competitive youth swim team, continues its reign as
Community Swim League Champions. The Department also initiated a successful youth lacrosse program.

In Cultural Arts, the City Dance Troupe continues 1o earn national recognition, having won 23 awards in
the national Dance America Competition held last year. The Department is again sponsoring the National Arts
program to encourage public participation in the arts. The annual Festival of the Arts at Dogwood Dell continues
with expanded youth performances.

The Department continues to offer summer camps for children throughout the city, operate eighht outdoor
swimming pools during the summer and one indoor pool year-round, provide trips and programs for senior citizens,
operate a senior center, participate in the citywide youth employment program, and host more than 50 special events
in City parks annually.

In 2005 the Deparimeni of Social Services continued its GOALS (Giving Opportunities to Achieve
Lifelong Success) Program. The GOALS Program provides TANF recipients with a General Equivalency Diploma,
Adult Basic and Vocational Education training in becoming Emergency Medical Assistants, and in child day care
and computer technology. Richmond Public Schools, Goodwill Industries, Richmond Behavioral Health Authority,
Richmond Career Advancement Center and the Richmond Community Action Program collaborate with the
Department of Social Services to operate GOALS Program. The Program was expanded in 2005 to assist TANF
customers requiring mental health and substance abuse services.

A new Capital program is a regional collaboration between three local departments of social service
agencies - Chesterfield County, Henrico County and the City of Richmond. Case management and job placement
services are provided through these agencies and with the addition of Rehabilitative Services and Vocational
Placement (RSVP), medical case management is provided to customers whose ability to work is limited through a
physical disability. The services provided through the collaboration have assisted over 50 of the 126 customers
referred into the program to be placed in work experience job sites and/ or full-time employment. An additional 20
TANTF recipients have been successful in receiving Social Security Disability payments due to the intensive medical
case management provided by RSVP. Funding from the Virginia Department of Social Services (VDSS) is
available through fiscal year 2007. This project is a “best practice” for VDSS.

The Department of Social Services, and other human services staff expanded the collaboration with
Richmond Redevelopment and Housing Authority (RRHA) through participation in the JASIP (Joint Agency
Service Integration Program). Six Intensive Case Managers spend 2-5 hours per week on-site at Fairfield Court,
Whitcomb Court and Creighton Court Resource Centers to provide various services to residents. During 20035, at
Creighton Court, A GED class was implemented and staff has facilitated several Budgeting workshops. The agency



continues to offer GED classes at Marshall Plaza, conducted by an Intensive Case Manager and a teacher from
Richmond Public Schools. Twenty customers completed the GED class and currently 14 have attained their GED.

The Welfare Reform Team hopes to reduce operating expenses yet continue its excellent customer service
by developing an in-house job readiness/ job search curriculum targeting job-ready customers. The transition is
expected to reduce operating costs by $1 million by the end of fiscal year 2006.

The City’s Welfare To Work Program continues to exceed the statewide average for hourly wages, monthly
wages and job retention,

State of Virginia Richmond, Virginia

Hourly Wage 3642 3654
Monthly Wage $859.00 $891.00
Six Month Retention 62% 74%

The Department of Social Services implemented the new state-mandated Child Protective Service (CPS)
approach for dealing with allegations of child abuse. The new approach is called Differential Response because
allegations of child abuse may be addressed using two different approaches. Differential Response allows social
workers in local departments of social services to respond to allegations of chiid abuse based upon the severity of
the complaint. It differentiates between children in immediate harms way versus children with other family needs.
Child Protective Service professionals continue to partner with parents and community-based organizations to keep
children in Richmond safe from maltreatment. The Department experienced a decrease in the number of CPS
referrals received in fiscal year 2004 versus fiscal year 2005. In fiscal year 2004, CPS received 1,778 referrals of
which 1,578 were investigations or assessments, In fiscal year 2002, CPS received an estimated 1,700 referrals of
which approximately 1,500 were investigations or assessments.

Public Safety

In the efforts to continue addressing the improvement of the quality of life issues, the Police Department
administered several grant programs that bridged the gap between basic law enforcement and citizen interaction.
The Community Oriented Policing concept was applied to our Project Safe Neighborhoods (gun viclence reduction),
Gang Reduction Intervention Program, Value Based Initiative (law enforcement/clergy partnership) and the COPS
in Schools initiative. In addition, the Department continues to develop the foundation for the grant funded domestic
violence public awareness campaign. The reduction of crime and the fear of crime within the community continue to
be the central focus of the Department.

Neighborhood Focus / Infrastructure & Improvements

The City’s Neighborhood in Bloom (NIB) program is a focused and aggressive neighborhood investment
partnership to restore and beautify neighborhoods. This plan pools Federal, City and other funds in six targeted City
neighborhoods. The goals of this program are to restore all blighted, vacant structures to productive use within three
years; to ensure that all occupied housing units meet the housing maintenance code, and to ensure that all
neighborhood infrastructure meets acceptable standards. As a result of this investment the City will benefit from a
better image, improvements in public safety, a restoration in pride, investment in neighborhoods, an increase in
home ownership, and an increase in revenue by returning structures to productive use.

The first six years of the program have resulted in the construction and sale to new homeowners of 137 new
single family homes; the rehabilitation of 112 vacant houses that have been sold for homeownership; substantial
rehabilitation of 51 owner occupied houses; repairs addressing safety code violations to 131 homes; and financial
assistance to an additional 43 families to purchase homes. In addition, over 1,600 housing and environmental code
violations have been resolved.
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Necessary infrastructure improvements have been made using capital improvement funds. Sidewalks,
curbs, and gutters have been repaired or added. Added amenities include attractive streetscapes and more open
space. Efforts have also been focused on improvements of the NiB neighborhood commercial areas with assistance
for working capitai as well as physical improvements,

In 2003, the Neighborhoods In Bloom Revolving Loan Fund was created to promote economic
revitalization in the Neighborhoods in Bleom (NIB) with commercial strips providing goods and services to area
residents. The Revolving Loan Fund fosters economic growth and stability through low interest loans to existing
businesses and to new business start-ups in the target areas. To date, fourteen Neighborhood In Bloora loans have
been approved totaling $280,000.

In 2004, the Department of Public Works hired a Grounds Maintenance Manager to head a city gardeners
and vegetation control team. A new greenhouse was opened in April 2004 at the Warwick Road Headquarters,
which is being used 1o produce annuals and perennials for city planting beds. A 52,200 flower bed-edger was
purchased to contribute to the overall attractiveness of the city. The Grounds Maintenance Division also negotiated
with VDOT to have them make improvements to the 3™ Street gateway. Three new gateway median flowerbeds
were created along Broad Street, the Boulevard, and Belvidere.

A Citywide volunleer litter cleanup day was held on Saturday, March 19, 2005. More than 3000 volunteers
pre-registered for the event. Three thousand trash "picker uppers" and 1,000 orange trash bags were distributed to
volunteers. One of the major projects was the Sierra Club’s cleaning of an illegal dump site at Richrmond Henrico
Turnpike.

In late August 2004, Tropical Storm Gaston impacted the City. Tropical Storm Gaston flooded and
damaged infrastructure (buildings and roadways) and private property in several areas of the City. The area most
devastated by the storm was Shockoe Bottom. This area is known for its dining and nightlife activity. Total repair
costs for the City’s infrastructure was $20 million. The City has qualified for public assistance from FEMA and
had worked closely with FEMA to assure the work was properly completed and eligible for maximum
reimbursement. The City has already received $8.2 million from FEMA.

Transportation

The Greater Richmond Transit Company (GRTC) operates under a joint venture agreement between the
City and the County of Chesterfield and provides regional mass transit services for metropolitan residents and
visitors. GRTC offers a level of service comparable to or greater than its transit peers, while providing service that
meets the needs of GRTC customers. GRTC has been designated one of the most efficient transit systems in the
country for the last ten years. GRTC has dramatically refocused its customer service efforts by increasing the
Customer Service department’s staffing, installing additional shelters, benches and trash receptacles, implementing
swipe card technology and fare box-generated transfers, and realigning services to better meet the needs of riders.
The GRTC bus fares have remained constant for the past twelve years.

In conjunction with GRTC Transit System/Ride Finders, the City of Richmond funded and implemented
the Employee Trip Reduction Program in January 2004. The program provides free bus transportation to city
employees to and from work, The program meets the City’s current Strategic Priorities by supporting alternative
forms of transportation while supporting economic growth by reducing the demand for commuter parking
downtown. The City received a Federal Highway Administration Grant in the amount of $557,000 for FY2004 thru
FY?2006 for the implementation of this program. To date, over 840 or 18% of the city’s workforce have enrolled in
the program exceeding the original goal of 10% of the workforce participation.

The City also implemented the Lunch Time Express to provide a unique transportation service to link our
75,000 downtown workers, residents, and visitors with over 80 restaurants, eight hotels, 13,000 parking spaces and
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other destinations in an effort to enhance mobility and bolster the economic vitality of downtown. The City funded
the Lunch Time Express for the first six months of operation. A $128,000 grant from the State will continue the
service until June 30, 2006.

In addition, through a partnership with the Virginia First Cities coalition, the Department of Public Works
led a lobbying effort to provide municipalities with greater decision-making authority over how state fransportation
funds may be used. Current law allows funds to be used only for construction while the majority of the cities’ needs
are in the area of infrastructure maintenance.

The Main Street Station Phase I restoration was completed and the station was opened to passenger rail
service in December 2003. Over 1,000 Amtrak passengers use the station on a monthly basis. In addition, Amtrak
revised its service schedule to provide improved service to the station. The staff is working diligently with the
Secretary of Transportation, Virginia Department of Rail & Public Transportation (VDRPT), Amtrak, VDOT and
CSX for the later phases of the Main Street Station renovation. The City secured 853 million for the Main Street
Station capital development or 98% of the budget and 51.8 million for Main Street Station Operations

Eeonomic Vitality

Richmond is a city of monuments that has become a monument itself to America’s new south, The City's
historic buildings and world-class museums nestle next to new structures designed to harmonize with the past even
as they define the city’s future. The newly opened James River and Kanawha Canal Riverwalk allows visitors easy
access 10 the only metropolitan whitewater river in the country. Buildings ranging from the historic Tredegar Iron
Works to the modern Federal Reserve to Main Street Station, the transportation hub, are at the center of the River
District, a popular entertainment and dining enclave. Entertainment, dining and nightlife activity continues to grow
in Shockoe Slip and Shockoe Bottom.

In the past five years, the City of Richmond has succeeded in attracting over $3 billion in investment.
Many of those developments were marked by unprecedented public-private partnerships, which led to large-scale
projects like the Richmond Convention Center, but these public dollars were leveraged to create an environment ripe
for private investment. In the past two years, Richmond’s economy has matured to the point that investrnent now
flows in from all sectors to create diverse producis and a solid economy for the city. Office, industrial, retail
residential, hospitality, and educational developments (as well as combinations of these products) are being funded
throughout the city by federal, state, local, and private dollars.

The Broad Sireet Community Development Authority sold $66.7 million in bonds in May 2003. The
public improvements consist of razing two blocks of derelict structures for surface parking (Phase 11 will construct
parking decks on those sites); three renovated garages, new streetscaping and improved public utilities. These
improvements will be completed in the summer of 2005 and it will catalyze the renovation of the old Miller &
Rhoads department store into a boutique hotel/apartment building, as well as many other private developments
directly adjacent to the CDA area. This project will create 2,454 new permanent jobs and $3.5 million in annual tax
revenue. All CDA developed assets revert back to the City at the end of the bond term.

Though construction funding was cut from the President’s FY 2004 budget, Richmond government and
business leaders made an appeal to Congress for funding. Based on the momentum of development in downtown
Richmond and the importance of the project, Virginia legislators pushed and succeeded in securing the funding.
Construction is under way for a new 337,000 square foot Federal courthouse. The structure will house more than
300 employees. The $S100 million project will be completed in 2007. In addition, to be ready for the statewide
celebrations in 2007 to commemorate the 400” anniversary of the founding of Jamestown, the Commonwealth has
started large-scale renovations throughout Capital Square: Capitol Building - $74 million, Former Virginia State
Library.

Dominion Resources, a Fortune 200 company headquartered in downtown Richmond, completed
construction of Phase 1 of its headquarter expansion in 2004. Phase [ was a $30 million project that included a
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50,000 square foot state-of-the-art energy-trading floor. Phase Il of this project will feature 250,000 square feet of
office space, which will be completed in 2006. The expansion brings a total of 1,200 employees to downtown
Richmond. In addition, the Cordish Company and the Daniel Company are developing the Riverside Village project
on Brown’s Island. The mixed-use project is the first of it kind in the Richmond area and includes approximately
230,000 square feet of new office space construction; 70,000 square feet of entertainment/retail space; 122 upscale
apartments and 800 parking spaces. A major law firm and a financial services company have already preleased
more than 85% of the office space. The office portion of this project is scheduled to be completed in 2005. The City
of Richmond will contribute $4.6 million in infrastructure improvements to the area; a 15-year tax abatement to the
project which will provide more than 1,000 permanent jobs and approximately $800,000 annually in new revenue
for the City.

Downtown Richmond is attracting individuals and families who enjoy the benefits of city life. The City is
continuing its development efforts converting existing warehouses, factories, and office buildings into midrange and
luxury apartments. The adaptive re-use of historic buildings has become a very popular practice of developers all
over the City because of a compelling combination of City, State and Federal tax credit programs.  The fonmer
Hotel John Marshall, a few blocks form the convention center, is under going a conversion to 130 luxury apartments
with full service amenities. The development of River Lofts II has been so successful, that the developer has
announced plans for Phase 111 of the River lofts at Tobacco Row. The developer will break ground in 2005 on 12
new for-sale townhouses on Tobacco Row. I[n addition, the developer will renovate additional facilities at the far
eastern end of Tobacco Row into apartments, retail, and commercial space.

To further encourage economic development, by the action of Council, the City began a substantially
expanded Tax Abatement for the Rehabilitative Structures Program in fiscal year 1996. This program focuses on
retention of existing businesses and attraction of new businesses, but also seeks to create an environment to
encourage new investment, job creation, and the growth of the City’s existing tax base. Originally established as a
five-year program, it has been extended for an additional five years due to its success. The program provides real
estate tax abatements for up to 15 years for owners of residential, multi-family and commercial properties in the
City, provided they increase the assessed value of the property by a certain percentage. During 2005, 3,318
properties qualified for the tax abatement. The value of the abatement for these properties is $11 million, an
increase of over $1.8 millton from the prior year.

Accounting and Budgeiary Systems

Accounting Systems

The City administration is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed
to ensure that the assets of the government are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate
accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP. The
internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable assurance that the integrity of the financial and
administrative transactions is maintained and is executed in accordance with management’s objectives. The structure is
designed to recognize that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the
valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

All intemnal control evaluations occur within the above framework. We believe that the City’s internal
accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of the proper recording of financial
transactions.



Budgetary Systems

The objective of the City's budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the
annual appropriated budget approved by Council. Council is required to adopt a final budget by no later than the close
of the fiscal year. Activities of the General Fund, Debt Service Fund, and School Board General Fund are included in
this budget. Project-length financial plans are adopted for the Capital Projects Fund. The level of budgetary control
(that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is established at the department
level and function within an individual fund. The City also maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one
technique of accomplishing budgetary control. Requisition encumbrances are converted to either purchase orders or
contract encumbrances when a third party obligation is incurred. Open requisition encumbrances are canceled at year’s
end, while open purchase orders and contract encumbrances are immediately re-appropriated for the subsequent fiscal
year.

As demonstrated by the statement of budgetary comparisons in the required supplementary information
section of this report, the City continues meeting its responsibility for sound financial management. (Refer to Exhibit
H-1 for the City’s General Fund revenues and expenditures by function).

Financial Condition

In July 2004, the City received a revenue bond rating upgrade from A+ to AA- from Standard & Poors for
its Public Utility revenue bonds. The rating increase reflects the Utility’s newly adopted purchased gas cost
adjustment levy ability, reduced uncertainty associated with the phase — III combined sewer overflow (CSO)
elimination project and a strong cash position and working capital policy. In addition, Moody’s Investors Service
has assigned an Al rating with a positive outlook and Fitch has re-affirmed its AA- rating.

Standard and Poors last affirm the City’s General Obligation Bonds Ratings in July 2005. Fitch and
Moody’s last affirmed the City’s General Obligation Bond Ratings in November 2004. Fitch, Standard and Poors,
and Moody’s have rated the City’s General Obligation Bonds as AA, AA, and Aa3, respectively. The City
continues to enjoy the highest short-term ratings awarded by the rating agencies.

The latest Utility Revenue Bond Upgrade from Standard & Poors represents an unprecedented third bond
credit rating upgrade the City has received in a two-year period.

* June 2002 - Public Utility Revenue Bond credit rating upgrade by Fitch to AA-
e October 2002 — General Obligation Bond credit rating upgrade to Aa3 by Moody's
e July 2004 - Public Utility Revenue Bond credit rating upgrade to AA- by Standard & Poors

The City’s commitment to improving its financial condition is exhibited in its year-end results. General
Fund revenues outpaced expenditures, including other financing sources during fiscal year 2005 by $5.7 million and
the undesignated fund balance remained at the same percentage as the prior year (see the chart that follows). The
undesignated fund balance has increased from 4.9% in fiscal 1999 to 7.1% in fiscal vear 2005. Although revenues
outpaced expenditures by $5.7 million, the undesignated fund balance as a percentage of revenues continues to
exceed our policy threshold of 7%.

Undesignated Fund Balance as a
Percentage of Revenues




Long-Term Financial Planning

In conjunction with the adoption of an annual Operating Budget in May of each year, the City Council
adopts a five-year Capital Improvement Plan (“the CIP™). At the time of the adoption of the CIP, the first year of the
plan constitutes the Adopted Capital Projects Budget for the fiscal year, and the remaining four years of the CIP
serve as a planning guide for capital improvements to the public facilities of the City. The annual Capital Projects
Budget includes both general-purpose capital improvement projects, including school capital improvement building
projects, and utility capital projects. The adopted CIP for the Fiscal Years 2006 through 2010 include $104,276,911
of general-purpose capital projects funded largely through the issuance of $77,344,000 of General Obligation bonds.
The remaining funding of general-purpose projects comes from State and Federal grants and other external sources
of reimbursement.

The City Council has adopted internal debt management policies, which are an integral part of the
budgeting process. These internal policies serve to limit the total amount of general obligation debt which can be
issued, by establishing ratios of debt to assessed values of taxable real estate, debt to income, and debt service as a
percentage of the annual operating budget. In addition, an established policy requires debt structuring, such that 60%
of overall general obligation debt is repaid in ten years. These debt management policies are discussed in greater
detail in the Statistical Section of this document.

Business Type Activities

The City's enterprise operations are comprised of three separate and distinct activities: Water, Wastewater and
Gas. The Gas and Water utilities are regional in scope, providing services to the City and the surrounding Counties of
Chesterfield, Henrico and Hanover. Henrico County has built a water treatment plant, which is projected to reduce the
maximum daily water use demands on the City’s system from approximately 59 mgd in the year 2004 to 28 MGD in
the year 2005. The reduced demand from Henrico is expected to be offset somewhat by increased water sales to
Hanover County over the next several years. The Water utility also provides water indirectly to Goochland County.
The Wastewater utility serves all of the City and small portions of Chesterfield and Henrico Counties that lie at the
city/county line. The City has 2 wastewater contract with Goochland to provide up to 5 MGD of wastewater treatment.

In fiscal year 2005, the City entered into the third Special Order with the Virginia Water Control Board and
Department of Environmental Quality that outlines the implementation of Phase III of the City’s Combined Sewer
Overflow (CSO) Program. The order requires the City to construct 10 projects with a projected combined cost of
$17 million on a stipulated schedule over the next 12 years. Phase III also includes seven additional major CSO
projects that are contingent upon resolution of water quality standards issues and would be constructed over an
unspecified period of time based on the City’s financial capability. In addition, the Huguenot Road 36" Water
Transmission Main was placed into service. This praject is the first new City water main across the James River in
over 15 years and represents an important investment in our water distribution infrastructure.

During calendar year 2004, the City of Richmond’s Wastewater Plant was awarded the 2004 Platinum Peak
Performance Award from the Association of Metropolitan Sewerage Agencies. This award is awarded to member
agency facilities that have received five consecutive Association of Metropolitan Sewerage Ageocies (AMSA) Gold
Awards. The Gold Awards recognizes member agencies that have achieved 100% compliance with their National
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit for an entire calendar year. The Department of Public
Utilities was featured in the May 2005 edition of AMSA Clean Water News newslelter.
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Awardys and Acknowledgements
Reporting Achievement

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting (Certificate of Achievement) to the City of
Richmond for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004. This was the 21*
consecutive year that the City has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual
financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal
requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of onc year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements
and we are subsmitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) also awarded the
City it’s Award for Outstanding Achievement in Popular Annual Financial Reporting for its popular annual financial
report for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2002 and June 30, 2003.
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The preparation of the CAFR was made possible by the dedicated service of the entire staff of the Controller’s
Division of the Finance Department. All individuals who assisted in this effort have our sincere appreciation for the
contributions made in the preparation of this report.

Appreciation is also expressed to the Mayor, Chief Administrative Officer, City Council, City Department

Directors, and Bureau Chiefs for their leadership and support in planning and conducting the financial affairs of the
City in a responsible and progressive manner.

Sincerely,

_ Jathes P. Duval
Mayor Chief Administrative Officer Interim Director of Finance
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MANAGEMENT REPORT ON RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of the City of Richmond has the responsibility for preparing the accompanying financial statements with
integrity and objectivity. The School Board of the City of Richmond. Richmond Ambulance Authority. Richmond Coliseum.
Hospital Authority of Richmond, Port of Richmond Commission, Richmond Behavioral Health Authority. Richmond
Redevelopment and Housing Authority, and the Broad Street Community Development Authority are under the direct control of
their respective governing boards and management who are responsible for their financial independent certified public accounts.
The financial statements were prepared in accordance with Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of
America, and to the best of our knowledge are not materially misstated. The financial statements include amounts that are, in some
instances, based on management’s best estimates and judgements. Management also prepared the statistical information in this
annual report and is responsible for its accuracy and consistency with the financial statements.

The City’s financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP (KPMG), independent certified public accountants,
selected by the City Council. Management has made available to KPMG all of the City’s financial records and related data as well
as the minutes of the City Council meetings. Furthermore, management believes that all representations made to KPMG during its
audit were valid and appropriate. S —

Management of the City has established and maintains a system of internal control that provides reasonable assurance as to
the integrity and reliability of the financial statements, the protection of assets from unauthorized use or disposition, and the
prevention and detection of fraudulent financial reporting. The system of internal controls provides for appropriate division of
responsibility and is communicated to employees with significant roles in the financial reporting process and updated as necessary.
Management continually monitors the system of internal controls for compliance.

The City maintains an internal auditing program through the City Auditor. The City Auditor independently assesses the
effectiveness of internal controls and recommends possible improvements thereto. In addition, as part of its audit of the City’s
financial statements, KPMG completed a study and evaluation of selected internal accounting contro]sto establ:sh a basxs for
rehance thereon in determining the nature, ummg,, and extent of audnt tests to be apphed L,.___, ;

Management also recognizes its responsibility for fostering a strong ethical climate so that the City’s affairs are conducted
according to the highest standards of personal and City conduct. Management communicates ethical standards to employees
through personnel rules, administrative regulations. and city law.

e Honora;ie Lé;las Wilder /illiam Harrell James P. Duval "

Mavor Chief Administrative Officer Interim Director of Finance MMM ™~

‘JW v

The MF‘{A&L L&%W
900 East Broao STReeT*RicHmonn, VA 23219+804.646.7970°Fax 804.646.7987+wwWwW.RICHMONDGOV.COM
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
CHAIRMAN'S LETTER

The Audit Committee of the City of Richmond is composed of three citizen members and two Council
members. The members of the Audit Committee during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005 were Richard
P. Pontynen, CPA, Chairman through February 21, 2005; Barry C. Faison, CPA, current Chairman as of
March 3, 2005; George E. Calvert, Jr., Vice Chairman; The Honorable Ellen Robertson; and The
Honorable William J. Pantele. One citizen member position was vacant as of June 30, 2005. The
Committee held four meetings during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005.

The Audit Committee assists City Council in the Council’s discharge of its responsibilities for the
financial management of the City, specifically in the areas under the charge of the City Director of
Finance. The School Board of the City of Richmond, Richmond Ambulance Authority, Port of
Richmond Commission, Richmond Behavioral Health Authority, Hospital Authority of Richmond, Broad
Street Community Development Authority, Advantage Richmond Corporation and the Richmond
Redevelopment and Housing Authority accounts are not under control of the City Director of Finance.
The responsibilities for financial management of these organizations are with their respective governing
boards and managers. Therefore, the Audit Committee of the City does not have responsibility for these
organizations.

The Committee discussed with the City Auditor and the independent certified accountants the overall
scope and specific plans for their respective audits. The Committee also discussed the City’s
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and the adequacy of the City’s internal controls. During the
year, the Committee has monitored the contract with the independent certified accountants.

The Committee met regularly with the City Auditor and the independent certified public accountants to
discuss the results of their audits, their evaluations of the City’s internal controls, and the overall quality
of the City’s financial reporting.

Barry ¢Z. Faisoﬁ. CPA, Chairman
Audit Committee

900 East Broao Streer, Room 806 * Richmono, VA 23219 « 804.646.5616 » Fax 804.646.2230 * WWW.RICHMONDGOV.COM
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KPMG LLP

Suite 2000

1021 East Cary Street
Richmond, VA 23219-4023

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Honorable Members of City Council
City of Richmond, Virginia:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Richmond, Virginia (the City), as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2005, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is
to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial
statements of the Richmond Coliseum, which represent 1.54% and 1.52%, respectively, of the total assets
and revenues of the aggregate remaining fund information. We also did not audit the financial statements
of the Richmond Behavioral Health Authority, the Hospital Authority of Richmond, or the Richmond
Redevelopment and Housing Authority, which represent 59.20% and 28.20%, respectively, of the total
assets and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units. Those financial statements were
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinions on the basic financial
statements insofar as they relate to the amounts included for the Richmond Coliseum in the aggregate
remaining fund information, and the Richmond Behavioral Health Authority; the Hospital Authority of
Richmond and the Richmond Redevelopment and Housing Authority in the aggregate discretely presented
component units, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Specifications for Audits of Counties, Cities, and
Towns issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia (specifications). Those
standards and specifications require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of the
other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the basic financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Richmond, Virginia, as of
June 30, 2005, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof

KPMG LLP, a U.S. limited liability partnership, is the U.S
member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative
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for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

As noted m note 3 to the basic financial statements, the City has implemented Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures, effective July 1, 2004,

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated November 10,
2003, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the intemal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 through 21, the budgetary comparison schedules
on pages 94 through 98, and the trend information in note 12 are not a required part of the basic financial
statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The accompanying financial information listed as
Supplementary Information — Combining Financial Statements in the table of contents is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial staterments. The
Supplementary Information — Combining Financial Statements has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, based on our audit and
the report of the other auditors, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial

statements taken as a whole.
The information included in the introductory and statistical sections has not been subjected to the auditing

procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on
it.

KPMe LIP

November 10, 2005
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" CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS Tt - C
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

-

, _The Clty of Richmond, V1rg1n1a s (the “City”) dlscussmn and analy51s is demgned to (a) assist the. reader in focusmg
on significant financial issues, (b) provide an overview of the City’s financial activity, (¢) identify changes in the
City’s financial position (its ability to address the next and subsequent year challenges),. (d) identify any material
deviations from the financial plan (the approved budget), and (&) identify individuz] fund i issues or concerns

Smce the Management s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is demgned to focus on the current years activities,
resulting-changes and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with. the Transmittal Letter (begmmng on
page 1) and the Clty s finan(:lal statements (beginning on page 24).

Financial Highlights

GoVerltment-wide Financial Statements

il

At the close of the fiscal year, the assets of the City exceeded its liabilities by $649,636,610.” Of thisJ
amount, $83,942,836, (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing.
obhgatlons 1o citizens and creditors. '

The City’s busmess-type activities closed. on June 30, 2005 with $360 413,134 in net assets, 4n

increase of $7,478,187 in comparison with.the prior year. $43,272,098 of net assets is reported as

unrestricted.

ot

As of the close of the current fiscal yedr—, the City’s govemmedta_l activities for govetnment-Wide

.réporting reported net assets of $289,223,476, an increase of $38,793,728, in comparison with the

prior year. $40,670,738 of net assets. is reported as unrestricted governmental net assets and is
available to meet the government’s obllgatlons to citizens and creditors. .

Fund Financial Statements

Debt Offering

, N 4

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s govemmental funds reported a combined ending
N fund balance of $129,393,048, a decrease of $13,631,817 in compdrison with the prior year. Forty- -
" four percent of this total amount, $56, 763 333, is avallable for spending at the. government’

. discretion (unresérved fund balance).

At the end of the current fiscal year, the unreserved fund _baiauce for the general fund-was
$45,278,440 or 8.5% of total fund expenditures, inclusive-of transfers to other funds.

The City’s total debt increased by approximately $30. l‘million'(approximately 3.0%) ddring the

current fiscal year as the City’s issued $67.7 million of Public Utility Revenue Bonds.— Series 2004 to.

: ﬁmd the new capital expenditure projects of the Gas, Water, and Wastewater Public Utilities, - At the

time of this bond issue; Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s, and Fitch Ratings reaffirmed their respéctive Al |
and AA- credit ratings of the City’s Public Utility Revefue-Bond debt while the rating agency .
Standard and Poors upgraded its rating of the debt from A+ to AA-, During the year the City also
issued $1.5 million ,of zero percent interest, Qualified’ Zone Academy Bonds to finance specific
capital improvement projects of the Richmond Public Schools, as well .as a $7.0 million equipment
note issued to finance equipment purchased by the General Fund and-Fleet Management- Internal

Service Funid during the-fiscal year. - -

ot
i '
'



e  Commonwealth of Virginia statutes limit the amount of General Obligation debt a governmental
entity may issue to 10% of the municipality’s total taxable assessed real estate valuation. At June 30,
2005, the City had a legal debt limit of $1,507,923,335 and a remaining legal debt margin for issuing
additional obligation debt of $822,538,667.

e  Additional detailed information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note & beginning on
page 69 of this report.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The following is narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2005. This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial
statements, which have the following components: (/) management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), (2)
government-wide financial statements, (3) fund financial statements, and (4) notes to the financial statements.
The new financial statements’ focus is on both the City as a whole (government-wide) and on the major
individual funds. Both perspectives (government-wide and major fund) allow the user to address relevant
questions, broaden a basis for comparison (year to year or government to government), and enhance the City’s
accountability.

Management's discussion
and analysis
Government-wide Fund financial
financial statements ~ — statements

Notes to the financial statements

Required supplementary
information (other than MD&A)

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s
finances in a manner similar to a private-scctor business. Government-wide financial reporting consists of two
statements: the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities.

The Statement of Net Assels presents information on all the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between assets and liabilities reported as net assets. Net assets are reported in three classifications: invested in
capital assets — net of related debt, restricted, and unrestricted. Over time, the increases or decreases in the
City’s net assets can be an indicator as to whether the financial position of the City is improving or
deteriorating. To accurately use changes in net assets as an indicator of the City’s overall health, the underlying
factors contributing to the increase or decrease must be analyzed, as well as other non-financial factors (such as
changes in the property tax base and the condition of infrastructure and other capital assets).

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the net assets changed during the year. All
changes in net assets are recognized as the underlying event occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash
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flow. As a result, revenues and €Xpenses are reported in this statement for'some items that w111 not 1mpact cash

4

ﬂows until future fiscal periods. o ) .

Both of the govemment—wrde financial- statements distinguish functions of ‘the City that ‘are principally -

* supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other funictions that -are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through. user fees and charges {(business-type
activitics). The governmental.activities of the City includes the City’s basic services including Police; Fire, -

. Economic Development, Recreation and Parks, Social Services, Commutiity Development and the General
' Admlmstratton These activities are supported primarily by property taxes, other local taxes, state and Federal
" grants, and contrrbutrons fromi the City’s Utility Departments (Gas, Water, -and Wastewater). The business-type
activities reflect prwate-sector type operations (¢.g. Gas, Water, Wastewater, Coliseum;, Landmark Theatre, atd

‘ . Cemetenes) where the City charges a_ fee to customers to cover all or most of the costs assoolated with

. o provrdmg thege services. L : : '

The: govemment—wrde financial sta_tements can be found on pages 24-27; of this: report.

Y

Fund Fmancml Statements

tai,

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to. mamtam control Qver resources that ‘have’ been
. segregated for specific activities or ob_]ectrves As is the case with other state and local governments; the City
_— ensures and demonstrates comphance with legal requlrements through its use of fund accounting. Traditional
© users of governmental financial. statements will find the fund financial statements preseritation : more famrlrar
.than the- government—wrde ﬁnancral statements. The City has three types of funds ‘

Governmental Funds . ‘ - ' o

L

The Governmental Funds report “essentially the same fuucttons as the govemmental actwrtres in the-
government-wide financial statements. Hovyever the Governmental Fiind finaricial statements focus.on the
Y . - near-term cash: rnﬂows and' outﬂows and ‘'the amount of spendable. resources available at the end' of the.
BN fiscal year. This information is useful when evaluatmg the City’s near-terim ﬁnanemg needs. Because the
focus. of the fund statements is narrower than that of the government-wide statements, it is useful to
«compare the information presented in both the fund and ‘the. govemment—wrde statements. - By doing so,.
Lo readers may better understand the long-term impact of the, govemment 5 near-term ﬁnancmg decisions.
The ‘Governmental Funds. Balance -Sheet “and the Governmental Funds ,Statement of Revenues,
. Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances provrde a reconcrllatlon to facilitate the comparison between
B Governmental Funds and governmental activities. ‘.

0"

The ‘City’ mamtams nine individual Government Funds. Informatlon is presented separately 4n- ‘the
o - Govemnmental Funds Balance Sheet and'in the Goveramental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expendltures
and Changes in Fund Balances for the General and Debt Service' Funds both-of which are considered: maj or.
funds. Data from the other nine Governmental Funds are® combmed into a single, aggregated presentatlon
. Individual fund data for each of these Non-rhajor Goverrunental Funds - is provided in the forrn of
comblnmg statements elsewhere in this report. - : .

v
© : - LR

Coe _The basic Goverrimental Fund financial statements can be found on pages 28-31 of this.report. :

- X . \

. : 4 Proprietagg' meds ‘ . y Co T B

" The .City marntams two types of Propnetary Funds Enterprrse Funds and Internal- Servrce Funds
-Enterprise Funds are used-to report the same- functions presented: as the busmess-type activities. in. the |
govemment -wide Tinancial statements Information is presented separately in the Proprietary Statemént of
Net Assets and in the Proprietary Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
for-the Gas, Water, and ‘Wastewater operations, all of which are considered major funds., ‘Data from the
. other- three Enterprisc F unds are eombmed into'a single, aggregated presentatlon Indmdual fund data for



‘page 102 of this report ) - . ) ;o -

¢ o - u '

each of these Ncm-major Enterprise funds is prov:ded n the form of combmlng statements elséwhere in this
- 1eport.

Intemal Serwce Funds are used to account for the ﬁnancmg of goods or services prov1ded by one

department or, agency to. other departments or agencies of the City, or to other governments on a cost

reimbursement basis: Information is présented separately in the Propnetary ‘Funds Statement of Net Assets-

and in the Proprietary Funds Statement of Revenues, Expénses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets in a

single, aggregated presentation. The City maintains six Internal Service Funds: 1) Fleet Management 2).

Radio Maintenance, 3) Risk Management 4) Public Works Stores, 5) Electric Utility, and 6) Stores and

Transportatlon Individual fund data for each of these Non-major Internal Service Funds is provided as’

supplementary informatiori in the combining statements section in this report. .

The basic Propnetary Fund financ1a1 statements can be found on pages 32- 36 of t.hxs report

‘
f ’ . ¥ ' : B

F1duc1ar_y Fund o L o

1

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resoutces held for the benefit of partics outside the government.

The City maintains two Fiduciary Funds: 1) Trust Funds and 2) Agency Funds. Fiduciary Funds are not.

reflected in the govemment—w:de financial statements because the resburces of those funds are not
available to support the City’s own’ programs.

The basxc Flduc1ary Fund financial statements can be found on pages 38-39 of thls report.

While the total column on the Proprzeta.ry Funds financial statements  may be the same as the busmess-type actlvmes

‘column on the government-wide financial stdtements, the governmental. funds total colums requires a reconciliation *

to the. governmental activities column on the government-wide financial statements because of.the different
measutrement focuses (current financial resources versus total. economic resources) utilized by the two statements.
Specifically, the flow ‘of current financial resources measurément focus reflects bond proceeds and interfund
transfers as -other financing sources as well as capital expenditures and bond principal payments as expenditures.

* The reconciliation between the two bases.of accounting takes into accourit these and other differerices (e.g. capital

assets and long-term obligations). Reconciliation adjustments between: the business-type activities (government-

wide and enterpnse funds totdls) will- typ:cally only-occur if there is a need to redistribute excess incomer/loss for the’

internal service funds to the customers (including busxness—type actlvmes)

i) ' 4

Notes to the Fmanc:al Statements

. . The notes to the financial statements provide information that is essential for a full understandmg of the information
© provided In’ the: government-wide and fund financial statements. The ‘nofes also present certain required
"supplementary information. ) ’

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial -statements and actompanying notes, thls report presents certain reqmred‘
supplementary information concerning the City’s budget execution process, and progress in funding its obligation-to
provide pension’ benefits to its employees. "Required supplementary information can be found on page 94 of this
report. The combining statements referred fo earlier in connection with Non—major Governmental Funds, Enterprise
and Internal Service Funds are presented immediately followmg the requ1red supplementary 1nformat10n startlng on

r
~

Government—wnde Fmanclal Analys:s : ‘ . .

As noted earlier, net assets. may serve, over time, as a useful indicator of a govemment’s financial posmon In'the
case of the City, assets exceeded llabllmes by $649,636,610 at the June 30, 2008.

I
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‘The largest portlon of the City’s net assets (73 2%) reflects its mvestment in capital’ assets (eg: land, mfrastructure ) o

* buildings, machinery, and  equipment), less any related debt-used to acquire, those assets ihat is still outstanding. The -
City uses these capital- dssets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future

* spending. AIthough the City’s investment in it$ capital asséts is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that -

the resources needed to repay. this debt must be provided from other sources, sirice the capltal assets themselves T

cannot be used to liquidate these hablhtles

An additional portion of the City’s net assets (13. 9%) represents resources that are. subject to external restrictions on A
how they may be used. The femaining balance is un.restncted net assets (12. 9%) which may be used to meet the

A

government’s ongomg obligations to citizens and credltors

L

s

At the end of the fiscal year the City is able to report posmve balances in all three categorles of net assets both for -

_ the government asa whole as well as for 1ts separate govemmental and busmess-type activities, - : ot

' . Tablel . . . ' - C
Cltyolechmond's Schedule of Net Asscts : : T '
as of the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005 and 2004 - S : . E

. 2 (In Mlllions) ' “ o
v Goy'er‘no'lental ' - Busmess—"]"ypc * Total Primary Government T #
A . Activities. Activities B -, o - :

- " 2005 2004 . .2005 . ~  2004- 2005 T 2004 .-, '

Current and Other Assets $ 2639 $. 2714, 8% 2456 .3 . 1919 § 5095 5 4633 -
Capital Assets . 599.1° 583.2 823.4° 798.4° . 1,422.5. 1,381.6 D
Total Assets ' - $ 8630 . 8546 -% 10690 $ 9903 § '1,9320 § 18449 . -
. Current and Other Liabilities 120.2+ C 1254 136 59.4 193.8 1848 LT
‘Long-Term Debt 0ulstandmg 453.6 _478.8 635 0 © 5779 . 1;088.6 __1,056.7 _
Total Liabilities b 5738 8§ . 6042 "% 708 6- 8 «6373 §  1,2824 §- 1,415 .
Net Assets: ; - X .

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of - . : ' : L . =3

" Related Debt ’ 198.5 . . 1916 2711 2750 | 4756 466.6 i
Restricted : 50.0. 68.9 "40.0 .86 -90:0 77.5 R

Unrestricted | 407 {(10.1) 433 . 693 84.0 . 59.2
S ) -§ - 3604 % 3529 % 6496 § . 6033 s

Total Net Assets

v

2892 § 2504



! ‘ | .
S Table2 : . :
i ' City of Richmond's Schedule of Activities- . .~ .~ - "
) _ For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008 and 2004 . . T,
T ! ' (InMillions) . , . ' . . . ‘ )
i ' .
i R4 " ‘
) Govemmental | BusinessType " Total |-
"y ' ‘ Activities - “Activities Primary Government
N Revenues: N 2005 L2004 L, . 2005 2004 . 2005 v 2004
" . Program Revenues: p ’ . ' o ' .
Charges for Services _ $ 628 § 656 § 3186 § 2831 § 3814 § 3487 -.
" Operating; Grants and Centributions 1492 133.7 2 56 © 36 1548 ¢ 1373
) Capital Grants and Contributiors . 82 - Ws - = s 8.2 105
- General Revenves: . .« - LU T “ : o . .
Property Taxes 263- - .2141 . B 263 214]
7 Intergovemmental By . 06- - - - 139, 06
; Other Taxes 1082 - U2 - =k 108.2 111.2
. Tnvestment Income 15 04 -7 13 . 08" T 28 ‘12
. Miséellaneous 538" 471 . 38 . - 3n - 516 50.1
e Total Revenues.. 6239 § 5832 ST 3293 § 2905 § 9532 $° 8M™T -,
L . . .
, Expenses: "
P * Pritary Govemment;, ' o '
[ General Government 8297 1022 - T - ;829 102:2
C Public Safety and Judiciary . 1501 . 14710 - - 150:1 147.1,
Highway, Street, Sanitation, and Refuse * C e o803, 767 N 767
(" Human Services ' B ‘ 934 - 913 S |, 934 ?3.3
i Culture and Recreation Mo 48 . - - 149 243
-t * Education 1317 - 1378 S ) 13738
. Transportation ‘6.8 6.7 - - 63 6.7
o Interest and Fiscal Charges 42.9 40.5 - - 429 405
o " Business-type Acfivities - - 3007 2626 300.7 2626
et “Total Expenses o § 6030 $ 671§ 3007 $ 26268, 9037 §_ 8897
o Increase (decrease)in it asses before transfers, . ] . ‘
E. special item, and cxtraordinary item 3. 209 8 @39S 6 5 279 5 495 3 (160)-
- Transfers . - a1l CUIBO - @LD) (180) e -
3 Shegial ftem - Disaster Recovery ‘ .08 128 oo v T2 0.8 28 .
'f g . Extraordinary Item - Disaster Costs ‘ -(4.0) 4.9 L = ‘ P 1)} 14.7)
e Changes in Net Assets o : § 3885 @1®).8 153 99 & 463 8" 19
- Net Assets, Beginning of Year ’ 2504 - 278.2 3529 . 343.0 6033 ° 621.2
by Net'Assets, End of Year S 2892 $ 2504 S 3604 S 3529 S 6496 $ 6033
Lo
o
{7 . : -
1 ' A ¢
1 ‘ i .
il ,
L N
L , . .
i t -
Lo



Governmental Activities

Governmental Activities increased the City of Richmond’s net assets by $38,793,728. Revenues from governmental
activities including transfers and disaster recovery revenue associated with tropical storm Gaston totaled
$645,807,208; with property taxes (35.1%), other local taxes (16.8%), and operating grants (23.1%) being the major
revenue sources contributing over $483,000,000 of the City’s revenues.
$607,013,480, of which thirty-six percent was supported from program revenues and sixty-four percent from general
revenues. Expenses for Public Safety (25%), Education (22%), Human Services (15%), General Government

(14%), and Interest (7%) make up eighty-three percent of the total governmental expenses.

Expenses and Program Revenues — Governmental Activities (In Millions)

Revenues by Source — Governmental Activities

35.1%

16.8%

$160 -
$140 -
$120 A
$100 -
$80 -
$60 -
$40 -
$20 -
$0 -

2.2% 0-2% 8.30/0

Expenses for governmental activities were

T%

23.1%

H Expenses

B Revenucs

E Miscellaneous - 8.3%
M Transfers - 3.3%
O Charges for Services - 9.7%

O Operating Grants and Contributions - 23,1%
M Capital Grants and Contributions - 1.3%

B Property Taxes - 35.1%
B Other Taxes - 16.8%

O Intergovernmental Revenue - 2.2%
B Special [tem (Disaster Recovery) - 0.2%




Business-type Activities

Business-type activities increased the City of Richmond’s net assets by $7,478,187. At June 30, 2005, total
business-type net assets were $360,413,134 of which $40,067,236 was restricted for capital projects and
$43,272,098 was unrestricted. Revenues totaled $329,319,858, of which 98.5% percent is from charges for services
(program revenue). Total expenses were $300,711,000 and transfers out were $21,130,671.

Expenses and Program Revenues — Business-Type Activities (In Millions)
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< & B Revenues

Revenues by Source — Business-Type Activities

0.3%

1.7% 1.2%

E Miscellaneous - 1.2%
0,
96.8% B Charges for Services - 96.8%
O Operating Grants and Contributions - 1.7%

O Investment Income - 0.3%
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Fmancral Anazlysis. of the Fund Flnaneral Statements Lo
. As noted earlier, the Clty uses fl.md accountlng to ensure and demonstrate rcompllance with ﬁnance-related legal
requn‘ements :

v

Governmental Funds i
, The focus of the City of Rlchmond’s governmental funds is to provrde mformatlon ‘on near—tenn mﬂows outﬂows
and balances of- spendable resources: -Such information is useful in- assessing the City of Richmond’s ﬁnancmg .

, requirements. I particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a usefiil measure of a government’s net, resources
. avallable for;spending at the end:of the fiscal year - '
As of the, end of the currént ﬁscal year; the Clty of. Rlchmond s got'ernmental funds reported cOmblned endlng fund
balances of $129,393,048, a. decrease ‘of $13, 631 817 in comparison .with-the prior, year. Forty-four, percent
(356,763 333) constifuted unreserved fund balance, which is available for spendmg at the: government ] dlscretlon ..
The remamder of the fund balance ($72{629,715) is teserved to indicate that.it is not availablé for new spending | |
_because it-has already been committed to activities ‘such-as o 1) liquidate contracts, purchase orders; and other -

" obligations".of the pnor petiod: ($4,500 712), 2) to pay debt service ($1 480 501) or 3) for.a vanety of other
restncted purposes ($66 648 502) ., : ) , o v A
The General Fund is the chlef operatmg fusid of the City and as of June 30, 2005, the unreserved fund balance in'the
general fund was $45, 278, 440 the total fund.balance was $67 495,111, The ‘General Fund’51 liquidity can be
measured by comparing both the unreserved fund ‘balance and. fotal fund balarice:to . total fund expendltures
* Uniresérved fund balance represents erght percent-of the. total general fund expendltures, while total fund balance .,
represents: fourteen percent of thatsame amount. When transfers ourt-are added: to expenditures; the unreserved fund T
. balance represents eight percent of expendttures plus transfers, whlle thetotal fund represents thirtéen percent of this
amount. Fundifig for component units ($133, 796,941) represents the City’s support of_ 1) Public ‘Schools, -
($129,041,941), 2).Richmond Ambulance’ Authority ($3,290,000), and 3) Richmond Behavroral Health Authonty
($1 465, 000) .The. funding for. Richrilond Pubic Schools ($129,041,94)) represents the total fundlng ($135 260;381)
less the tfansfers from Richmond Public Schools to the City ($6,218,440).- Transfers out to other funds
($50,997,746) 1nclude General. Fund support. of 1) Debt.Service ($40,¢ 858,430) and 2) Grants ($9,573 060) ‘The
. remammg amount of the General Fund transfers out to'other funds ($566 256) is identified as 1nterfund actmty ,

L
v

The City’s General Fund revenues and other ﬁnanemg solirces, including specral 1tems were above the amended
budgeted appropnattons by $10,581, 884 (See Exhlblt H—l) Some of the key factors wefe: | ., -

, '
v ]
:

» City taxes ‘were above budget estnnates by $6 240, 692 ThlS ig prlmanly the result of addmonal real estate '
(§7,275,051) and local sales tax revenues- (51,640, ,604) that 'are offset by. réduction in revenues for |
.machinery and tools ($1 174,314), general utility sales tax ($1 669, ,694), - and penaltles and interest
(81,061,215). .

. lntergovemmental reveriues were below budget estimates by $2 894,732. Thisis pnmarrly the result of'the .
following; - . .

P 3

1. Social Serv:ces revenues ‘were less than budgeted by $4, 583 378 The agency d1d not spend full
- expendlture authorlzatlon and accordlngly, had equlvalent expendlture savmgs '

2 The above reducttons wete offset by : an increase.in State Aid to Loca11t1es revenues of §1 233 9 11.

e Fines and Forfeltures were above budget estimates: by $1,920, 791. These funds cime pnmarlly from
increases- in fines and fee colleetmns at"the Circuit Court ($1 171 739) and General District Court
($497,351). :

The City’s General Fund expendltures and other financing uses were under the amended budgeted approprxattons by
57, 091 ,986 (See Exh1b1t H-1). Some of the key factors were: . R . -

i
Y

'
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e  (General govemment expenditures- were. lower, than planned by $5, 143 696. ThlS is primartly the- result of
budgets. in excess of expenditures or déferral in expenditures for, the Department of .Information
.Technology- ($1 458,511); the Department of Rinance ($823,018), the Départment of Customer Service and
Organlzanonal Development ($588 739), and the Depanment of Communlty Development ($699 670).

. . ,Publlc Safety and Judtcrary expenditures exceeded the budget by $7,290, 146 The overages were notable
in' the City Shetiff @nd Jail budget ($4,296,465, pnmartly in 1nmate medlcal costs) and the Department of
- Police budget ($2,827, 686 prtmartly in overtlme) : ,

e - Human Servrces expendltures were lower than planned by $3, 173 000 This is prlmartly due to a budget in -

excess of $2,528,408 of expenditures for the Department of Social Services. -As, previously noted, the.
unexpected budget authonty led to an 1ntergovernmental revenue shortfall relative.to budget for Social
Services, _ Do ) - o

-

. Non—Departmental expendltures were lower than planned by 33, 349,190, ThlS is prtmarlly due’ to'a budget
. in excess of expenditures for payments to other governmient agencies (33,159,346) which was primarily a
result of ‘less than anticipated expenditures for Richmond Metropolitan Authority (RMA) and. some
personnel reserves. In addition, retiree’s health care’ was lower than planned by . ($609 639) These items

are offset by an’ overage notable in Tax Relief for the Elderly ($429; 480).

T -

The. Debt Servrce Fund ‘has a total fund balance of $1 491 962 of which §1, 480 501 is, reserved for the payment of :
- debt servwe Pnnmpal Rettrement also increased durtng the current perlod (82, 269; 787) ‘

e The Capital ProJects Funds have & total fuhd balance of $48,468, 982 all’ of which is reserved for capital pro_]eets

The net decrease in fund balance during the current year in the capital projects funds was $18 511,419. For fiscal-
year 2005 there were no significant debt issues or refundlugs Capttal outlay totaled $43 109, 262.

il

Utility Proprnetary Funds

\
e

The City of Rlehmond’s Department of Public Utilities (DPU) contmues to show an ever-tmprovmg ﬁnan01al

picture. In 2004-05 revenues increased at a higher rate:than operating expenses when' compared to'the prior year and

we continue to see increases in our customer base. These.two. factors were integral to the Ctty of Richmond’s
upgraded bond rating, Powered by nearly 600 dedtcated employees and led by a strong management team thesé
trends are expected to contmue . ) . . . ) .

.

.~For fiscal year 2005 (FY 2005), net income before op’erating tranSfers showed an increase:of $2.4 million or 19:6% -

compared with fiscal year 2004 (FY 2004). Combined operating revenues increased $7.8 million or 4.8% (net of gas
purchases), but this was offset by an increase.in total operating expenses of §5.1 million or 4.2% (net of gas costs)
and an increase 1n non-operating fevenue of $3. 3 million or 56.5%; however, this to was offset by an increase in
non-operatmg expenses of $3.6 million or 11.7%. (Note that the cost of purchased gas is recovered dollar for dollar
through the purchased gas ad]ustment (PGA) therefore changes in thescost of gas from year to year do not impact

' net income.)

-

“ Gas revenues (net of: gas purchases) increased. $6.2 miilion or 10 8% from FY 20[}4 ThlS was due primarily to an

crease in rates. of 8.5% as’ well as an increase in.our customer base of 1.1%. Whlle water revenues remamed flat,
wastewater revenues 1ncreased $2 5 m1lhon or 5:4% due prtmanly t0'3 rate increase of 6.0%:. .

5 .
v

_— Operatmg and maintenance (O&M) expenses lncreased in a variety of categones, pnmartly led by a $3.4 or 31 3%
increase in external contractor costs. - This overall i increase was partlally offset by a reduction of $1.2 million or

19.7%. in total dollars taken into rate stabilization and a decrease in power usage of $400kor 5.3% Deprectatton

. expense, increased $1.6 million or 5.9% over FY 2004 as it includes the first full year of $28.4 million of net
- additions -to plant placed in service during FY. 2004 and a paitial year’s depreciation on $33. 2 million’ of net
" additions to plant’ placéd in service during FY. 2005. Combmed Payment in Lieu of Taxes and Ltcenses increased

BT

$1.8 million or.9.4% over FY 2004

15
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Non- operatmg revenues 1ncreased in FY 2005 by $3.3 m11110n or 56.5%. "This was due prlmarlly to recewmg 2.0

million in reimbursements related ‘to storms Isabel and Gaston and other’ miscellaneous not-grant momes In
addition, there was an increase in capitalized interest of $0.7 million or 23.5% as well as an increase in interest
income of $0.6 million-or 70. 7%. Non—operatmg expenses 1ncreased in FY 2005 pnmanly ‘due to an increase.in
interest on long-terrn debt of $3.6 million or 13.1%. .

3

Ongomg cost contamment combined with the efficiencies gamed through the 1mplementatxon of new technologles

enables the DPU to' maintajh its strong -financial base. This allows the DPU to contmue to address mgmﬁcant‘

) 1

1nfrastructure upgrades and generate desued findncial results w1th moderate rate increases in the future -

General Fund Budgetary nghllghts Lo

' Differences between original and the final amended budget are the result of an increase of $13,278;394 in addmonal

appropriations.  Of this increase, $6,127,056 was funded from FY"2004 appropriations. for’ obligations incurred in
FY 2004 with final payments in FY 2005. An additional $5,892, 522 from fiscal year 2004 excess funds was

appropriated for-warious programs in fiscal year 2005 $174,146. in state revenue and $944,670 in additional

F

delifiquent real estate also funded increases. , The remalmng $140, 000 was funded by unant1c1pated special fund’

- balancetransfer revenue.

N 1
¢

The increases (reductlons) to the City agencies appropnat:ons are mdlcated below.

1

Gcr_lera] Govemment : K ST ‘ § 5, 035 389

- Public Safety and Judiciary C 42455527
Highways, Streets, Sanitation and Refuse . 7,558, 372 ;
‘Human Services ‘ 519,950,

+ Culture and Récreation . , ‘ ‘ (4,685,794)

- Non-Departmental . 604,950

o - ... $_13,278394



|

o " Table3
City afkidmnnd's Budgetary Comparison

5282

GeneralFund - ., ) ‘
, FortheEsleearmdedJunem,ZmSandm . e -
' : ) . (En Millions) o
\ Original Budget Arrended Budget ' Actus] * Positive (Negative) Vamiance
. 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 204 2005 2004

Revenues; T . o . : :
 Property Taxes § 2181 § 286 § 2182 s 209 § 263 § 221 % 81 § 12 .
Other Taxes 1092 104.2 1101 104.3 1082 1051 (19) 0.8
Interpovemmental 1166 1119, 1163 123 -7 139 1105 29y L9
Tnvestrrent Income 02 02 02 02 v 02 02 -
‘Miscellaneons 842 . 212 8.l gL 872 . 190 © 3l @1
Other Finencing Sources. - 13 80 75 8.1 135 84 6.0 L 03
Special ltem - Disaster Recovery, = - - - 142 . (17 128 (1 )

Total Revetraes ‘§ 5356 S 5141 S 539 S 531 $ 5474 $§ 581 5. 105 5 (30)
" Expemses; - .

. General Govenment 528 496 578 549 527 502 51 47
Public Safety and Judiclary . 1250 - 138 1292 1300, 136.5. 1305 73 . @
Highway, Strect, Sanitation, and Refise . 469 453 544 . 455 538 434 06 21
Hiaren Services 662 60.5 6.8 619 - 636 ' 509 32 .20
Culture and Recreation 216 212 190 ' 231 180 21 . 10
Non-Departmental 290 206 - 296 28.1 22 .252 34 29
Other Financing Uses . 1921 - 1813, 1920 1812 191.0 1822 J I i)}
Extracrdiruary ltem - Disaster Costs o - 147 - .7 - )

Total Expenses § 5356 § - 5113 5489 § ' 5394 % 5418 § 71 08 112

r

For analysis on signiﬁcani budgetarif variances between the final amended budget and actual restilts,"see page 14.
For analysis on significant budgetary variances between the original and the final amended budget, see page 16.

1
'

.Capital Assets and Debt Administration

\

| Capital Assets S S ' , :

v
'

As of June 30, 2005, “the’ City’s investment in capltal assets for its govemmental and business’ type actlvltles

- amounted to $1.4 billion (net of accumulated deprecmtlon) * Included in the capital assets investment are land

buildings and system improvements, machinery and equipment, works of art/historical treasures, improvements
other than buxldmgs park facilities, roads, highways, and bridges. The 'total increase in the City’s investment in
capital assets, net of depreciation, for the current fiscal year was $40.9 million (less than a 2.7% increase for
governmental activities and a 3.0% increase for busmess-type activities), . . ‘

.

Major capltal asset expendltures dunng fiscal year 2005 included the foIlowmg

. Renovation of the’ Mam Street Multl-Modal Center in the- downtown area,: with conslructlon 1n progress at
June 30, 2005 of $11.4 million. * - - ., v . .

»  Renovation of Clty Hal] with construotion in progress at June 30, 2005 of $9.8 mi‘llion.

s . New Qourt Fgcili}ies w%th con_sl:ruction in progress at Jone 30, 2.005 of $1.8 million.-

. Reno_\-/z.t_tions to the City Jail wilh'constl:uctiou in progress of $0.6 million at Juné 30, 2005. )
., Major buildings renova_fions of $0.8 milli.on ooliars_ at Juoe 30, 2005.

17 Lo



* " - Various. mfrastructure and system: 1mprovements prlmanIy for-the Gas Water and Wastewater utilities at a
cost of $21.8 million, $17 9 mllhon and $9 5 million, respectwely

4

13

Additional information on the- Clty 8 cap:tal assets can be found in Note 7 on pages 66-68 of this report

- TabIe 4

. g City of Richmond's Capital Assets )
) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005 and 2004

. (InMillions)

*, Govemmental Activities

' Business-type Activities - - Total
L ’ o 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
_ Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated: ' ] . ' Co c -
Lani ad Land Improvements 8T 218 2o s, 100 S 82 0§, 3L 0§ 292
Construction In Progress ’ © 81.0 802 -7 . 1144 804 T 1954 . 1606
Works.of Art / Historical Treasures - 2.6 s 1.2 T - 2.6 1.2
‘. _Total Assets Not Being Depreciated : 104.7 1024 1244 88.6 229.] 191.0
Capital Assets ﬁéing Depreciated: i ! T - ' : r
Infrastructure : . 6641 654.1 T - 6641 6541
Buildings and Stryctures ’ 353.4 3275 974.8 9962 't 1,32872-, 13237
,Eqmpmem ) 96.1 94.] } 552, .59, 1513 100.0
I.mprovements other than Buildings -43 . 4.3 - . -- .43 . 43.
Total Other Assets e Li179 1,080.0 -1,030.0 - _ 1,002.1 21479 " _ 20821
. Less Accumulated Depreciation For: | . ‘ . .
" Infrastructure ’ i . 3724 7 360.7 .- - 3724- 360.7
Buildings and Structures S 195.0, 186:9. 289.1 291.7 484.1- 4786
_ Equipment . . . 55.6 '51.3 419 06 97.5 <519
Improvements other than Buildings 0.5 0.3 T .- = 205 0.3
Total Accurnulated Depreciation : 623.5 599.2 . 3310 2023 954.5 8915
_Total Capital Assets Bemg Deprecmted Net . 4944 _ 480.8 1699.0 709.8 1,193.4 1,190.6
Total Capital Assets,Net . - $ 599.1 § . 5832 .$ 8234 § 7984 §$ 14225 3 13816
i ) - , [N v d - - N . o
A"
2

18
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Long-‘TermDebt o S T " _—

v . N
- “ ' 3
1

At the end of the current fiscal 3 year the Clty had total debt’ 0utstand1ng, exclusive of compensated absences, of .
. §1, 024,569,838 compnsed mainly of General Obligation Bonds-($655,195, ;440); Public Utility Revenue Bonds

($320 815 :597), Notes Payable ($12 595 000) and Certificates of Partlelpatlon ($17 585 000) oL

. t "
' - . g *
(- « ~ .

= P ! -~

. In July 2004 credit aualysts from the three major bond-ratmg agenc1es et with the City pl’lOI‘ to, the 2004 Pubhc ’
_ Utility. Revenue bond issue. Standard and Poors™ upgraded the City’s Ut1hty Revenue debt. from A+ to AA-, while -
- Moody’s and’ Fitch Ratmgs reaffirmed the, City’s General Obligation debt ratmgs of Aa3, AA, and AA, respectlvely
" Sited in the credlt Teports were the City’s diverse economy, effective management, consmtent financ1al performance,

and prudent debt-and ﬁnanc1a1 pohcles S . Lo

The Clty s Governmental and Busmess—type General Obhgatlon Bonds are secured by the full fan‘,h and. credxt of the

.- fa

City and are payable from taxes levied on all property Jocated w1th1n the City. General Obhgatlon Serial Equipment e

Notés payable and obligations-undet capital leases are payable from related General Governmental and Internal
Servxce Fund revenues respect:vely The full faith and credit of the C:ty pledge the payment of notes payable ’

I 1
] . N a

ToMlmg—TamI)ethbhgaums, 00§ 476700138 $ . 8690462 S DO030T0 | § 0 452487530 § 46372877

B

Pﬁi’ranovernnnnt-‘Bsiness—TypeAcﬁviﬁs ' L Cor .
General Obligation Bonds: S0 o P
Gs A D 1% 7.1 B S - % 4348809 $ 110530764 $ . 4309490
Water - K e 89544848 s - . - 38BS7 - 8572131 . ' 3090277
" Wastewater - J - 111~ S o= 2714456 ¢ 45436568 2,572,037
Otha'NamorEntelpnscFmds , 17427618 . 157549 ©IA95804 . -17507310 . C T 1261826
Acctiéted Value - CapmlAppmaum L L TSR T TR
Gas , i T34,784 588800 . - izmss -
Water .o, SLI78552 - L o000 - - . s -
Wastewater . T 480705 385 w2 Y- - = - 865907 1. —_
Revenue Bonds: S o o . o . o l :" . ,
Gs T . 15792877 LOTO92010 0L 812929 12207698 | ° 5021
‘Water ' . . ) © 36275082, | . 55788313 67,890 - .° 91995305 1,068,601
. Vastewater . - 104,823,666 4769678 *‘"2,850,210 106,743,134, -3,022425
- . Capital Leases: - N T ot T W
-Other Nonrwjor Enterprise Finds b 2253952, - 18, 819 2070133 T . 207968 .
Totaum'g-Tei&hDethbﬁgaﬁqns R o 531039,68i $: 7114649, "8 16,797424 $ - 586388756 -$ 16.507,745‘

: o TableS T L. P S Yo,
thofmcmmnd'sung-'rennnebtomgaﬂom o ,’ ) " _ E
“For the Fiscal Year Ended Juné 30, 2005 R : ;
Primary Goverriment : Governtnental Activides -~ - 7. . o
. ; % . . T . - . '
.+ - Balanée ‘ . Balanee + ' DweWihin
. ) - July 1, 2004 Additions’ , -~ Deletions Juneso w05 One Year
General Obligation Bonds/BANs® <8 T A8oIsTIS 0 . = § 38683400 8 3_89,39_2,375‘ $ 33,106,581
* Premiurn on Debt Issued L 12034206 - 655683 . 11378343 655683
,Accreted Value - Capital Appreciation o .. .' AR ) e
Gerieral Obligation Bonds * ' I 11X < D X
" General Obligation Seria] Equipment - . : L oL o e -
Notes Payable ° 1820000 C 000000 1,820,000, 7000000 - ¢ 1400000 .
Certificates of Participation” o ‘. 18225000 . - —_— G000 . 17585000 . ¢ . 655000
+'Qualified Zone Acaderny Bonds 7 S 2142167 1,536,671 14045 . <, 3564603 ., 192480
Virginia Public Service Authority Bonds - S 1L X.73 N — 2132, 302389 ¢ - 221,875 -
Section 108 Notes Payable ., - © - " 6,125,000 ‘ S B0 o 5505000 . 575,000
Compensated Absences | ¢+ - . ¢ ' 14242556 9793 o 0 5901 . 14306448 . . 9414221 "
. Capital Leases Co o 667,067 = 7800 _ 434,258 - © 142,037

vo.

4



.

The C1ty has no overlappmg debt with othér Jurlsdrctlons ‘During _'thle current fiscal year the '&Jity issu,e_dv'th“e-‘.

followmg . » o
L $67 7 m1lhon of Pubhc Utrhty Revenue Bonds Serles 2004 to ﬁnance a portion of the. capltal 1mprovement
_.pmJects of the City’s Natural- Gas Water and Wastewater Uulltles ‘
e $15 mllllon of Qualified Zone Academy Bonds Series 2004 0 fund speclﬁc Rlchmond Pubhc Schools
) capltal projects;

»  §7.0'million five-year Serial Equipment Notes to finance ﬁscal year purchases of various eqmpment and
veh1cles purchased by the General Fund and Fleet Management Intemal Serv1ce Fund.

Enterprlse Funds and Internal Service Funds pay, from user fees the pr1n01pa1 and 1nterest on certain General

. Obligation Bonds; Revenue and Refunding Bonds, and Serial Equipment Notes issued for the: ‘program purposes of °

each fund. All other monies for, the principal and interest on such debt are appropnated m the General Fund budget

No long—term bonds are sold to ﬁnance current operations. . )

] report

.

Economlc Factors and Next Year 5 Budget Rates

Durlng the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, the Clty expenenced gradual improvement in the regional economy, and

‘_dlscreuonary spending in general, ‘and continued growth in- real estate revenue resulting from a’strong real estate
market and citywide reassessment efforts: Real’ estate’ tax collections were approximately $12. 7 million more than -
collections for FY 2004. The growth in assessed real estate values allowed the.City t0 lower the real estate tax rate
from $1.37955 per $100 in assessed- value to $1.33 per $100 during FY: 2005. Meanwhile; revenue shortfalls
relative to budget ‘were recognized i in machinery and tools taxes (approx1mately 51.2 mllhon) and general utlhty
sales taxes ($1.7 million). . ‘ -

N

In preparing the blennlal fiscal plan for FY2006 FY2007 the City faced 2 number of mereased demands for

. resources, most notably. a 26% increase in the fringe benefit cost for retlrement for active-emplovees, an increased -
* need for Public Safety (partlcularly in Police and Sheriff and Jail services), the continiuation -of new Education

- initiatives, and an incfease, in debt service costs. To address these needs without & planned increase in the real estate -
tax rate' of SI. 33 per $100 a number of cost efficiencies are planned (including the consolidation and elimindtion of
several City agencies), while user fee rates for refuse collection and recychng were mcreased effective July 2005,
Furthermiore, the FY2006 general. fund budget i is supported by $6.2° mrlhon in previously accumulated Rlchmond
.Public Schools fund balance that was recorded: as general fund revenue in FYZOOS as a one-txme source for the
subsequent year’s budget for Educatron . ‘ , ] PR ST

\'7

respectlvely, while gas- utility rates increased by 3. 0% The Director of Public Utlhtles calculates the cost of natural
* gas each month and prepares a pro forma forecast of total gas commodity cost. The. PCG:rate may mcrease or
_ decrease durmg the year to recover the’cost of purchased gas. Rates are designed'to cover the costs of service and a
_reasonable rate of return -across an array of residential, commercial, ‘industrial, and governmental customer classes
for each utility. ‘Significant capital projects associated with these rates include: New Gas Main Extensions ($4 3
- imjllion}, Gas Mains and Services Replacement Program- ($15. 7 million); Cleaning and Lining of.Cast Iron Water
Mains'($1:9 million), Samtary Sewer Rehabllltatlon ($15.1 million), 36" Huguenot Road Water Transmiission Main -
($12.3 m1lhon) Pumping Process Control Phase I ($l 4 nnlllon) Raw Water Pumpmg Improvements ($2 0 mllllon)

i

20

' Additional detalled mformatlon on the C1ty 8 long-term debt can be “found i in Note 8 beglnmng on page 69 of thrs ‘

e
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CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA ‘
| STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30, 2005

_Primary Government = ° .-

24

Governmental © . Business-type , :
Activities " Activities Total Component Units
-Assets N ’ ' ‘

. Crirrent Asdsets: ) o e, .- R .
Cash and Cash’ ‘Equivalents (Note 3) 3 48,306,956 §- 115,827,500° 164,134,456 - §. . - 18,560,721
Receivables | (Net of Allowance for Doubtful Accounts): . oL . . . e

Taxes and Licenses * . | 61,760,416 ° L - 61,760,416, - -
Accounts ) . 42,084,116 34,158,434 - 76,242,550 . 26,286,023
Internal Balances, Net. 3,750,196 (3,750,196). | - S -
, Due Frem Primary Government - ' C - - T 22,653,913
Due From Component Units . 967,084 - - - 967,084 ‘ -
Due From Other Governments (Note 5) |, g ' 30,886,960 o - 30,886,960 *10,287,120 -
_Inventories of f Materialg and Supplies - 359, 418 h 21,460,504 - 21,819,922 448,680,
Prepaid Assets ) : . .. 629510 5222,157 5,831,667 -
Other Assets. ! ) .- LR 38, 414 , - 39414 = 855,797
" Non-Current Asgets: c ’ . e T e
W Restricted Assets - Cash and Investments (Note 3) 60,050,531 - 45,821,943 105,872,474 - * 7 14,755,550
" Advances To Component Units 1,300 .. ’ - ’ 1300 - o -
- Deferred Expenses - 26,837,003 26,837,093 ! -
. Notes Recelvable (Note'6) : . 1,543,100 - 1,543,100° . .
Mortgage Loans Receivable and Other Non—Current Assets 7 Ve ; - ) s 70,828,502
Due From Component Units, - L 13,494,278 =, . 13494278 -
Total Non-Current Assets 75,089,208 - . 72,659.036 - . . 147,748,945 85,584,052
Capital Assets, Net (Note 7: . ’ _— T
Land and Warks of Art/Historica] Treasures . 23,764,904 8,233,390 . 31,998,294 22,839,353
Infrastructure, Net 291,702,454 - - 261,702,454 . 272,597
Buildings, Structures, and Equipment, Net. ’ 202,655,637 . 701,199,829 503,855,466 _ ° 139,026,758
Construction in 1 Progress - 80,983,799 , 113,962,101 194,945,900 26,272,542
“Total Capital Assets, Net A 599,106,794 | 823,395,320 . 1,422,502,114 191,411,250:
Total Assets ’ 862,980,073 - 1,068,972,755 1,931,952,828 356,087,556

B
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s Liabilities
v Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Accrued Liabilities

Due To Primary Government
Pl . Due To Other Governments

Due Te Varions Agents
Due To Component Units .

P, Accrued Interest on Bonds and Notes Payable
| Deferred Revenue ' -

' Advances from Primary Govcrnment

General Obligation Bonds, Certificates of Pammpauon,

Serial Notes Payable, and Capital Leases

Revenue Bonds Payable

Compensated Absences

Other Liabilities and Claims Payable
Non-Current Liabilities (Notes 8 and 10):
. " 'Liabilities to be Paid From Restricted Assets:
i L Customers' Deposits a
-Accreted Interest on Bonds Payable

General Obllgatlon Bonds, Certifidates of - Pamclpauon, .

Serial Notes Payable and Capital Leases-
Due To Primary Government
Revenue Bonds Payable !
Deferred Revenue ' , *
Compensated Absences -
M Other Liabilities and Claims Payable
' Early Retirement Plan Net Pension Obligation

Total Liahilities

T Net Assets
. Invested In Capital Assets, Netof Related Debt
O Restricted for:
Capital Projecits
Debt Service
Customers' Deposits
Lot Permancnt Funds:
Expendable
Nonexpendable
Unrestricted

o - Total Net Asséts

.
_. R : .

Primary Government,

, EXHIBIT A

.

Governmental Business-type .

Aclivilies Activities ~ Total Coniponent Units
13,351,534 24,495,906 37,847,440 10,508,939
6,791,079 7,162,648 13953,727 26,598,085 -

- - - 967,084

3.671,987 413,046 4,085,033 3,922,910
7,698,007 - 7,998,007 . -

| 22,653,913 » - 22,653,913 - -
© 13,401,252 13,519,073 ° 26,920,325 -

: - L - - 5,304,037
- - ' 1,300

36,958,656 11,441,598 48400254 575,456

: - 5,066,147 . 5,066,147 -
9,414,221 1,425,084 10,843,305 2,386,482
5,920,003 - 5,920,003 4,535,583

- 5,754,707 5,754,707 3,415,054

- 188,824 T 4,307,043 4,455,867 -
401,033,602 249,824,517 - 650,858,119 " 134,702,693
- - = 13,494,278

) - 315,749,451 315,749,451, R
29,565,733 68,985,275, - 98,551,008 e, -
4,892,227 411,126 5,303,353 13,152,815
17,915,559 - 17,915,559 876,807

- . - . 4,733,145

- 573,756,597 . - 708,559,621 1,282,316,218 223,441,214
198,513,944 277,073,300 - 475,587,744 78,517,331
748,094,732 40,067,236 - 88,161,968 - 7,117,946
* 1,480,501 - 1,480,501 153,947 -
. - - : - 347,990
426,563 - 426,563 621,534
36,998 . - 36998 - 203,472
40,670,738 43,272,008 83,942,836 45,694,122

289223476 §

360.413.134 §

649,636,610 § 132,646,342

Fs
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGIN[A .
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES v
" "For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

v : - Program Revenues

Operating Grants and . Capital Grants and -

Functions/Program Activities - ) '+ Expenses Charges for Services "Confributions Contributions
Frimary Government; . \ L ) . -
' Governmental: N A ! . '
chnera‘] Govem:ri_ent H - B2R91,797 % "4, 636438 8 18,461,928 ¢ -
Public Safety and Tudieiary 150,077,017 ~ ll 654,276 27,899,202 . -
Highways, Streets, Sanitation and Refuse , 80,327,346 8,383,842 19,774,885 18,227,292
Human Sérvices: LT . 93,480,016 564,628 " 81,740,899
Cu]ture and chrcat]on 14,514,204 561,893 . 1,290,535 | -
Edueation ' CasLssLsor T .- ‘ - -
Transportation 6,766,376 ' - - -
Interest'and Fiscal Charges 42,868,983 - =, ' - -
B Total Governmental Actwnies . ' 602,993,240 62,801,077 . 1 49,167,449 8,227,292
Business-type: ' .
Gas - 207,682,064 221,308,436 767,007 -
Water . 39,004,189 44,853,864 ‘.7 83158 -
Waslewatel;" 45,976, 722'_' 48,599,478 N 1,840,285 , B -
Coliseum . R 4, 973 332 - 2,068,567 1,338,615 - - -
Landmark Theater - 1,730,408 - 390,879 744883 -
) + Cemeteries " N . , -1,344,285, , 1,412,205 | 84,014 B -
Total Business-type Activitics \ o 300,711,000 " 318,634,429 * 5,607,052 --
Total Primary Government _ $ 503,704,240 §~ 381435506 § 154,774:501  §

Component Units:
School Board
« Richmond Ambulance Authority
™ " Hospital Authority of Richmarnd
" Portof Richmend Commission

Richmond Behavioral Health Au_thon'iy :
Richmond Redevelopment and Housing Authority .
- Bread Street Comnunity Development Authority

Total Component Units

The :icgompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. \

+
't

307,485,679

3,953,152 85,356,027,
12,927,321 2 7,210,168 - S
' 9,013,692 8,773,009 - -
1,802,046 1,014,994 - - 284,500
29,938,577 13,740,643 ' < ' 14,614,061 .-
64337998 ~ " 12,522,076 - 41,976,266 7,871,495
14,579,761 3,351,708 L - -

8227292

5035556

§ 430,095,074 § ° 50,565,750 § 141,946,354 §

A
13,191,551

v
B

' " General Revenues: - . ' .
Clty Taxes . " N
Real Estate .
Sales-1% Logal
" Personal Praperty
Machmery and Topls
General Utlhty Sales
Bank Stock
Prepared Food
Admissions
. Delitiquent Tax Payments-All Classes
. ° Private Utility Poles and Conduits  ~
. Penalties and Interest
* “Titling Tax-Mobile Home
State Recordation
Property.Rental 1% Y
Vehicle Réntal Tax
Rolling Stock Tax = > . .

Total City Taxes o .
Intcrgovernmental Revcnue Not Resmctcd 10 Specific Programs
Payment From Primary Govemmem . '
Investment Eatnings
Miscellaneous

Transfers :

: Spcclal and Extmordmary Ttems:
SpecialTtem - Disaster Recoyery (Note 16)
Special Iiem - Capital n-ansfer—col]ateral in exces.v. of related debt (Note 7)
Extraordmary Liem - Disaster Costs (Note 16)

) Total Exn'aormna:y Iterns, Net
: Total General Revenues, Transfers, and Spcma] and Exn‘anrdmary Items
Chaages m Net Assets N

K

. Net Assets -JBcginm‘ng nf Year

. Net Assets - Endof Year . l ) '
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'\' < ' ] ) 3 )
B v N ] . i
¢ - E ". . . EXHIBITB
s ) ! ) L. ) o ';I o -
, . < Net [Expenséstﬁcvenucs and Changes in Net Asscts
. .. Governmental v Business-type ' . S ,
: * Activities Activities “Totals Component Units
’ . B N K R . Y
) $.  (22,799431) § - % (2g.79i431) 5 e o=
v (110,523,539) (110,523,539) - -
(43.941327): - L -(43.941,327) L=
. (11,174,489 - (11,174,489) o
) {13,061,776) - (13,061,776)
St d3Lg6L50]) - (131,661.501)
(6,766,376) (6,766,376) O -
(42,868983) . - (42,868,983) -
(382.797.422) ! - -(382,797.422) -
-, . R B > . v < g
o= 14,394,469 - 14,394,469 * B
, e 6,681,832 6,681,832 -
. - T 4,463,041 4,463,041_; s o
- (1,566,150) (1,566,1500 -
- (594,646) (594,646) ° ' -
- . 151,934 * 151,934 =
- - © 23,530,481 23,530,481 - -
| (382,797,422) " 23,530,481 (359,266,941) . =
- S A - N {(213,140,944) °
‘ - - - (5,721,153)
. . - ' - - (240,683)
.- - - (502,552)
* A - L - * (1,583,873)
- - - "(1,968,161)-
; - - - (1,228,053)
- = 2238419
. 181,172,923 e 181,172,923 -
s . 26,302,100 - 126,302,100 =’
©T 45,091,878 SR 45,001,878 -
14,618,256 - - 14,618,256, © - -
C . 3L124,564 - 31,124964 .-
s 2,504,338 . - ., 2,904,338 -
' 16,028,093 - 116,028,093 g -
© L 1,195,603 - 1,195,603 . -
0 9,589,601 - 9,589,601 . -
© 150,549 - . 150,549« -
) 4,242,744 Lo a4 . T -
. lesaz L : 16942 . -
. 609,343 - . 609343~ T, -
.+ 120,684 - _ 120,684, 1 " -
..o 864415 - T 864,415 . -
456,562 ° - 466,562 -
334,498,995 o ' 134,498,995 - - -
13,860,051 - - 13,860,051 67,701,438
" e T = e 138,606,103
" 1,501,725 1,285,313  °© . 2,787,038 1,370,223
, ' 53,846,842 | 3,793,064 57,639,906 13,459,327
* 21,130,671 {21,130,671) - -
’ 713,106 773,106 ‘ -
S - . e . (38434,221)
{4,020,240) - «(4,020,240) .
@215 (3,247,134 (38,434,221)
- 421,591,150 . (16,052,294) 405,538,856 182,702,870 -
. 38,793,728 7,478,187 - " 46,271,915 (41,688,549) - . .,
o 250,429,748 352,934,947 603,364,695 174334801 ¢
$- 280223476 $. 360413134 § 649,636,610 § . 132646342 -
\ n o . ;
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5

"Daé.To Other Governments (Nate 5)

’

Assels
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 3) -
"Receivables (Net of Allowance for Doubtful Accounts):
' Taxes and Licenses :

_Accounts .
Due From Other Funds . (Note 4)
Due From Component Units
, Dut From Other Governmerils (Note 5), LV -
' Restrictéd Assets - Cash and Investments (Nole 3y
Advances To Other Funds (Note 4)
Advances To Component Units ;
Notes Receivable (Note 6) ° et

- Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Ba]ances . -

.. Liabilities:

Accounts Payable v

Accrued Liabilities "

Due To Other Funds (Note 4) ’ *

Due To Various Agents -
Due To Component Units o : I

Deferted Revenue

Total Liabilities: * -

Fund Balances: -
Fund Balanée - Reserved (Note 9): -
Gexeral Fund® o
Debt Service Fund  ° v e
NonMajor - Capital Pro_]ecls Funds .
~ NonMajor - Permanent Fundg. Co
+ Fund Balance - Unreserved:”
Designated “for Spectf' c Projects (Note 9)
General Fund' »
NonMajor Speclal Revenue Funds
" Undesignated: ' Lo
». General Fund : N
Debt Service Fund

Total Fund Balances .
. Total Llabllmes and Fund Balances

- ' v . : . %

.
L

+

.

U

CITY OF.RICHMOND, VIRGINIA *
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS,

June 30 2005

+

EXHIBIT'C

’

. The accompanying notes are an‘integral part of the basic financial statements. °
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o

aa -

L . . vOt}_xer‘GOVemmental o o
General _ Debt Service *+ Funds . ' Total
s ansaes s s 95850 s 36,699,045
61,760,416 _ - 61,760,416
35,308,082 577,124 3,012473 " 38,897,679
. 7490582 K - ot 7,490,582
14,461,362 - e 14,461,362
v 21,429,862 o= 9438932 30,868,794
' A - - - 1,480,501 " 58,570,030 60,050,531
. 150 - © - S 180
1,300 ¢ - - . « 1,300
1,543,100  « - ' - 1,543,100
$. 160120049 § 2,057,625 § 80,505,285 + § 251,772,959
et ¥
. ! ~ ) i
S 0372483 8 L5130 8 2,892,593 § 12,270,206
. 5,519,035 « - 309,020 . 5828085
D 560,533 - 2,183,754 .+ 7 2,744,287
T 3,638,196 - 30,602 . 3,668,798
T,998,007 _ =L - L. 7,998,007
22,653,913 2 - . 22,653,913
52443304 _ t - T 14,773,341 67,216,645
101,624,038, 565.663" 20,189,310 . 122,379,911
2 ' . ‘
22216671 - - - 22,216,671
: - 1480501 - - - . 1,480,501
- - 48,468,982 - ' 48,468,982
- -t 463,561 . 463,561
6,218,440 S - 6,218,440
. - + 11,473,432 11,473,432
39,060,000- " =, - < 39,060,000
B 11,461 : I 11461
67,495,111 1,491,962 " . 75 129,393,048
$ 165,120,049 § 2057625 % 80,595.285] -8 . 251.772.950 - -

v,



‘ “ CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
: R.ECONC]L]AT]ON OF THE STATEMENT OF NET ‘ASSSETS. TO THE BALANCE SHEET.
-, GOVERNMENTAL 'FUNDS"
' For the Flscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net asscts are different because:
Total fund balances for govemmental funds

Capital assets used in gevernmental activities are fot financial resources and therefore are not

reported in the funds. Those assets conmsl of ) . ’ . L .
Land - . : -3 723,666,904
.+ Infrastructure, net ) o o . <. 291,702,454
Buildings, structures, and equipment, “net, < : ’ : .-+ 157,650,165
. Construcuon in prugress ’ : . . : - 77,653,304
Some of the City's taxes wnll be collected after year-end, but are not avaifable soon enough to- pay for* - N '
. the currem pcnnd's expenditures and therefore are reported as deferred revenue in the funds. )
Long-term liabilities, mcludmg bnnds payable, are not due and payable in the current pmod and
therefore are not reported in-the govemmemal funds. Those liabilities consist of:* .
Accrued inferest © {10,988,963)
Governmental bonds payable . | . (420,191,535)
Compensated absences

(13,953,375)

Internal service fonds are used by the Clty to charge costs.of certam actlvmes to,individual funds. The
net-assets of internal servmc funds afe reported as components of govemmental activities.
1 i . . t - L) - N i
Nel Assets of goyemm_emal activities ‘ ’ -
. I . T n~ il
See note 1 (b) for discussion of internal service fund allocations to governmental and business-type activities.

-

$'¢

g .

b/

EXHIBIT C, Concluded |

129,393,048

550,672,827

37,981,941

,(445,133,873),

16,309,533

289,223,476

o



EXHIBIT D

CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

Other Governmental
General Debt Service Funds Total
Revenues
City Taxes
Real Estate $ 181,172,923 § - 3 - 8 181,172,923
Sales-1% Local 26,302,100 - - 26,302,100
Personal Property 45,091,878 - - 45,091,878
Machinery and Tools 14,618,256 - - 14,618,256
General Uulity Sales 31,124,964 - - 31,124,964
Bank Stock 2,904,338 - - 2,904,338
Prepared Food 16,028,093 - - 16,028,093
Admission 1,195,603 - - 1,195,603
Delinquent Tax Payments-All Classes 9,589,601 - - 9,589,601
Private Utility Poles and Conduits 150,549 - - 150,549
Penalties and Interest 4,242,744 - - 4,242,744
Titling Tax-Mobile Home 16,942 - - 16,942
State Recordation 609,343 -- - 609,343
Property Rental 1% 120,684 - o 120,684
Vehicle Rental Tax 864,415 - - 864,415
Telephone Commissions 466,562 — - 466,562
Total City Taxes 334,498,995 -- - 334,498,995
Licenses, Permits and Privilege Fees 35,302,960 - - 35,302,960
Intergovernmental 113,861,235 123,032 59,766,725 173,750,992
Service Charges 16,343,955 - - 16,343,955
Fines and Forfeitures 10,328,752 - - 10,328,752
Payment in Lieu of Taxes 19,630,782 - - 19,630,782
Investment Income - - 1,501,725 1,501,725
Miscellaneous 5,671,793 43,301,889 15,290,858 64,264,540
Total Revenues 535,638,472 43424921 76,559,308 655,622,701
Expenditures
Current:
General Government 52,674,080 - 19,408,439 72,082,519
Public Safety and Judiciary 139,793,897 - 11,939,687 151,733,584
Highways, Streets, Sanitation and Refuse 53,756,034 - 617,506 54,373,540
Human Services 65,043,410 - 25,881,018 90,924 428
Culture and Recreation 18,049,525 - 1,579,143 19,628,668
Education 129,041,941 - - 129,041,941
Non-Departmental 26,211,317 - - 26,211,317
Capital Outlay s & 43,109,262 43,109,262
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement - 43,743,522 - 43,743,522
Interest Payments - 40,812,004 - 40,812,004
Issuance Costs - 625,909 - 625,909
Total Expenditures 484,570,204 85,181,435 102,535,055 672,286,694
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 51.068.268 (41.756.514) (25,975,747) (16,663,993)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from Issuance of Bonds 2,000,000 - 1,536,671 3,536,671
Transfers In-Other Funds 5,317,737 41,756,514 10,606,616 57,680,867
Transfers Out-Other Funds (50,997,746) - (3,940,482) (54,938,228)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses), Net (43,680,009) 41,756,514 8,202,805 6,279,310
Special and Extraordinary ltems
Special Item - Disaster Recovery (Note 16) (1,733,968) - 2,507,074 773,106
Extraordinary Item - Disaster Costs (Note 16) - - (4,020,240) (4,020,240)
Total Extraordinary Items, Net (1,733,968) — (1,513,166) (3,247,134)
Net Change in Fund Balances 5,654,291 - (19,286,108)
Fund Balances - July 1, 2004 61,840,820 1,491,962 79,692,083 143,024,865
Fund Balances - June 30, 2005 $ 67,495,111  § 1,491,962 § 60,405,975 § 129,393,048

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements,
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EXHIBIT D, Concluded

CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN THE FUND BALANCES
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (13,631,817) ‘u}?— 50

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the
cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation S/B ,\) (@
expense. This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded capital outlay in the current period. 21y

Purchases of assets 22,933,815 i F/{ )>
Depreciation expense (22,128,744) @ / RQ
The issuance of long term debt (e.g., bonds and leases) provides current financial resources to 6(-’

governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes current

financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net

assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and

similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the

statement of activities. These amounts are the net effect of these differences in the treatment of

of long-term debt and related items.

Proceeds from the sale of bonds, notes and capital leases (3,536,671)
Principal payments of bonds, net 43,743,522
Issuance Costs 625,909 40,832,760

Some revenues in the statement of activities do not provide the use of current financial resources and
therefore, are not reported as revenues in the governmental funds. 11,719,747

Some expenditures in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources

and therefore are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.
Accrued interest (967,145)

Internal service funds are used by the City to charge costs of certain activities to individual funds. The

net revenue of internal service funds is reported as a component of governmental funds. 35,112
Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 38,793,728 @

See note 1 (b) for discussion of internal service fund allocations to governmental and business-type activities.

® 38,7137+
®©  (&5,07)
® 15,90, 38
53 ) 037
®( 1¢,19372¢)
() "Of’/m
_/\ Lﬂ/"“"’(t

&——-—_.___\_—
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CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS -
:PROPRIETARY, FUNDS
June 20,2008

. _Enterprise Funds

. Governmental
-Activities - Internal

N . - (ias Water Wastewater . Other
Assets v . ! . s - -
Cumrent Assets: : o : ) - e . L s e
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 3) : 5 26,387,136 § 17,784,633 § 36,755,141 % 655,617 $- 84582527 § 42,852,884
, Accounts Receivables (Net of Allowance for Doubtful Accounts) 18,948,141 : *8,466,783 6,228,041~ 515,469 34,158,434 3,186,437
Dug From Other Funds (Note 4) s ’ TIS970 « . . AD4,628 1,152,211 i 2,332,809 v
Dnie Frem Other Governments . - ' - - - L - . 18,166
Inventories of Materials and Supplies 18,129,208 192,936 60,714 . 105,789 18,488,647 3,331,275
-0 Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assels ' 1,906,467 1,362,813 . 1,596,712 * . ’ 90,246 - -4.956,238 805,429
- . Total (,\m'em Assets ' - é_g_, 146,922 28,211,793 435,792.819 1,367,121 144,518,655- 50,284,191 '
Noncurrent Assets : . - - .o o ! ' .
Restricted Assets'- Cash and lnvektlnents (Note 3} AB67,566 36,490,827 4,463,550 - 45,321,943 ' - -
K Advances To Gther Funds (Notes 4)- * 19,605,111, 19,081,068 ' 21,534,342 ' - 60,220,521 , 3,294,908
Deferred Expenses \ ' 10,516,227 9,019,623 7,301,243 e 26,83?.09§' 39415
, Capital Assets (Note?): o - } : ’ e ‘ _
Land .- - : - 8233390 8,233,390 98,000
'Bulldmgs and S'h'uctures T - . - ~ 24.723,']4] 24,723,141 97,033,055
Equlpmem l ' ’ - - - . - 6,031,336 6,031,336 60,719,024
Plant Held for Futute Use o 25,813 P 207,075 T 232,388 -
N Plant-in-Service 319,139,760 256,195,316 "223,368,838 - 798,703,914 - -
LT ! Completed Construction  _ 7,800,197 | 18,631,790 + 115,892,591 - 142,344,578 ' -
. Less: Accumulaléd Depreciation (92,877,950) (75,281,731) (1 11.803,279) (11,568,764) (291,931,724) - (91,650,911)
i Construction in Progress N - 29,433,934 34,246,105 39,269,244 + 1423279 104,372,562 12,920,034 +
. Total Capital Assets, Net AccmmLIaled Deprecmncn 263,521,754 233,811 480 266,934,460 . 28,442,382 - +792,710,085 79,119,202
TO!ﬂ] Noncm‘i‘em Assels T 298,510,658 208,402,098 « 300,233,604 * 28,442,382 925,589,642 82,453,525
- 'I'ntal Assels . ) ’ b 367,657,580 " "8 326,6i4,791 £ 346,026,423 5 . 29,800,503 '§ 1,070,108,297 & 132,737,716
Liabilities: . . ) oo . . )
Current Liabilities: o .- i : .
! Accounts Payable . $ 12,347,5‘14 3 T7.412,525 % - 2';152,436 g 1,058,613 § 22971088 % 2,606,146 ¢
’ Acerned Liabilities . 1,998,501 1,582,618 1,872,452 1,618,487 7,072,058 . 1053414
‘Due To Other Funds (Note 4) X - - . - 2,738,097 2,788,097 44,291,007
Due to Other Governments - S - 413,046 413,046 ' - -
Due Te Component Units | - - - - - - 3,189
Accnied Interest on Bonds Payable - 5.334,778 ' 3,947,783 3,753,821 ‘482,631 13,519,073 2,412,289
General Obligation Bonds and Capital Leases (Mot 8) 4,309,490 - 3,090,277 2,572,057 1,46?;794 11,441,598 ¢ 5,043,032
Revenue Bonds Payable (Note 8) . - 975,121 -1,068,601 3,022,425 - 5,066,147 , -
- Compensated Absences " 645,866 i ‘285,740 380,831 73,614 1,395,051 194,486
Other Liabilities and Claims Payable (Nmé lp) , . - ' - - ' Yo - ¥ 5,920,003
. Total Curment Liabilities ! 25,611,270 17,391,544 13,754,002 :7909.342. 64,666,158 21,523,766
Nencurrent Liabilitiés: M . R N . :
- Liabilities to be Repaid from Restricted Assets: + - : . '
‘. Customers’ Deposits ~ * . AR6TS66 887,141 ! - - 5,754,707 -
Acereted Interest on Bonds Payable (Note 8) Lo Y 1,323,584 - 2,117,552 865,907 - 4,307,043 188,824
Deferred Revenue 12,802,220 36,406,180 19,776,779 . - 68,985,175 331,126
. General Obligation Bonds and Capital Lease L'(ab:lml:s (Nmr. 3 166,221,274 82,631,064 * 42,864,531 18,107,648 249,824,517 12,757,691
Revenue Bonds Payatile (Note 8) ; . B 121,101,837 90,926,904 103,720,710 ¢ - - 315,745,451 -
" Compensated Absences c . ' 21,054 Y 28976 ¢ 137,885 - 20,193 408,108 195,638
Other Liabilities and Claims Payable (Nme 10) ‘ to-- - " Te - - 17,915,559
‘Advances ﬁ'om Other Funds’ ’ ! - . - - -~ - - 63,515,579
Total Noncuirent Liabilities , 246,337,535 213,197,817 - . 167,365,812 - 18,127,841 645,029,005 94,904,417
N + Total Liabilities ~ ’ 271,948_,805 .230,589,361 181,119,814 T 26,037,183 709,695,163 - 116.428.183
. i . . ' ¢ :
an Assets: - - e N . i, .
- Invested in Cnpual Assets, Netof Rc]ated chl . * 29,590,448 89,580,768 118,352,409 ' 8,864,940 246,388,565 . 61,129,655
" Restricted for Capital Projects ' ‘L 35,603,686 4,463,550 A - - ' 40,067,236 N -
Unrestricted 66,118,327 £29,159,024) 42,090,650 (5.092;62(}; i 73957333 . > {44,820,122)
. . Total Net Assats g~ 95,708,775 § ' 96025430 5 164,906,609 § 3,772,320 §-° 360,413,134 § 16,309,533
L N - " g ==
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. , )
. ' - .
v ~ ", Ve
- - - + v ’ b I
. .
. . ] . . B
- ~ : \ 32 ' L .
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- EXHIBIT E-2
: " CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA ~ .
RECONCILIATION OF THE ENTERPRISE FUNDS STATEMENT OF NET ASSETSTOTHE .

i X The accompanymg notes ate an mtegral part of the basic ﬁnanc:al statcments s

33

- GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS . . : "
: June 30, 2005 : e A
. : ) ) ’ Titernal Service Fund
T Allocation .
- ) . Stores and Business-Type
1 Tota! Enterprise ~ Transportation Activities Staiement of
Funds Divison - Net Asgets
. Aissels ) C - '
. Current Assets: ) -
! +Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 3) , § ' 84,582,527 § 31,244973 8 115,827,500.
1 Accounts Rcccwables (Net of Allowanee for Doubtful Accounts) " 34,158,434 . ' - 34;153,434
T o, Due From Other Fimds (Note 4) 2,332,809 : - 2,332,809 -
R ~ Inventoties of Materials and Supplies - 18,488,647 2,971,857 ' 21,460,504
; Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets 4,956,238 265919 15222,157 °
: ’ Total Current Assets . 144,518,655 34,482,749 179,001,404
' . . Noencurrent Assels s
. Restricted Assets - Cash and Inv%tments (Note 3) 45,821,943 L 45,821,943
C Advances To Other Funds 60,220,521 (63,515,429) (3,294,908)
L Deferred Expenses 26,837,093 - 26,837,093
Capital Assets (Note 7):
* Land 8,233,390 - 8,233,390 .
Buildings and Strechures 24,723,141 57,431,587 - 82,154,728
. . Equipment 6,031,336 : = 6,031,336
- Plant Held for Future Use - 4 232,888 - 232,388
K Plant-in-Service . 798,703,914 - 758,703,914
: Completed Construction . 142,344,578 - 142,344,578
Less Accumulated Depreciation (201,931,724) - \ (36 335,891) (328,267,615)
s Construction in Progress . ' 104,372,562 9, 589,539 113,962,101
= ' Total Capital Assets, Net Accumilated Depreciation 792.710,085. 30,685,235 823,395,320
o Total Noncurrent Assets 925,589,642 (32,830,194) 892,759,448
Total Assets 3 1,070,108,297 § 1,652,555 § 1.071,760.852
B Liabilities: . -
Current Liabilities:
[ Accounts Payable . 22,971,088 ' 1,524,818 " 24,495,906
] Acdcrued Liabilities 7,072,058 90,590 7,162,648 °
- ) Due To Other Funds- (Note 4) 2,788,097 - 2,788,097
Due to Other Governmients -, " 413,046 , - 413,046
‘ \ Accrued _li;terest on Bonds Payable 13,519,073 - 13,519,073
; ) ' . General Obligation Bonds and Capital Leases (Note 8) 11,441,598 . - . 11,441,598
! Revpm.}é Bonds Payable (Note 8) 5,066,147 - S 066,147
’ 'Compensated Absences 1,395,051 34,033 ! l 420, 084
oo Total Current Liabilities 64,666,158 " 1,649,441 66,315,590
b .
1
N Noncurrent Liabilities: |
’ Liabilities to be Repaid from Rcslncled Assels:
- Customers' Deposits ) 5,754,707. - 5,754,707
. I . * Accreted Interest on Bonds Payable Note 8) L ' 4,307,043 - 4,307,043
o Deferred Revenue ' 68,985,179 96 T 68,985,275
Genera] Obli gatmn Bonds and Capna] Leases (Note 8) 249,824,517 - - 249,824,517
. . Revenue Bonds Payable (Note 8) . 315,749,451 - 315,749,451
- Compensated Absences * ' ' 408,108 3,018 411,126
‘ Total Noncurrent Liabilities 645,029,005 3,114 645,032,119
- Total Liabilitics 709,695,163 1,652,555 711,347,718
HE ' " Net Assets: ; '
; Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 246,388,565 30,685,235 277,073,800
Resmcled for Capital Projects 40,067,236 4 - 40,067,236
Unrestricted . 73,957,333 {30,685,235) 43,272,098
o A‘ : Total Net Assets b 360,413,134 § - -, 8 360,413,134
. . i . N ' N :
& b . , .y
. Amounts related to interfund actmty have been eliminated prior to presenting th]S reconciliation’s amounts in Exhibit A



Operating Revenues
Charges for Goods and Services

Operating Expenses
Purchased Gas -
Inttagovernmental Goods and Services Sold
Salaries and Wages N
Data Processing
Matcrials and Supplies *
Rents and Uhilities
Maintenance and Repairs
Depreciaticn and Amertization
Claims and Settlements ~ .
Miscellaneous Operating Expenses
Total Opetating Expenses  *
Operating Income {(Loss)

i

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
© % Govemurient Subsidies_
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Interest Income v
Interest Expense
Amortization of Debt Discount and Expcnse
Miscellaneous Revenue
Miscellaneous Expens:s

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Net Income (Loss) Before Transfers

Transfers Out-Other Finds

Change In Net Assets

v

Net Assets - Beginning of Year

CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA .
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN THE FUN'D NET ASSETS

¢

. PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Fiscnl Year Ended June 30, 2005

-EXHIBIT E-3

Net Assets - End of Year

‘

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

s

O]

Enterprise Funds
B Governmental
. -Activitics - Internal
(as Water Wastewater Other Total Service Funds
$ . 218137610 S 44211014 $ 47902946 § 387,651 § ~ 314123221 | § 43,439,815
© *154,400,938 - - - 154,400,938"
- - - -- . - 10,419, 694
8,342,954 - 6,712,206 6,733,993 2,879,362 . 24,668,515 3,335, 519
731,225 255,929 * 231,555, ) -- 1,218,709 124,605 .
623,592 1,333,848 762,002 421,629 3,141,071 704,864
.. ' 236,440 ‘3,240,174 2,107,497 225,643 +5,809,754 2,410,272
. 6,002,246 3,700,227 3,931,082 277441 13,910,996 783,628 °
* 10.908,284 5,584,158 8,401,454 1,650215 26,544,115 5,972,919
- . . -, - - 11,154,034
20,311,689 13,116,014 15,933,705 - T 1349853 50,711,261 5,738,817 N
201,557,368 33,942, 55¢ 38,101,288 6,804,147 280,405,359 44,643,752
16.580,242 +_10.268.458 9.801,658 . (2.932.496) | 33,717,862 (1,203,937)
767,097 832,158 1,840,285 2,[67,512 5,607,052 812,678
(12,496,199} (9,682,606) (8,524,420} (332,529) (31,035,754} (1,089,834)
, 428,826 370,073 478,138 8,276. 1,285313 - .
- ({IL144) ) - Fe- - (11,144} -
-{980,484) (755,497) (734,676) - (2.470,657) -
) 671,253 975,192 1,885,171 261,448 3,793.064 1,997,346
- -, - (911,349)" {511,34%) (234,702)
(11,620 651) + (8,260,680) (5,055,502 1;193,358 (23,743,475) 1,485,488
4,959,591 ° . 2,007,778 4,746,156 (1,739,138) 9,974 387 281,551
- (233,500) - (790,900) - (1,471,800} - {2,496,200) (246,439)
4,726,091 1,216,878 3,274,356 (1,739,138) 7,478,187 35,112
. .
. 90.982 684 - 94,808,552 161,632,253 5.511.458 352,934,947 16,274,421 -
3 95708775 § 95025430 ' 3 164906602 § 3772320 - 8 360.413.134  § 16,309.533



‘CITY OF RICHMOND VIRGINIA

.. EXHIBITE-4 "~
g )

i

RECONCILIATION OF THE ENTERPRISE FUNDS STATEMENT OF REV'ENUES EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND ;

. . : NET ASSETS TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT ‘OF ACTIVITIES T . ‘.
“ - - B o - For the Fiscal Year Ended‘June 30, 2005 o
= . _ . : ' ’. A x‘ * v . - A‘ . . .- " ’
! - Enterprise Funds’ _ . ! '
! B v - A : . [ . \
- - ' R Gas Water Wastewater Total
o ’ Operatmg Revenues, ; T . - ) T, i
. : Charges for Goods and Services $ 7 218137610 B 44,211,014  § - 47,902,946 ' 310,251,570
i Internal Service Fund Allocation - - o + ' oF . .
) - Stores and Transportation Division 3,17'1326. . - 642,850 696,532 ¢ 4,511,208
. < o [ ' - N T " ; - o ) -
! v Cﬁarge_s Tor Services - Statemént of Acgivitiqg '*- 221 309 436 . 44,843,864 48,599,478 . - 314,762,778 . o -
Ty : ’ ! . " ! N '
- Operating Expenses . - o } .
' ‘Purchased Gas  ~, 154,:400,938 . - o= 154,400,938 )
Salaries and Wages - , . . 8,:}42,954 6,712,206 6,733,993 21,789,153 -
Y Data Processing , ) 731,225 , 255, 929 - . 231,555 . ) L218709 | 0 .0,
! Materials and Supplies’ o 623‘,’5921 l ,333,348 762,002 - - 2719442 -
- _ Rentsand Utilities - ' ’ | 236,440 * 3,240,174, 2,107,497 5,584,101 ¢ .
+ Maintenance and Repaits .« ’ ,6,002,246 3,700,227 3 931 082“ 13,633,553 . R
. " Depreciation and Amortization - . -10,908,284 - o .5,584,158 - 8401 454 -« ~ 24,893,896 i
. + . Miscellaneous Operating Expenses 20,311,689 13,116,014 L1 5 933 705 49,361,408
. Total Operating Expenses ‘ 201,557,368 ° 33,942,556 38,101,288 _ - 273,601 212

: Non-Opérating Expenses . - , - o, ’ -
l Interest on Long-Ter Debt R 12,496,199 ' : 9,682,606 * 8,524,420 .. 30,703,225
| "<+ Inferest Expense - T 11,144 L - - CoL 11,144
- -Amertization of Débt Dlscount and Expense « 980,484 C155497 734,676 . 2/470,657 , ) ‘
P Total Expenses . 215 045, 195 . 44380,659 47,360,384 - - 306,786,238 -
_ f v Intel:_nal Service Find Allocation - . R . e ) v ‘ :
- 2 Stores and Transportation Diyision 3,162,181 552,605 696,422 4,511,208
: Reclass As Transfers to Governmental Activities - o o ‘ ! e o0 R S
b * Payments In Licu of Taxes - - (10,525,312) (6,029.,075) (2,080,084) . _(18,634,471) : -
3 3 \ ' L : - - ) " A .o
" Program: Expenses - Statement of Activities $ . 207682064 § 39004189 § 45976722 5 . 202662975
| 1 .. 3 : ‘ Lo , . ) - R ;
; ' The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. e o C .
- : . . ¢ L ! '
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. . . . | - . o - . -EXHIBITES . - _
v - N t - v .
) - T, Lo . ’ ’ _ + * ‘ v ’ K }
. - - . . ary OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA - g . Lo N ’ -]
- STATEMI.NTS OF CASH FLOWS " . . v [
T . : . . PROPRIETARYFUNDS' ~ ’ ' ’ . N
. For the Fiscal Year Ended Juiié 30,2005 ' . N °,
¥ - . i " - ' v
. -, N T .. ' g
- ) * ; Enterprise Funds , o () ’, -
s N T, R N ] . : B Governmental
| . : - o : - . Aétivities - Intemal -
- , N - ~Gas Witer: « Wastewater Other :_Total Service Funds * .
' Cash Flows From Operating Activities i R e . . " T
*+  Receipts from Customers § 215256800 $ +44,790.998 3 41667475 5 4,868,829 8 312,584,102 % 42,631,240 H
. . Paymenis to Suppliers M ' ' . + (168,985,596) "(10,613,982) ' (16 414,10%) T (1,895,077 . (197,_90§,7§0) {20,703,030) -
. Paytiients tg Employees . .. L (129,355 (6,607,657) g8l (2,880,318) (23455,185) (9,162,792)
L. . * Payments to Other Funds . (8,059,042, (5,509,792) * (6,230,586) L (19,799,420) s (1,430,152 .
R ‘ . Other Reotipts ot (Payments) ; ' (754,939) 382,924 1,633,902 - (32,371) - 1729516 839817
' Net Cash Provided By (Used In) ' : . oo .
v, * Openating Activities ‘30,327,868 ST 2294245] " "'19,818,871 61,063 73,150,253 ' 12,175,083 L
N a [ - N K .
Cash Flaws Fram Noncapleal Flnancing Activitles ! " R }
Transfers In and Government Subsidies ) 767,007 T sasee 1,840,285 . 828897 |,  .4268437 L. Si267 e
. Transfers Out - Other. Funds® St ‘ -+ {233,500) ~ (190,900) (1,471,800} -7 206200 A6 L
- Payments on Cagital Lease } - . . - . - . Ea (124590) : {124,590 ' - “
Other Cash Distributed C ' - .- - =, (105,378) “(105,378) - .
‘ ¢ NetCash Provided By - 3 : , . . C . -t o
' N“ﬂfapllﬂl Finanging Activities- - L ' 533,597 41,258 368485 - . 508919, 1,542,960 566,239° 4
. " s o ) . . .r ~ S
- . . Cash Flows From Capital and Rc[a(cd Fln-ncing Actlvities Y - . - - * . . - 4
. LN Acquisition of Capital Assets ; . i ': (21,103,657) (lB 789,163) (l 1,087, 778) (26,833) (51,006,831) (11,655,615) . !
.' Capita! Contributions . ‘ , v 3,900 7 e O - - agrs . L.
. Proceeds From Bend Sale 7,097,009 58,788, 3]3 o 4,769,678 - f - 67,655,000 - .
+ Proceeds from Issudnee of Notes Payabl: . in N = - - - 5,000,000
Repayments of Revenue and General Obligation Bonds N (5,661,737 (3 891 .397) (5,564,666) \ - (s,117, 800) (3,469,20T) —
- . Repaymenis of Notes Payables . L= L7 -’ - (1,286,408) '
¢+ Toierest Paid on Long-Tem Debt -(11;889.421) (7 654 042) L {8,155,139) . - (27,698, 602) -~ (719.801) .
+ . NetCash Provided By (Used In) ' # ' - - . E ' A
. Capital and Related Financing Activities ' [ 31,553,306} 25,453,785 (20,038,903) (26.833) 7 (26,165,258) (12,231,031}
. - — el == - E -
. i
B Cash Flows From Investing Activitles: . N - - : R
Interest Emed on Operating Finds e 428,826 370,073 478,138 LT 8276 128853 4 - Lo s i
Interest Paid on Customers™ Depesits , (11,144) -~ - - (85,675} ¢ (96,81%) - |
o Net Cash Provided By (Uscd Inj ‘ . ' o . . . . - :! -
- . Investing Activitics - ' v _ 417,682 370,073 478138 ' (77399} 131 B_gﬁ_% . - s
‘Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalonis L @59 48,807,568 626,589, 555,760 49,715,758 . 51029 {
Cash and Cash Equivalents at July 1,2004 ¢ - . L 34,528,361 5,467 syz 40'592,102 99.857 . 80688712 42,342,503 )
" . Cashand Cesh E__quivalen:’s. at June 30, 2003 - H 342547027 § 54275460 '3 41218681 3 655617 "5, W30404470 § °  azksamed” "~ .
M " ‘ " +
N . v '
Adjustments to Reconcile Operll:ing Thcome (Lnu) . - RN , + .
. ! To Net Cash Provided By Operatjng Acﬂvill:s . , ot ! * N - - 1‘-—
.- ¥ . Openting Incbme (Loss) , $ 16,580,242 § 10268458 * § . . 9,801,658 5 (2.932496) § 433,717,862 § (1,203,937
' , . Ad]usm:em to Reconc:]e Operating Income (Loss) to Ncl th * . : " _ ! . PR
-~ . Prmndcd By Operating Activities: i . X Y., . o . . .
, N Dcprec:atmn ‘\, 10,908,284 * ‘e 5,584,158 ‘8,401,454 1,650,219 , 26,544,115 9,972,919 '
~ LI - Miscellaneous Income . ' - * 671,253 975,192 18851 ° (652,188) ~ 2875,428 1,559,264 .
ﬂnmz.l;:) Decrease in Assets and Incnease (Dectease) in L:abmues g . ’ ' 4 S
Accounts Receivable . {3,151,458) L 579,98}3 (235,471) (89._652] . (2,896,598) - (809,806) P
. 'Dug From Other Funds 279,495 {267,867) 276,012 - - * 287,640 . - -
N ' Due From Other Govemments : ' - - - - oo - 1,232 .
Inventories of Material and Supplics CL N {1,694,416) (49,4373 a2 . (12emm {1,756,670), . 745332 -
, Prepaid Expenses . . ; (467 (38,199) {34,993) (33.642) {114,301y < 22902
. - Deferred Expenses {2,607,872) B 676,513 815398 - - {1,115,941) 9973 . o~
. . Ascount Payable - B 3,485,358 3993226, - 7 (L609,270)" 525,549 6394863 't 64e368 -
. : * Accrued Liabilities : , e 1,005,050 75,179, - (320,270) L4979 - *1,751,584 6,602
! . Deferred Revenue . ' - 2,838,257 K 628,728 866,721 v - 4,333,706 7523y '
o Custoriers' Deposiui - 2086549 Tesamey - : - 2,751,339, e )
' Due To Other Fuads . ) - - R - 478,708 . 418708 . -(603,252) s
o Due To Component Umls‘ N ~ - . - - s - To3,189
) . Cumpensalcd Absences P : (35407 " (27 539) {27,539), (14,95 (105,482) . YL (38549 "
. - Qutstanding Llayllmes and Claims . - L - um a 1,862,768 H
ot : Tora] Adjusiznems ) 13,747,626 . 12,671,993 | 10017213 12,993,859 39432391 - 13,379,020 B
: . : " . ) o . .
. Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities  ~ 3 30,327,868 8§ . 22,942,451 Py 15, SIS 871 % 61,083 3 -73.150,253 '51 - 12175083 .+
" - ’ ’ N - ' ) N . ® ‘__
. . Supplemental Cash Flow Informatk . ! ; ., . o
. ‘ Nun{;sh Transactions: . ’ . - ' . E ! - A
GO Bonds Principal payments made by City Debt Service Fund on behalf of Fund - - T , - - 1,495,304 1,495,804 ' - ‘ .
[ GO Bonds Interest payments made by City Debt Service Fund on ‘behalf of Fund - - - 980,207 980,207 - .t
Capita] Iass Principal payments made by City. Debi Service Fund on behalf of Fund - T - . [ s - 183,819 183,819 - L
Capital Lease Interest payments made by City Debt Servicé Fund on behalf of Fund' ' - - - 112,529 ¢ ¢ H12,529 - .
-Capital Assets aquired on behalf of Fund . & "o A i T - 1575486 - 1575486 i - 3
. Debt alléeation to Fund . . - : - - Lo -, 1575486 1575486 ' -
. - . B ot , o v
B . . R . . -, . : v
. The accompanying notes are an integgral part of the basic financial statements, - B Lo
R . v R . . . R . e
' - v 13 r ' t Yo !
1 N . ! - - '
‘ c L) ' . Cl
' ~ -~ R . " N
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. CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

-, " '

; June 30,2005
i o ’ . Pension Trust Funds  Agency Funds
LAssetss,| ' " : e . ' T C .
Cash and Short-term Investments o PoL8 ., 23665177 1,506,775 °
_ Receivables: - o - ‘ v R ' .
Due from Brokers on Sale of Securities = ° - 8,417,020 -
Due From Other Governments ) 1,735,977 -
Interest and dividends - . L 2,307,099 .-
Employee Loans Receivable . . - 1,190,662 -
Investments, at Fair Value: ' .- -
_U.S. Government and Agency Securities ' 93,040,724 -
‘Corporate Bonds . _— 51,353,495 -
Common Stock . Y 199,807,274 ° -
International Stocks ; 7 82,274,112 e
Intemnational Bonds 34,189,912 . -
Real Estate Investment Trusts : 25,909,354 . .-
Cash Collateral Received - Security Lending Program > 38,047,767 -
Total Investments, at Fair Value - - o 524,622,638 =
. Total Assets . . . . ) ) ‘561,942,573 1,506,775,
. N - [ L B
Liabilities; . , .
Accounts Payable . - . 1,065,235 107,992
Refundable Deposits™ . ) - . - 423,907
-Payable for Collateral Received --Secuirity Lending Program 38,047,767 =
' Due to Other Governments . ‘ J . 2,561,080 -
" Due 1o Various Agents for. Securities Purchased : 10,912,937 -
Funds Held for Others =~ .+ . . ’ : 974,876 -
Total Liabilities ~  * ) v - 52,587,019 1,506,775
Net Assets Held ini Trust for Pension Benefits and Other Purposes s T8 509,355,554 A

- .

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic finanicial statements, -




. ' * - k] ' ¢ * ' : .
o : EXHIBIT F-2
. o .| . CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA -
. T STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS - .
: ! For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3(],'2005 '
. . . S L Pension Trust Funds " . - B
! Additions: - L i . " . . E T
Contributions: o . )
City ofRJchmond ) o . . S8 . 26,210,150
" Richmond Behavioral Health Authorlty o i T 1,041,879, ’
RJchmond Public Schools . - R . | ! ‘ " 341,533,
Plan members |, . ) ; - 1,372,414 -
Investment Income , ‘ L ’ e
' ‘Net Appreciation in Fair Value of Investments . o C o 38,811,802 !
Interest i ) h L 10,498,518~ .
Dividends T . ‘ . 3,893,388
, NetIncrease in lhe Falr Value of Invcsunems - ; . " 53,203,708 ’ 7
Net Income Earned On Securities Lending Transacuons: * s ’ ' j
Securitics, Lending licome - : b 760,698 B
Secu.rmes Lending Expense . . .7 . o (T34 .
Tola] Net Income Earned On Securities Lending Tranéactlons oL : T 28,584
Investment Income . ¢ ) L. T . . 53;2_32,2§2 .
Léss: Investment Expense, - . . ) 2,561,080 ¢ -
Net Investment Income - o7 . . 50,671,212 )
Total additions * : N . . 79,637,188
Deductions: o ’ . - :
Benefits . . . ) s - . 50,873,075
Administrative Expenses - : ) Lo T, © 979,100 .
N Toml.de&uctions L . - ‘ _51:852,175 S
Net Increase i Lo o Y . .- " 27,785,013
Net Assets Held In Trust For Pcnsmn Benefits and Other Purposes Beginning of Year o 481,570,541 [ ?
Net Assets Held 1n Trust For Pens!lon Benefits and Other Pgrposes -End g_f Year 3 509,355,554
The __aécompanyirig Totes are an inteéral part of the basic _ﬁﬁancial statements. . o
. % ) 3 ! > d
‘ 7 v
f ! ' -







Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 3)
Due From Primary Government
Due From Other Governments (Note 5)
Accounts Receivable
Inventories of Materials and Supplies
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets
Restricted Assets (Note 3)
Mortgage Loans Receivable and Other Non-Current Assets
“apital Assets (Note 7):
Land
Infrastructure
= Buildings and Structures
Plant-in-Service
Equipment
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Construction in Progress

Total Capital Assets
Total Assets

Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Liabilities

Due To Primary Government

Due To Other Governments

Deferred Revenue

Advances from Primary Government

Liabilities to be Paid From Restricted Assets:
Customers’ Deposits

Bonds, Notes Payable and Capital Leases

Compensated Absences

Workers' Compensation

Incurred But Not Reported Claims

Non-Current Liabilities (Notes 8 and 10):
Bonds, Notes Payable and Capital Leases
Less Discount on Revenue Bonds Payable
Due To Primary Government
Compensated Absences
Deferred Revenue
Workers' Compensation
Incurred But Not Reported Claims
Early Retirement Plan Net Pension Obligatiol

Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Invested In Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted for:
Capital Projects
Reserve for Encumbrances
Debt Service
Customers’ Deposits
Permanent Funds:
Expendable
Nonexpendable
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

COMPONENT UNITS
June 30, 2005

EXHIBIT G-1

Richmond Broad Street
Richmond Hospital Richmond Redevelopment Community
Ambulance Authority of Port of Richmond  Behavioral Health and Housing Development
School Board Authority Richmond Commission Authority Authority Authority Total
$ 3310991 § 2831,263 § 2,791,950 § 3,328,693 8 2,592,992 § 3704832 § - 18.560,721
22,653,913 - - - - - - 22,653,913
10,287,120 - - - - - - 10,287,120
10,984,140 1,735,871 1,344 244 80,572 2,856,963 8,431 866 852,367 26,286,023
281,640 120,643 46,397 - - - - 448,680
- 106,806 98,892 - 349,367 g 300,732 855,797
2,788,387 - 97,208 - - 1,539,101 10,330,854 14,755,550
- - - - - 70,82875 - 70,828,502
- - 111,508 157,337 - 17,779,408 4,791,100 22,839,353
- - - 272,597 - - - 272,597
- 1,873,949 7,588,336 3459,762 - v 165,326,016 53,449,769 231,697,832
i S = 14,850,510 = ¢ - - 14,850,510
21,701,737 6,576,113 1,850,696 2,719,983 2,536,132 ] 2,844,398 - 38,229,059
(16,312,196) (4,962,554) (5.879,298) (11.233417) (1.235,602)  * (103,803,236) (2.324,340) (145,750,643)
- - - 252,544 - - 29,019,998 - 29,272,542
5,389,541 3,487,508 3,671,242 10479316 1,300,530 - 111.166.584 55.916,529 191,411,250
55,695,732 8,282,091 8,049,933 13,888,581 7,099,852 195,670,885 67,400,482 356,087,556
4,984,439 - 885,743 2,139 2,306,691 2,165,673 164,254 10,508,939
19,164 386 1,582,270 = 11415 - 5,426,597 414,321 26,598,989
- - - - - 967,084 - 967,084
2,064,601 - - - - 1,858,300 - 3922910
3,581,351 48,231 - - 1,585,553 88,902 - 5,304,037
1,300 - - - - - - 1,300
- - 97,208 - . . 3,317,846 3,415,054
- 53,181 13,658 - - 508,617 - 575,456
1,368,558 - - 22,843 - 995,081 o 2,386,482
940,743 - - - - - - 940,743
3,595,240 - - - - - - 3.595.240
- 314,318 46,136 - - 67,602,239 66,740,000 134.702,693
~ - . . - - (1,734,758) (1,734,758)
- - - - - 13,494 278 - 13,494,278
11,174,821 - - 13,719 875,937 1,088,338 - 13,152,815
432,452 - - - - - o 432,452
444,355 - v - . - - 444,355
4.733.145 - - - - = - 4,733,145
52.485.391 1.998.000 1.042.745 50116 4.768,181 94195118 68,901,663 223441.214
5,380,541 3,120,009 3,611,448 10479316 1,300,530 56,692,192 (2,075,705) 78,517,331
6,080,783 - - - - 1,037,163 - 7,117,946
- - - - - 153,947 - 153,947
a FS e - - 347,990 - 347,990
621,534 - - - - - - 621,534
203472 - - - - - — 203,472
(9,084.989) 3,164,082 3,395,740 3,359,149 1,031,141 574,524 45,684,122
$ 3210341 §$ 6,284,091 § 7.007.188 § 13838465 % 2,331,671 §$ 101475767 p§ (1.501,181) 132,646,342

The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA - :

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
COMPONENT UNITS

For the Fisca] Year Ended June 30, 2005

Program Revennes * .

P i J O;')efating Grants and Capital Grants
Functions/Program Activities L Yoo Expenses | Charpes for Services Contributions " _and Contributions
School Board . ) $ 307485679 .8 3953152 8 | " 85356027 § 5,035,556
Richmond Ambulance Aulhonty " . - 12,937,321 7,210,168 - ¢ -
Hospital meihun(y of Richmond . 9,013,692 T, 8,773,009 -, -
Port of Richmond Commission' - - . . - 1,802,046 1,014,954 - 284,500

‘Richmond Behavioral Healtth Authority ' 29,928,577 13,740,643 14,614,061 . R
Richmond Redevelopment and Housing Authority . 8 64,337,998 - 12,522,076 41,976,266 7,871,495
Broad Street Community Developmerit Authority " 4,579,761 3,351,708 . i r -

‘ - Total Component Unitst . $ 30,0950 § 50,565,750 § 141946354 § - 13,191,551
v " General Revenues: . " s :‘ '
! Payment Frem Primary Government . .
. Intergovernmental Revenue Not Restricted fo Spec.lf'c Programs -
N . “Investment Eamings - - . '
. o v Miscellancous - ) -
‘ ' .. ’ Total Gencral Revenuies "
' Special Item: T ' E
H ' Capital transfer - collateral in excéss of related debt (Note )
) Total Special Iiem "‘
N 1] - N
v Changes in Nef Assets' ’ i ‘ W
. , -
. . 1
: Met Assels - Beginning of Year -
Net Assets - End of Year * . ) s ' ,
The accompanying notes aré an'?nlegral part of the basic financial statements. a -
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- _ * CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
P .. 7 NOTES TO'-FINANCIAL(STATEMENTS
- . . ’ L June 30, 2005 . '

L 1. SUMMAR)’ OF‘SIGNI‘FICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

P The City of Richmond, Virginia (City) was founded by William Byrd in 1737, established as a town in May 1742 and
' - incorporated as a City on July 19, 1782, The City operates on a Mayoral-Council form of government and provides all

municipal services to its residents, The more significant of the City's accounting policies are described below. .
‘ ! " A. Financial Reporting Entity - .
; '-TheLCItys f'mancxal statements are prepared: i in conformity with aecountmg pnnclples generally -accepted in the
L . United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to government units. The Governrental Accounting Standards
© Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental dcéounting and financial

reporting principles.’ Therefore, the City’s financial reporting entity is defined and its financial statements are
. presented in accordance with GASB Statement No: 14, The, Financial Reporting Entity, which- defines thé
! " distinction between the City as a primary government and its- related entities. Accordingly, these financial
k statements present the City and its. component units, entities for which the City is considered to-be financially
] . accountable, hereafter referred to as the Reporting Entity. TheRichmonid Retlrement System'(RRS) is the City’s
. " only blended componént unit. Although RRS is a separate legal entity, in substance, it is part of the City's.
' ' operations thus; financial data from this unit is.combined with that of thé-City and reponed as‘a Fiduciary Pension
Trust Fund, The discretely presented component units, on the; .other hand, are reported in a separate column in the
s govemment—w1de financial statements to emphiasize that they are legally separate from the primary government.
Each discretely presented component unit has a Juné 30 fiscal year-end except for.the Rxchmond Redevelopment

i

s

and Housing Authonty, which has a September 30 year-end o
' Component Umts. .
O Discretely Presented Component Units; .
¥ & ' . The Component Uit columns in the govemment—wxde financial’ statements comprise financial data’on the City's
1 ' discretely presented component units. The governing bodies of all Component Units are appomted by the City
o ' : Council, except the School Board of the City of Richmond, which is elected. The following Component Umts are
. . - included in the Reporting Entity because they dre financially accountable to the C1ty .
(R The S¢hool’ Board of the Clty of Rlchmond (School Board) )
C The School Board adrmmsters the Richmond Pubhc School system. The Clty Council approves the School |
) Board's annual operating budget and provides a major portion of the funding through-annual appropriations.
Complete financial statements. of the School Board may be obtamed from the admunstratlve offices located at 301

o L. North Ninth Street, Richmond, VA 23219, L -

(- . .
- : Advantage Rlchmond Corporatnon

17 - The Advantage Rlchmond Corporanon (ARC) isa nonproﬂt corporatlon created by City Council, on March 29
p P 2005 by ordinance 2005-45-3. The purpose of the’ corporatlon is to-assist the City when authorized by the City

- Council in acqumng, construetmg, renovating, equipping, maintaining and operating public buildings and other
. } : public structures for or on behalf of the City and in.providing financing for such activities. For the fiscal year . -
: ‘ended June 30, 2005, there was no activity to report for the Corporatxon The administrative offices are located
e ) at-900 East Broad Street Rlchmond VA 23219, :
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- NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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-

On March 2005 the City Council ‘approved the incorporation of ARC, a wholly ‘owned non-profit 63-20
«corporation established to hold real estaté assets on behalf of the City. On October 26, 2005 the ARC issued
$12,100,000 of 15-year lease revenue bonds, by private pladement with a local bank, to finance the acquisition
of an approximate 100,000 square foot building in' downtown Richmond located at 900 East Marshall Street.

- The building houses the City Departments of Soc1al Services and Public Health,' The Clty has agreed to'lease

the property from ARC.

The lease revenue ‘bonds have annual prmcrpal payments due each- October 1 begmmng October 1 2006, and -
semi-annual interest paymerits beginning April 1, 2006. The annual amount of principal and intérest due each . .
fiscal year is approximately $1.2 million with ﬁnal maturity on October 1, 2020. The fixed interest rate on the

bonds is 5.25% and an assignment of the City’s.annually appropriated lease payments secures the-debt.
Proprietary Corqponent Units o ‘ ) . -
Richmond Ambulance Authority (RAA) '

~

RAA provides emergency and non-emergency medical care and transportation services for the City. The City

annually providés significant operating subsidies to RAA." Complete financial statements ‘fotr RAA may be™

. réquésted ‘at Post Office Box 26286, Rlchmond VA 23260.

Hospital Authority of Rich'm'ond (HAR)

HAR operates a 169 -bed, long-term care, nonprofit nursmg home under the name of Richmond Nursirg

Home. The City annually provides operating subsidies to HAR. Complete financial statements for HAR may ‘

be obtained from the admmlstratwe offices located at 1900 Cool Lane Richmond, VA 23223.
Port of Richmond Commission (Port)

The Port operates a deepwater ocean-going vessel facility. Although the Port operates independently, City
Council appoints the Board of Commissioners. The City has provided annual operating subsidies in prior
fiscal years and it would be misleading to exclude the: Port from thé City’s reporting entity. Complete
financial statements for the Port may be obtained from. the administrative offices’located at 5000 Deepwater
Term. Rd., Richmond, VA 23234.

Richmond Behavioral Health Authority (RBHA) '

' RBHA provides.behavioral health services to residents of the City under Sections 15.1-1676 of the Code of .
Virginia (1950), as amended. The City annually"provides significant operating subsidies to RBHA. Complete -

financial statements for RBHA may be obtamecl from the adrmnlstratlve offices located at 501 S. 5th Street
Richmond, VA 23224,

Richmond Redevelopmeﬁt and Houeing Authority.(RRHA) '
RRHA is responsible for operating a low—rent housing’ program whrch provides housing for ehglble

families, for operating redevelopment and conservation programs in accordance with the City’s Master
Plan and for the delivery of services to citizens of low-rent housing and urban renewal areas through the

_encouragement and development of social and economic opportunities. The City Council appoints the .

Commissioners of RRHA "and has some financial responsibility for RRHA's operations. RRHA’s September
30, 2004 year-end financial statements are’ included within the City’s component unit combining financial

46

.A,"\ PR



TR 'RICHMOND

. ,- ‘ .. CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
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El

f ,. b statements Complete financial statements for RRHA may be obtaihed from the admrnlstrahve ofﬁces located *

e ; at 901 Chamberlayne Avenue, Rrehmond VA 23220 P ‘
‘j J o Broad' Street Comm‘umty Development Authonty (CDA) S . K .

. The' CDA is respon31ble for fmancmg certain 1mprovements in connectlon w1th the - proposed deve]opment .
al . - * and redevelopment within the downtown area thiat will benefit the citizens of the’ Clty, such as parking and
. , . sireet improvements. The CDA is governed by a board of five voting directors and three ex-officio,
h T " nonvoting directors, all of whom are appointed by the ‘City Council. Complete financial statements for the

. CDA may, be obtained from the adrmmstrattve ofﬁces loeated at One James Center 901 East Cary Street, "
. ) oL ‘thhmond Va.. 23219 . .

Related Organlzatlons
, . . The City Councll is also responsrble for- appo:ntmg the members of the boards of other orgamzanons but the-
L - + City’s accountability does not extend beyond makmg these appomtments . : r ‘

-

o "~ 'The followmg organlzahons are related organrzatlons- Wh1ch have not been -included in the reporting entity.

- y o e R.lchmond Metropohtan Authorrty (RMA) — S1x of the eleven dlrectors of the RMA are appomted by

i} . . Crty Council, The City has no ﬁnancral respon81b111ty for the operatrons of the RMA. .

e, Industnal Development Authority of the City of R]chmond (IDA) The Comrmssroners of the IDA are .

P * ."appointed by the City Council, but the’ Ctty provides no ﬁmdmg, has rio obligation for the debt 1ssued by -
the. IDA and cannot 1mpose its will upon. the IDA Y ‘ « :

r"

Joint Venture

. PR GreaterRichmond Tr-ansit Co. (GRTC) P |
' " The City' retalns an ongoing financial interest-and financial respons1b1hty for the GRTC which under 4 joint , -
: venture agreement between the City and the County of Chesterfield, Vlrgmla provides mass transportation for
v " '. , passengers on a reglonal basts for the purpose of provrdmg continuous service- w1tl11n and between Jul‘lSdlCthIlS
) _GRTC, a public service corporatlon mcorporated on" April- 12, 1973, is governed by a six-member bodrd of
' . directors' of which three:are appomted by the City and three by the Couinty of Chesterﬁeld. The City owns an
approx1mate 8% cquity interest in the GRTC, which is not consrdered matenal and is’ not mcluded in.the

~ , "accompanying financral statements

L o n Fare revenues arid route subsrdres pay all costs w1th each locahty partlc1patmg in the GRTC's costs only to the

F a extent that, each locahty ehooses tohave the GRTC operate routes within its Junsdlctlon ‘

= ) N The Ctty expended '$6,771, 376 for subsrdres for bus routes within the City for the year ended June 30, 2005, . -
b . Complete ﬁnanmal statements. for the GRTC.can be obtamed from the GRTC at 101 5. DaVIS ‘Avenue, Richmond, |
e ! . - VA 23220. . :

" yo “ - Jointl'y Governe’d Organi;aﬁdns
\ it . ' ' - - e . > * . T ' i '
B TheCityisa partleioant-member, in conjunction with other local jurisdictions, of the foHowing‘drganiZatiOns:' S

R
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'CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
'NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
-June 30 2005 .

o Capzta! Region A:rpart Commission (Commission) was created in 1975 under Chapter 380 (as amended by

- Chapter 410) of the Code of* Vzrg:ma (Code) when the City and the County of Henrico adopted a resolution "

declaring a need for the Commrssron “Since that t1me the Counties. of* Chesterﬁeld and Hanover have become
Commrssron partu:lpants ) , oo -

.

In, 1976, under an 1ntergovernmental joint venture agreement. between the Clty and County of Henrrco the Crtyu‘

o, " transferred .ownership of the Rlchmond Intematlonal Airport (Arrport) to the Commission. “In return the
' Commission agreed to: rennburse the City for its debt servrce assoorated vvlth the Airport.

.

The Commission is comprrsed ofa fourteen-member board of dlrectors with four members each bemg appomted
by the City, County of Henrico and- County of Chesterfield governing bodies and two members being appointed by,

the County of Hanover govermng body The Commission generates its revenues from service charges to users of =

~ the Airport facilities to recover the costs of maintaining, repairing and operating the Airport. Virginia law requires
' that the Commission submit an annual budget, showing estimated' revenues and estimated expenditures, to the
- goveming bodies of the City and the three Countiés for their approval. After approval of the proposed: budget by

the governing bodies, if the Comimission's budget contains estimated expenditures, which exceed estimated

revenues, then the g govermng bodies are required to’ fund the deficit in proportion to their financial interest in the

Commission. If, however, actual revenues are less than estimated revenues identified in the budget (resulting in a

deficit), the City and Counties may, at their discretion, appropriate. funds necessary to fund the deﬁclt The City
' provided $12, 250 in funding to the Commrssron dunng the: ﬁscal year ended June 30, 2005.

Central Virginia Waste Management Authorzty {c VWJIM) was created by the Vlrgrma Water and Sewer

‘ Authorrtres Act of 1973. CVWMA's purpose is to. maintain a garbage and refuse collection, transfer and disposal
' program or system, mcludmg waste reduction, waste material recovery, recycling as mandated by law or otherivise

and similar programs within one or more political subdivisions which are members of the CVWMA. The Cityisa -

member of the CVWMA, The: CVWMA is governed by a Board of Directors consrstmg of .one or more

representatives appointed by each of the thirteen member cities,"town and counties.” The City appointed: three of

the eighteen-member board of directors. The City’s contrlbutlon and drrect payments for the fiscal year ended
. 'June 30, 2005 were $1 650 279. : . :

The Greater Richmond Parmershw— (GRP) is comprised of members from the City ‘and ‘the. Counties of *

Chesterfield, Hanover, and Henrico. Together. in partnership with, the business leadership of the area, the GRP’s
, purpose is to further economic development of the imetropolitan area. - The City has two representatlves serving on:
- . GRP s Board of Directors and the City conmbuted $390 000-to GRP for the year ended June 30, 2005.

3

The chhmond Metropolitan Conventzon and Visitors Bureau (RMC VB) serves the Crty of Richmond and the -

- «Counties ,of Chesterfield, Hanover and Henrico by, promoting conventions, tourism and development in the
o Metropolrtan Richmond area in order to increase revenues, provide. increased employment and improve the
economic health of all Jurlsdletlons involved: ‘Thé City has eight representatives,serving on RCVB’S Board of.
Dlrectors and: contnbuted $848 507 to the RCVB for the’ year. <ended June 30, 2005 g
. The Richmond Regronal Planning District Commzssron (RRPDC) is compnsed of members from the Countres
of Charles City, Chesterfield, Goechland "Hanover, Henrico, New Kent, Powhatan, the City and'the Town of
Ashland. The major functions of the RRPDC are to promote reglonal cooperatlon coordinate the activities and.
policies of member local governments; resolve ‘service dehvery problems involving more than one government
within the region"and provide planning assistarice to local governments: The City has seven: representatlves
serving on the RRPDC and contnbuted $117,180 for the year ended June 30, 2005:

b

L The Greater chhmond Conventmn Center Authority (GRCCA) a polltreal subd1v1510n of the Commonwealth

of Virginia, was created on January 5, 1998 pursuant to the Public Recreational Facrlltles Authontles Act,

\
. . . 1
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usefulness of the information.

CITY OF RICHMOND VIRGINIA T o
‘ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . T
T B June' 30, 2005 _ Cor

Chapter 56 of Title 15. 2 Code of Vtrgtma The GRCCA was created to acqurre finance, expand Tenovate,
construct, lease, operate and maintain the faclhty and grounds of a visitors and convention' center. The pohtrcal .
subdivisions participating in. the .incorporation of the GRCCA are the Clty and- the Countres of Chesterfield, '

Hanover and Henrico. The GRCCA is governed by, a five-member commrssron comprised of " the chief . -

administrative officer of each of the four, incorporating polltlcal subdmsnons and the President/CEO of the:
Retail Merchants Assoclatlon of Greater Richmond.’ The City contrlbuted $4,578, 372 for the .year ended June
30, 2005 : . . , .

Bas:s of Presentatlon ‘ ‘ - . N e

Government—wide and Fuiid.Financial Statements o
The basic ﬁnancral statements include both government-w1de (based on the Clty as a whole) and the fund
financial statements, 1nc1ud1ng the major individual funds of the governmental funds. (General and Debt Service

. Funds) and proprretary finds (Gas, Water, and Wastewater Funds), ‘as well as the ﬁducw.ry funds, and the

Component* Unjts. Both the. govemment-wide, and fund financial statements (within the basic' financial

statements) categorize primary activities as either 'governmental or business-type. In the government-wide - ‘

Statement of Net Assets, both the governmental and business-type. dctivities columns (a) are presented on an-
aggregated basis by column, and (b) are reflected.on a full accrual, economic’ resource basis, which incorporates

~ long-term assets and recéivables‘as well as long-term debt and obligations. Each presentation provides valuable

‘information that'can be analyzed and compared (between years and between governments) -to enhance the .

N

The govemment—w1de Statement of Activities reﬂects both the gross and net-cost per funct:onal category

-(Public Safety, Public Works, Human Services, etc.) that'are otherwise being supported by general government

revenues (property, sales and use taxes, certain mtergovernmental revenues, fines, permits arid charges, etc)
The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (mcludmg depreciation) by directly’ related program
revenues, operatmg and capital grants, and contributions, Prograrn revenues include charges to' customers or
applicants. who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function and grants and contnbunons that are restricted to meeting the operation or caprtal requrrements of a
particular function or segment Taxes and other itenis not speclﬂcally restricted to the various programs are
reported as-general revenues. ‘The City does not allocate indirect ¢ -expenses. Operating grants presented include
operating-specific and discretionary (either operatlng or capltal) grants while' the capital grants column reﬂects '

’ capltal-spemﬁc grants

In the fund financial statements, ﬁna.nclal transactions and accounts of the Crty are organlzed on the ba51s of |
funds. The operation of each fund is considered to be-an independent fiscal and separate accounting entity, with
a self- balancmg set_of accounts’ recording cash and/or othier financial resources together with all related:
liabilities and remdual equities or balances, and: chariges therein, which are segregated for the purposé of
carrying on spec1ﬁc activities or attamtng certain objectrves m accordance with special regulatlons restrlctlons

or limitations. GAAP sets. forth minimum critefia (percentage. of the assets, liabilities, revenues or -
expendltures/expenses of either “fund" category or the govemmental and enterprise- cornbined) for the

" determination of major funds. The. non—major funds are combined in a single column in the' fund financial

statements and detailed inithe combining statements. The governmental -fund financial statements are presented E

"on current financial resources and modified accrual basis of. accountmg Thrs is the manner-if: whlch these

funds’ are nonna]ly budgeted Since the govemmental fund financial ‘statements are presented on a different .
measurement focus and basis of accounting than the govémnment-wide, financial statements’ govemmental‘ :
activities column, a reconciliation is presented which briefly explams the: ad_]ustments necessary to reconcile the
fund financial statements to the' govemmental act1v1t1es column of the* govemment-w1de financml statements

.
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‘Internal Service . Funds of the Ctty (which tradmonally prov1de services pnmar:ly to other funds of the' .

govemment) are. presented in summary form as part of the Proprietary Fund financial- statements.. In; the
government-wide- financial statements, assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the funds are ‘allocated to

either the governmental or business-type activities, based on their prédominate use of the fund’s sérvices. See -
Exhibit E-2 and E-4 for specxﬁc allocation to the busmess—type dctivities. To the extent possible,.the.costs of
these services-are reflected in the appropnate functlonal actmty (Public Safety and Judlclary, Human Serv1ces .

etc.),

. 1 ‘ - \ “

The Crty § Fldumary Funds are presented in the fund financial stateinents by type (pens1on and agency) Since
by definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a third party (private partles pension participants,
et¢.) and canriot be used to address activities or. obhgattons of the Clty, these funds are not incorporated into-the

City:

Govei*nmental‘Fu‘nds - ST N .
Governmental Funds are those through whlch most governmental functlons typlcally are fi nanced The Clty‘
reports the following Govemmental Funds:. .

©

e General Fund - The General Fund is the C1ty § primary operating fund It accounts for all ﬁnancral resources . -

" of the City's general government except those requu:ed to be accounted for in another fund.

s Special Revenue Funds — Special Revenue Funds account for revenue sotirces that are legally restncted to "

~expend1tures for speclﬁc purposes.

o Debt Service Fund - Debt Service'Fund accounts for th'e- servicing of general long-term debt. ’

- \ ! ’

.. ' Capztal Projects Funds — Capital Pro_|ects Funds account for the acqmsmon of fixed- ‘assets or construcnon of

major capital prOJects {other than.those financed by Propnetary Funds)

. I“ropnetary Funds~

Propnetary Funds are accounted for on the' flow; of economic resources measurement focus and use the accrual
basis of accountmg Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and experises are recorded at the time
11ab111t1es are mcurred The City reports the followmg Proprletary Funds

1 ~ 1

.’ Enlerprrse Funds — — Enterprise Funds are used to account for those operations that are ﬁnanced and operated in -

a manner similar to private business, primarily through user charges or where ‘the City has decided that the
‘fdetermmatlon of révenues’ earned, costs incurred’ and/or net income is necessary for. management

accountability. The City maintains six Enterprise Funds consrstlng of the gas, water.and wastewater -

* operations, all of which are considered major- funds, and the ‘Cemeteries, Landmark, and the Richmond

Coliseum (Coliseum), which are combtned into a single, aggregated presentation as “non-ma_|0r propnetary. “ :

© funds”, T o R ,

. Imernal Service Funds — " Internal .Service Funds account for operauons that provide services 1o City

departments/agencies on a cost-reimbursement basis. The City maintains six intémal service funds: 1) Fleet
Management 2) Radio Mairitenance, 3) Risk. Management 4) Pubhc Works Stores, 5) Electric Utlhty, and 6)
Stores and Transportatlon ©

50°
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. . - v

The City apphes all apphcable Fmancral Aecountrng Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements lssued prior to or
.on November 30, 1989 in accounting and reportmg for its. propr1etary operatrons Under 'GASB No. 20,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Fi unds and other Governmental Entifies That Use-Proprietary.

. - - . Fund Accountmg, the Clty elected not to. appIy FASB pronouncements 1ssued after November 30,1989, - :
k . , i v . 7 . 2t ) .
Flduclary Flmds c '- Lo - <. " o L \
\‘,«— —k’ . . K “ - P Wt & - - -
N Flducmry Funds account for assets held by the City in a ‘trustee capaelty or as an agent for 1nd1v1duals pnvate
" . orgamzatlons or other governthents, L - S . .
[ . e L Trust Funds = For accounung ‘measurement purposes the Pensron Trust Funds are accounted for .in
L - essentially the same manrier as proprietary funds The Tru.st ‘Funds consist of the City’s Retirement Plan . -
N o and the Crty 5 Deferred Compensatron Plan LT T : -
i . .
P Agency Funds - Agency Funds are custodial in nature and do not present results of operatlons or have a .
o - ~ ‘measurertient focus. " The Agency Funds consist of the assets and liabilities of several organrzatlons for which
- . : ' the City serves as fiscal agent, 3uch as the Deépartment of Welfare; the Department of Recreation and Parks
L i the Department of Pubhc Works and the Law Department o _ : \ .
?1,_, N . . . . . . . r
. . Reconclllatlon of Gowrnment—w:de and Fund Fmanclal Statements D ' .
s - o

J g " A summary reconcrhatlon of the dlfference between total fund baIances as’ reﬂected on the Govemmental Funds
, o . Balance Sheet and total net ‘assets for governmental activities as shown on the . govemment~w1de Statement of,
S ‘Net Assets is preserited in a “schédule accompanying | ‘the Governmental Funds Balarice Sheet. - The- asset and

) . hablhty elements which comprise the recongciliation drfferences stem. from’ Governmental JFunds using the . ..
g ) -7 currént financial resources measurement. focus and the- modlﬁed ~accrual basis of accountmg while the
o government-wide-financial statéments use the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of .
] ~accounting. A summary reconciliation of the differences bétween net change in total fund balances as reﬂected

0o ' +on the Governmental Funds' Statement of Revenues Expendltures ‘and” Changes in- Fund ‘Balances, and the o

- ' _ change in net assets for governmental ‘activities as- shown on' the government-wide Statement of Activities, is . -
— "' presented in a schedule accompanying the, Governmental Funds Statement, of Revenues, Expenditures, and :
N '+ Changes in Fund Balances. The revenue and expense elements which comprise the reconcnhatlon differences
5 S . stem from the govemmental funds using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modrfied

accrual basis of accounting-while the government-wide financial. statements use the economic resources .

o ‘measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. B . . : , .

I ‘ . .

P . . . P .
N K . .

L * . T R ' . -

! . - .

- ' C ., Basis of. Accountrng C PR S, Lo -

. . The accounting and finanmal reporting tréatment applled toa fund 18 deterrmned by Its measurement focus All S
i . 7 Governmental Funds are accounted for using the current financial resources measurement focus wherein only

‘ current assets and curfent liabilities are included on the. balance sheet in the funds statements. Long—term assets'
e and long term hablllnes are mcluded in the govemment-wrde staterhents. Operating statéments: of Government

Funds present increases (i.c. revenues and other ﬁnanc1a1 sources) and decreases (i. e, expenditures and other I

- S ﬂnancmg uses) m.net. current assefs. L . : . . " ‘ =
1. . . The Governmental Funds ﬁnancral statements (General Debt Service and Other) are reported on-the ﬂow of
K current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting wherein the focus- -, -

' . is on the determination of, and changes in, ﬁnanclal posmon and onIy,current assets and current liabilities are = .,
pe T < mcluded on the balance sheet Revenues. are recogmzed in the accounting perrod in which they become both A
§ o T measurable and availabler to finarice expendrtures of the ﬁscal period. Revenues from taxes are generally
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' . R ¢
e

considered available if recelved w1th1n two months after the fiscal year end. Revenue from categoncal and
other’ grants are generally consnlered available when all eligibility criteria have’ been met. Expendrtures are
recorded when the related Liability i is incurred and payment is due except for pnnc1pal and interest on Tong-term.
debt _— o . . !

)
“

-The govemment—w1de ﬂnanc:al -statements are reported and accounted for on the economrc résources
measurement focus ‘and the accrual basis of actounting which include all assets and liabilities ‘associated with

‘governmental ‘and business-type activities. - Assets and. liabilities assocrated with fiduciary .activities- are.
included on the Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets. Revenues are recorded when earneéd and expenses are -.
"~ recorded at the timé liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the relatéd cash flows take-place. Nonexchange

. transactions, in which the Clty ‘either gives or receives value without directly recelvmg or giving equal value i

‘ .Cash and'Cash Equivalénts ’

" exchange, include sales and income taxes, property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual

basis, revenue from sales and i income taxes are recognized ‘when"the underlymg exchange transaction takes

place Revenue from property taxes is recogmzed in the fiscal year for'which the takes are levied: Revenue -

from grants, entrt]ements and donations is’ recogmzed in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requ1rements
'have been satisfied. . -

‘Operatmg revenues *and expenses in the Proprretary Funds result from pr0v1d1ng goods and -services m
connection with their principal’ ongoing operations (e.g., charges for services). Operating expenses for the

'Enterpnse and Internal Service Funds include the cost of services, administrative expenses, contractual services

and depreclatlon on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not’ meetlng this definition.are- reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses., 5 _ : : e

- ~r

The Pension Trust Fund’s ‘contributions from members are recorded when the employer makes payroll
payments on behalf of Plan members. The Agency. Funds use the full accrual basis of accountmg and do not

E

measure the results of operatlons t . .. o ‘

i N

Cash a.nd cash equivalents are §tated at cost, which. approxrmates market. Cash and cash equlvalents include, cash

. on' hand, checking and savings accounts and cert:ﬁcates of deposrt (which generally have maturities of less than
three months atthe tnne of acqulsnmn) : .

- 1

Investments T .‘ o S

t. o

Investments of the Frducw.ry Funds are reported at fair value., The fair valueis based on elther quotatrons obtamed

from national ‘security exchanges or on the basis of quotatrons provided by a pricing service, which uses .
, information with respect’ to transactlons on. bonds, quotations from bond dealers, market transactions in

comparable secuntres and vanous relanonshlps between securltres

‘
. 3

Allowances for Doubtfnl Accounts :

i

.The City calculates 1ts allowances for doubtful accounts usmg hrstoncal col]ectlon data specrﬁc account.
analysrs and managements _]udgment _ . T - .

Allowances for doubtt’ul.accounts at June 30, -2005 were as fo_ll'ows;‘ _ T

-



"G. .In“ventories .

.jCapltalAssets < I e e i .

N

, CITY OF RICHMOND VIRGINIA o
N NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

\ . - +June30,2005 | S
 General Fund, - S s . 19,729,503
' Enterprise Ifunds‘: ) ) . - . ) ‘ ‘
" Utilities: _' ‘ ‘ ) L .
Gas Utility - A e 1192183 Y
U Water Utiliy - L 2 oo . 207312 '
. Wastewater Utllty o e T . 18327
oo * “Total Bnterprisé Funds S . 'o§ 21312285 §
" Component Units: - ) B S
Richmond Ambulance Authonty Co " R 1,310,000 °
. Hospital Authority of Richmond .~ - o U 11836,
A Richmond Behavioral Health Authority - SR ’ 8t),94’7_
B Ru:hmond Redevelopinent and Housing Authonty C . ‘ | 12,996,447 )
' . o Total Component Units , ' ’ | 4,499.230 .

' T N 7 o *e
. - . N 4 . . .

Inventorles on hand at June 30, 2005 have. been reported on the government-WJde Statement of Net Assets
Inventones of consumable supphes are recorded at cost determiried on .4 first in, first out basis., Inventories in

- the Proprietary’ Funds-are stated at the lower of cost (deten'nmed by usmg welghted average cost or ﬁrst-m ﬁrst—
_out methods) or market 7 . . o _

v
.

- ot - f i

* Capital assets and lmprovements include. substantrally all land and works of- art/hlstorlcal treasures bulldmgs ' o
. equipment, water: distribution and sewage collection systems, and other elements .of the City’s - mfrastructure

having a minimum useful life'of 3 years and having an initial cost of more than $3, 000.. Capital,assets; which
are used for general governmental purposes and are ‘not available for expenditure, -are- accounted for and
reported in the government-w1de financial statements Infrastrycture €lements mclude the roads bndges curbs '
and gutters, streets and SJdeWalks parklaud and lmprovements e o .

+

Capltal assets are stated at historical cost or estlmated hlstorlcal cost based on appralsals ‘or on other acceptable .
methods when historical cost is not available. Infrastructure acqulred prior to fiscal years ended after June 30,
1980 is reported, Donated. capital assets are sfated at their fair market value as of the date of the donation.

Capital leases are. c1a551ﬁed as capttal assets in amounts équal to the lesser of the fair market value or the”
dlscounted present” value of net mlmmum léase payments -at the inception of the lease: . Accumulated

deprecratron and amortization are reported as reducttons of capltal assets N

‘ Capltal asset - deprematlon has been provnded over the estlmated useful hves usmg the stralght-lme method as
. follows: Co : . . :
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June 30,2005 LT
Governmental: .- L o _— o ST
. " Infrastructure - v B . G20 to 50-years
' ’ Buildings and structires ~ * S o 20to 50 years -+ ' -
. Equipment and other assets ', - . ‘ . 3to 20 years ’
Enterprise Funds; - ) s : ,
, Gas production, distribution, equipnient SRR ' " 17to 34 years
~ Water pumping, treatmerit disttibution, equiprr]ent o 20 to 50 years )
. . Sewage gathenng and treatment equ:pment - 20t050 years- '
o ’ Coliseum ‘ - . e 3t020. years, -
J " Landmark Theatre . - - ' - : .- 3to20 years
- Cemeteries e v S 3 to 20 years S
v J . v -.- . el
*  Enterprise' Funds: ) ’ - - . '
Buildings and structures . 20'to' 50 years T
Equipments and other assets ' ' - 3 to 20 years
Component Umts Capltal Assets o : L ' Lot

- School Board— Vehzcles and Eqmpment Proprietary Funds - ‘

L
. 2

' Vehlcles and equ1pment reported i in the propnetary funds are stated at cost. - Contnbuted vehicles and equ1pment
.are valued at estimated fair market value on the date. of receipt. Vehicles and eqmpment depreciation has been
) pmv1ded over the estimated useful lives of assets ranging ; ﬁ'om 510, 30 years using the straxght-lme method,

chhmond Ambulance Authority

'Property aud equlpment deprec1at10n has been prowded over the estlmated useful lives of assets rangmg from 3 to
20 years using the stralght-lme method. o . T

HospztalAuthority ofRichmond L Co . : o

Propeﬂy and equlpment depreclatlon has been prov1ded over the estlmated useful hVES of assets ranglng from 5 to,

40 years using the stralght-hne method. . : . . e I -

" Port of. Richmond Commission - . o o R "
‘Pr0perty and equ1prnent deprecnatlon has been prov1ded over the estlmated useful lives of assets rangmg from 5'to
50 years usmg the stralght-lme method. , . ) O i

Vs r
4

chhmandBehavmral Hea’lthAuthority ‘ . ' _ . _,? -

Furniture, equlpment and vehicle deprcc:atlon has beén pr0v1ded over the estlmated useful lives of assets
ranglng from’5 to 20 years using the stralght-lme method. l I ' ' :

L

.54
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~ ranging from 5 to 40 years usrng the stralght-lme method

. when. they are expected to be quutdated with expendable.available finarcial resources.
- noricurrent portions -are recorded in- the government—wtde ﬁnanc:lal statements.

_ CITY OF RICHMOND VIRGINIA .
- - NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
) . June 30,2005~ ‘ o :

chhmond Redevelopment and Housmg Authortty B - .

4

P

Furniture, equrpment and vehicle deprecratlon has been provided over the estlmated useful hves of assets

‘

Richmond Broad Street Commumty DevelopmentAuthartty o - B

Buildings and structures are deprecrated overa perrod of 40 years usmg the strarght-lme method : : "

2 .
. - " i ~

‘Constructlon Perrod Interest o L

The City capltaltzes during the constructron penod only, the net lnterest costs assoc1ated with the acqutstuon or

construction of major additions to utilitiés plant in. service facilities. During fiscal 2005, net mterest costs of

' approxunately $29 190,000 were incurred w1th approxrmately $3,555, 000 being capltahzed

r

Compensated Absences

3 ' . - St

The City’s general employees earn "v‘acatio'n ‘pay in, varying amounts and can accumulate vacation pay based on

length of service. All general employees earn sick pay-at the saine rate regardiess of the length of service. Fire
shift employees earn both vacat1on pay and sick pay based on length of serviée and employment date.

Eaming rates for vacation® pay and.srck pay and maximum yacatlon accumulatron hours are as follows:

i

i .

Sick Pay  °

' '

Vacation Pay

i Maximum
.. . ’ - Bi-weekly _. Bi-weekly "+, Vacation
. ‘ Earning Rate Eaming!RaLe' Accumuliition.
. . Min-Max Hours Hours _Hours
.General émployees L . 3.7-74 37. " 192.0 <3840
Fire shift ernployces ) : . 52-74 2'68.8 -576.0+

_S2-101 -

' ‘Maxunum vacatlon accumulation hours are payable at the date of separatlon or available for use at the end of any

calendar-year: Employees leaving City employment are. paid. all accumulated unused' vacation pay up to the

maximum hrn1t Thie unused balance of sick leave is not paid-at the date of separatmn . o

. i
=

. I'The City and School Board .accrue compensated absences (annual and srck leave beneﬁts) when vested. The:

current portions of the Governmental Funds' compensated absences liabilities are recorded as accrued liabilities
“The’ current and

"The -amount of ‘vacation -
recognrzed as expense’ is the amount earned during the year: ' ‘

' r *

- Bond Discounts/lssuance Costs

-
L

In Governmental Funds, bond dtscounts and issuance costs are recogmzed as expendttures in the perlod
incurréd. Bond d1scounts and issuance costs in the government-wide finaricial statements. units are deferred and

amortrzed over the term-of the bonds 'using ‘the bonds-outstanding methed, which approximates the effective .

interest‘method. Bond discounts are presented as a reductron of the face amount of bonds payable whereas ,
1SSuance costs are fecorded as deferred expenses

. \
. *

'

T

¥
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Jlfdglnent and Claims -

,The Clty i$ self-insured with respect to risks 1nc1ud1ng, but not limited to, property- damage and-personal injury.

‘The 'City is self-insured with respect to payments for workers’ compensatxon _general liability, automobile
liability, public officials or police professional 11ab111ty claims: The City also carnies commercial insurance’in a

_ number of émaller, more defined'risk areas such as employees’ faithful performance money and securities and”

medical professional liability. In the fund financjal statements, expenditures.for judgmients and claims (other
than workers’ compensation and condemnation proceedmgs) are recorded on thé basis of settlements reached or
Judgments entered within the current fiscal year.” In the government-wide ﬁnanmal statéments, the estlmated
hablhty for all _]udgments and claims is recorded as a habthty }

- . +

Restricted Assets o , o : ' - - ,

In accordance. with applicable covenants' of ¢ertain enterprise. fund bond‘ issues, cash and other ‘assets have been

. appropriatély restricted. Cash has also been restricted to the extent ‘of customers' dep051ts and unexpended bond
"proceeds. When both restricted and unrestncted resotirces are dvailable for use, it is the City’s policy to use

restricted resources first, and then unrestncted resources as they are needed ..

Reserved and Designated Fund Balance

~

Fund balance reserves are used to indicate that portion of the fund Balance that is not. avallable for expendlture oris
legally segregated for a spec1ﬁc future use. Designations of portions of the fund. balance are estabhshed to 1ndlcate ]
plans for ﬁnancxal resource utilization in a future period (See Note9). . - -

v

Internal and Intra-entlty Actlvnty .

In the process of agpregating data for the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, some -

amounts ‘reported as- interfund activity 'and - balances i the funds have been eliminated or recla531ﬁed
Eliminations ‘are.made in the statement of net assets to minimize the grossmg—up” effect on assets and -
liabilities within the governmental and business-type activities columns of the primary government.- Amounts -
réported in the funds as interfund receivables and:payables are eliminated in the governmental and business-
type activitiés columns of the government-wide financial statements, except for net residual amounts due’
between govemmental and business type activities, which are.presented as internal balances. - Also, éliminations
are made'in the Statement of Activities to remove the “doublmg up" effect of Internal Serv1ce Fund acttvxty

Payments from a ﬁmd receiving revenue to a fund through ‘which the revenue is to be expended are reported as
operatmg transfers. Such payments include transfers for debt service and capital' constmetion. Iii the .
government—w1de financial stateinents, resource flows'between the primary government and the discretely
presented Component Units are reported as if they were external transactlons e - o

.

Advances to Other Funds. S - o | _‘ - : 7

Noncurrent advances to othier funds are feported on the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. Noncurrent advances
are offSet by.a reservation-of fund balance since they do not represent "expendable available financial resources,”

‘Rate & Stab:ll_zatlon T,

' Clty ordinances authorize the Ut111t1es Enterpnse Funds o' establish: rate stabilization accounts within each- ut111ty

The purpose of rate stabilization is to mitigate and smooth any rate incréases.that othermse might be required from-
year to year by i mcreasmg the rate stabilization amounts in ‘years when revenues exceed those needed to Ineet bond '

-

[
'
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covenant reqmrements and reasonable rates of return. ‘Conversely,’ rate stabilization amounts; whlch are

" _contributed, may be used instead of rate increases in years when revenues are insufficient to meet bond covenant
requirements, reasonable rates of return, or budgeted net income, For the-year ended June 30, 2005, the Utilities
Enterprise Funds, which are considered rate regulated entities under GAAP, credited $4,900,000 to the rate
stabilization fund and did not use any funds from the rate stabilization fund. The net effect of these transactions is
reflected as deferred revenues on the Proprietary F unds Statement of Net Assets. '

- 4

R. Amortization of Debt Defeasance Ga_rns/Losses

Gains and losses resulting from prior year defeasancé of Utilities debt (irfcluded in Enterptise Fiinds) are recorded
as deferred expenses and are amortized over the shorter of the remaining life of the old- debt or the life of the new
* debt, whichever is shorter V- ] . ¢

A

S. Estimates and Assumptions

A number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of revenues, expenses, expenditures,' assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities were used to prepare these financial statements in
* conformity with GAAP." Actual results could differ from those estimates. '

T.. Idérltiﬁcation of Maj‘or Revenue Sources Susceptible to Accrual \

‘Property taxes, sales takes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest assoclated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All
other revenue items are con51dered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the
govemmcnt

REAL-AND PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES

Real and personal property taxes are levied on a calendar year. basis on January 1, the assessment date, and become a
lien as:of” the same date. Assessed value is (determined as of January 1. Personal property taxes on motor vehicles

-acquiring. or losing situs (location where property is principally parked or garaged) throughout the year -are prorated -

on a-monthly basis. Periods of one half of a month or greater.are assessed as a full month.: Periods of less than one

_ half of a month are not assessed. Abatements and refunds of personal property taxes on motor vehicles are prorated ’

in a similar manner. Personal property, taxes may be paid without penalty and interest on or before May 1, or 60
days from the date the vehicle acquired situs in Richmond. Real estate taxes may be paid without penalty and
interest on or before June 15. Penalty for late payment is 10% or $10, whichever is greater not to exceed the full
amount of the tax. Interest on the unpaid balance is 10%, per annum for the first year. Thereafter, interest is charged
at the. greater.of 10% per annum or guarterly rate charged by Intemal Revenue Service. The City bills and collects

. its own property: taxes. Property taxes levied January’ 1 2005 are mtended to finance operations of the fiscal year

ended June 30, 2005.

3

." CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS . - L T

A. Cash and Cash Equivalents.
| Primary G’ovemment
At June 30, 2005 cash on hand, cash items and petty cash totaled $26,939'and the carrying value of the City's

demand deposrts savings accounts and time “certificates of deposit with financial institutions totaled $8,407,414
and is included in cash and cash equlvalents The bank balance of the Clty 5 deposrts totahng $8, 148 882, was

\ - B = \ . ,

.57
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- covered by Federal deposuory insurance or was msured in accordance with provisions of the Vugmla Security for
Public Deposu Act: This Act requires financial institutions holding public deposits in excess of amouints covered
, by Federal insurance to pledge collateral in the amount of 50% of excess deposits, while savings and loans are
. required to ‘collateralize 100% of €XCess dep051ts The State Treasury Board can assess-additional collateral from
participating financial institutions to cover collateral shorifalls in the event of default and is respons1ble for
moritoring compliance with the collateralization and reporting requirements of the Act and for notifying local
govemments of compliance by financial institutions. All funds, unless otherwise classified as restricted, are
deposited into pooled bank-accounts; the major account defined as the-general fund concentration account. As
disbursements are made from the payroIl budget, and social servicés bank accounts, funds from the general fund
.concentration account are automatlcally transferred to those bank accounts'to cover those dlsbursemems ona daﬂy
basis. '

i

Component Units

v

At June 30 2005 Component Units’ cash on hand totalmg 3800 and the carrying value.of Component Units’ '

demand, savmgs accounts repurchase agreements, and time ¢ertificates of deposit with financial institutions totaled
'$18,560,721. All amounts held by financial institutions were covered by Federal depository insurance or were
-insured in accordance with provisions of the Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act.. Restricted Assets include
the HAR customer, cash deposxts of $97 208 the. School Board s $2,788,387, RRHA’s $1,539, 101, and ‘the CDA’s
$10,330,854. '

. Richmond Retirement System

Cash and Invesnnems

" At June 30, 2003, the carrymg amount of the System’s deposn;s w:th ﬁnanc1a1 institutions. was $8 568,690; and the *
bank balance was $9,562,879. All funds deposited in banks are protected under the provisions of the Virginia -

Securities for Public Deposit Act (the Act). This Act requires financial institutions holding public deposits in
excess of amounts-insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation to pledge collateral in the amount of

50 percent of excess deposits, and savings and loans to .pledge collateral in the amount-of 100 percent of excess ;

deposits, and savings and loans to pledge collateral in the amount of 50 percent of excess deposits, and savings

and loans to pledge collateral in the amount of 100 percent of excess deposits to-a collateral pool in the name of °

the State Treasury Board. The State Treasury Board can assess additional collateral from participating financial
institutions to cover collateral shortfalls in the event of default, and is responsible for: (1) monitoring
compliance with the collateralization; (2) reporting requlrements of the Act’ and (3) for notifying local
. Bovernments of comphance by financial institutions:

Authorized Investments - - .
The System is authorized by the Board to invest in obllgatlons of the U.S. government or its agenmes approved
money market funds, ‘other banks and savings and loan associations, not exceeding federal insurance coverage,
and commercial paper rated A-1 by Standard & Poor’s or P-1 by Moody’s. The System is also authorized 1o
invest in corporate bonds and notes rated A, or better, by Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s. The System is
authorized 'to. invest in’ both U.S, equmes and international equities as well as Real Estate Investment Trusts
(REITs). Each investment manager is authorized to invest no more than 5% of its holdings, at cost, in equity
securities of a single issuer at the time of purchdse. The System has six types of investments:’ U.S. government
and .agency obligations, domestic bonds and notes, domestic- stocks;- mtematlonal stocks, international bonds
and notes and REITs.

58

[

~a



A__A._.

- Concentrat'ion of Cred:'t Risk\

: . .CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA .-~ .. ~ , R
' NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - ' ‘ :

W o,y June30,2005 © L 0 : .
. Fair
! ‘ .. ‘ o . Cost ] Vahie-
U.S. Government and Agency obllgauons o $ 1 49,645695 § 50,670,737
Domestic bonds ) C 50,015,761 51,353,495
Domestic stocks C. - 161,118,253 199 807 274
International stocks - - 68,684,722 82,274,112 .
International bonds and notes g - 33,064,515 ’ ,34,189,912 -
REITs . . ' : 21,511,475 © 25,909,354 ¢
Cash collateral received under securitics lending program L 38,047,767 ' 38,047.767
Total . . ' - .~ 8., 422088188 § 482252 651 ~
_The net ch'angf.-: in fair value of investments for the year ended June 30, 2005 is as follows:
- L " . Changein’
. ) i Fa:r Value,
U.S. Government and Agency obligations - .3 ’ 2, 005 194 .
Domestic bonds | . T J 978,534
Domestic stoéks - - ' 13,810,389
. International stocks ) . ' 13,496,110
 International bonds and notes . R ..+ 1,335,010 N
REI.TS; : . ) e 6186565“'
Total . . T o T s -t 33.811,802 '

i . ~

" Custodial C‘redit}iisk S ) : '

The System does not have a formal policy for-custodial credit nsks or concentmlmn risks.. The System does not
have exposure to custodial credit risk because the cash collateral received on each loan was invested together
with the cash collateral of other qualified tax-exempt plan lenders in a collective investment pool. " At June 30,
2005, the market value of Securities on loan and cash collateral which are included in the above-amounts, was

as follows (000’s omitted)::  -* T o B -
. ~Securities on o Cash ) .
e : Loan . " Collateral
U.S. Govemnment securitiés ’ - $ © 25487 % ' 25,917
Corporate bonds - o 4,983 ) 5,079
Common stocks - - ’ * 6,882 7,052

Total o - Y . 37352 §° - 38,048

The System does not have exposure to ¢oncentration of credit risk. The System does not have any investment |
in any one issuer that represents 5 percent or more of the total investments. :

.
;

Credit Risk ~ : S v :

The System has an mvestrnent pollcy for credit nsk The domestic fixed incorie mvestments should emphasize
high-quality and reasonable diversification:: Investments shall riot be rated below BBB-, unless specxﬁcally
allowed in the managers’ gmdelmes For purposes of caleulating complxance with the credit constraints, if split -
rated, the lowest ratmg w111 apply. The-table on the followmg page details the System’s credit risk at June.30,
2005. i S .



CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA

- NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . . N

Investment Type .

. June 30, 2005

Moody Ratin‘g

Fair Value

Asset Backed Securities
Asset Backed Securities
Asset Backed Securities
Asset Backed Securities -
" Asset Backed Securities
Asset Backed Securities
Asset Backed Securities
Asset Backed Securities
Asset Backed Securities
"Adset Backed Securities
Convertible Bonds
Convertible Bonds
Convertible Bonds
Convertible Bonds
Convertible Bonds
Convertible Bonds
Convertible Bonds
Convertible Bonds
Corporate Bonds
Corporate Bonds

. Corporate Bonds
Corporate Bonds
Corporate Bonds
Corporate Bonds
‘Corporate Bonds
Corporate Bonds
Corporate Bonds
Corpo’rate‘Bonds
Corporate Bonds-
Corporate Bonds
Corpérate Bonds,
.Corporate Bonds
Corporate Bonds
Corporate Bonds
Corp_oraté Bonds
Corporate Bonds
Corporate Bonds
Corporate Bonds
Corporate Bonds
Corporate Bonds
Futurés - .
Mortgage Backed Agencies
Mortgage Backed Agencies
Mortgage Backed Agencies
" Municipals

Mutual Funds

REITs

REITs T

REITs

Short-Term

U.S. Agencies

U.S. Agencies

. Agencies

. Agencies

. Agendias

. Agencies

. Agencies

. Treasury

cCccoccocaocag

Al S 45,013.19
AAA 5,174,989.11
B1 ' 5,512,50
B2 ' ©165,981.52
BA2 . ' . 92,488.80
BA3. 123,528.18
BAA2 36,743.81
BAA3 264,280.90
NA : 738,865.44°
NR T .344,696.54
Bl - 150,950,00
B3 - . 170,237.50
BAZ - 49,312.50
C - .21,200.00
CAAl 166,825.00
CAAZ. . . 184,968.75.
NA : 1,015,058.75
NR 113,437.50.
Al 1,660,807.33
A2 ) -3,103,744.84
A3 . . 2,282,289.86
AAl ' 1,532,446.48
- TAA2 700,218.14
AA3 3,123,738.08
AAA 2,594,664.76
Bl . 3,586,562.50
B2 1,576,787.50
B3 . 1,153,063.58
. BA1 1,198,163.67
BA2 2,842,65%.15
BA3 3,320,141.25
BAAI 1,093,526.79
BAA2 2,502,718.93
BAA3 1,766,687.17
CA . © T124,612.50
CAAL 1,080,652:50
CAAZ 930,762.50
CAA3 343,750.00
© NA 270,925.00
NR- 84,150,00
NR : . - 5.00
AAA 19,133,961.36
NA ‘ 2,175,866.25
NR 2,663,362.53
AA3 59,026.00- - -
NA ) 143,184,057.61
_BAA3 , ‘ 211,260.00
NA. ) 12,070,327.00
NR . . 12,402,667.,00
NR . 5,772,670.32
Al . 31,815.12
AAl ' .7 6,686,209.37
AAA ) 28,872,920.84
B1 ’ 441,000.00 -
BAAT ' |148,297.50
NA ' 381,49533
NR. 3,237,051.41
AAA 37,244,559.57
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T, . CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
{ . NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .
L - June 30,2005 © .
% Foreign Currency Risk .
- The System has an: investment policy for international investments. The international investments shou]d- -
o emphasize high-quality and rcasonable diversification. At June 30 2005, the’ System s foreign currency
.« exposure was as follows: . '
*‘ . " Investment Type Lacal Currency Market Value
‘ CMO- D + Eure Currency $ 875,111.95
" - Common stock = Australian Dollar 2,810,923.77
Common stock ) ‘ ‘Canadian Dollar . 845,160.02
. ‘!'- Common stock . _Danish Krone 64,334.80
. , Cdmmon stock _ Eure Currency .9,573,360.26
- Com mon stock Hong Kong Dollar 1,948,448.54
. + Common stock Japanese Yen 6,343,203.48
! Common stock, New Zealand Dollat - - . 122,372.62
¢ Common stock - , Norwegian Krone 859,669.92
' - Common stock _ Pound Sterling 6,718,491,38
) , Common stock < : 'Swedish Krona  777,031.49
b ’ Common stock Swiss Franc 1,221,552.26
o Corporate bonds ! Eure Cutrency .~ 668,943.70,
” i Foreign currency ) Ausiralian-Dollar 1,851.04 -
* - 4 Foreién currency W ! Cﬂnadxan Dollar _ ., +3,424.8]
i ! Foreigh currency Danish Krone .7 98,036.13
' Foreign currency \ ‘Euro Currency 7 583,142.58
Foreign currency - " Hong Kong Dollar . 97.31
— Foreign currency Indonesian Ruprah . 0.07
VoL Foreign c'urrency Japanese Yen - 80,466.53
I -Foreign currency. New Zealand Dollar 1,721.61
"Foreign currency Norwegian Krone = 53.14
. Foreign currency. o . Pound Sterling 197,623.79
Foreign currency South Korean Won ' . 8,213.74
t__, Foreign currency ' . Swedish Krona . 38417
R ) Foreign currency . - Swiss Franq ) 1],836.86
£ Futures " B} : Japanese Yen : N 5.00
‘l . . Government i 1ssues : Danish.Krone 505,613.05
i Government issies ' ! Euro Currency 25,218,692.38
i Government issues Japanese Yen -, 1,949,777.64
o Government issues Pound Sterling 2,897,314.19
! Government issues Swedish Krona 71 5,_652.81
[ Other asset back : ; Euro Currency 569,330.66
sﬂ ) .
P o “
& F N .
. L]
i \
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CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA .
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2005

‘ _ Interest Rate Risk

The, System does not have a specific investment policy governing mterest rate I’lSk At June 30, 2005 the

System § interest rate exposure was as follows:

LS

[

Effective Duration = .

Investment 'l'ypc Fair Value
Agmcourt Capital Management ) .
-Agency . $ 1,428,293 2.83
Asset backed 171,551 .0.36
CMBS .7 519,689 2.95
CMO 864,873 1.61
Corporate . 3,922,272 ' 5.98
Mortgage pass-through . 4,571,674 . 2,34
. Municipal ’ 36,744 0.13
U.S. Treasury 759,310 13.18 ~
Yankees 196,642 2.64
Fixed In¢ome Total. $ 12,471,048 426
Blackrock.
Agency $ 2,135,251 2.48
Asset backed ) . 5,307,006 . 1.65
CMBS . 3,074,830 3,51
" CMO I 2,093,581 1.64 B
Corporate 9,087,809 4.96 .
Mortgage pass-through - . 9,078,326 2:37
U.S. Treasury . 23,664,900, 5.06 -
Yankees . 481,293 . 6.06
' Fixed Income Total .8 54,922,996 4.02 .
Fishcer, Francis, Trees & Watts
Agency $ 1,030,166 19.72
Asset backed, 569,331 1.45
CMO 875,112 -0.86
Foreign 30,925,827 7.65.
U.S. Treasury ) . 2,268,150 9.40
Fixed Income Total - 35.668,586" 7.87
Loomis-Sayles
Agency $ 548,189 4.96
Convertible’ 103,063 2.72
Corporate © 17,499,660 6.84 -
Preferred stock 505,963 0.00
Yankees - 441,000 10.10
Fixed- Income Total _ $ 19,097,875 6.54
Richmond Capital Management ' . ' . . ’
Agency - -5 1,016,126 3.64
Asset backed . 202,906 0.53
CMBS 714,441 4.03
. Corporate 6,096,833 _4.61
Mortgage pass-through. . 4,309,698 2.25
U:8. Treasury . 147,676 7.76
Fiked Income Total $ 12,487,680 3.67 °

— i



CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA- |
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2005

C. Investments

. Statutes of the Commonwealth of Virginia govem the Reportmg Entlty s investment pollcles The City does not
D ' have a formal policy for custodial credit risk, foreign currency risk or interest rate risk; but does have a policy for
. . . concentration of credit risk. The City’s non-retirement system related investments primarily consist of mutual

. . funds and investments in the Commonwealth of Virginia’s Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP, a 2a-7 like
£ pool) and the State Non-Arbitrage Program (SNAP). As of June 30, 2005, the credit ratings for the LGIP and
g ' SNAP were AAAm and the length of the investments for both programs was less than 90 days. The City does.not
have custodial credit:risk or concentration of credit risk as no investments*are with any one"issuer representmg
more than 5% of total investments. Permissible investments include obligations of the Umted States, its agencies
| and instrumentalities, time certificates of deposit,. bankers' acceptances repurchase agreements, demand notes, and
W commercial paper. Additionally, the City is authorized to place investments of the RRS in common stocks,
. corporate debt securities, U.S, Govemment and Agency Secuntles interhational stocks and bonds, money market .
g . and mutual funds. o

Primary Government {000’s omitted):

1 . i ' Total

' . , ‘Repurchase agresments - - ' 3 - 17,726
’ o U.S. Government securmts (on loan $25, 487) 5, . 50,671
- . _ Corporate bonds (o loan $4,983) : ) ) 51,354 .
P *  Common stocks (on loan $6,882) ’ o : 199,807
- ) - Intemationat bonds ~ ) o .34,190 .
Intemationial stocks ! : . L o2 ‘
T o Real Estate Investment Trusts' ' . ' 25909
! ' . , : ' : 461,931
- Cash collateral received under securities lending program - 38,048
P Deferred compensation plan mutual fimds _ ' " 42370
_ Cash and mcneymarket funds i ' . 51123,
(! . LGIP and SNAP , o . 226,333 )
' ’ ", . Total Cashand hvestments $__ 819,805 o
. . ~ ' . ‘
J : . ; Government-wide \“ F'idu-ciary Funds
: ' Statement of Statement of
, . , . Net Assets Net Assets. - . Total .
Cash and cash equiva[ems- l .5 164,134 3 25,176 § . 189,310
) Investments - v 524,623 ' 524,623
Restricted assets’ - 105,872 . - . 105,872

. Total - T o . 3 - 270,006 3 . 549,799 § 819,805

D. Securltles Lendlng Program

' RRS lends securmes to brokerage firms on-a temporary basis through its custodian bank, State Street Bank & Trust )
T Company (Custodxan) During the fiscal year, the Custodian'lent RRS ‘'seciirities, at the direction of RRS, and
réceived ‘cash, U.S. Government securities, and irrevocable letters of credit as collateral. The Custodian did not
have the ability to pledge or sell collateral delivered absent a borrower default. Borrowers were required to deliver o
collateral for each loan in amounts equal to not Iess than 100% of the matket value of the loaned securities.

RRS did not impose any festrictibn's on the amount of securities lent by the 'Custodicn‘during the year on its behalf
. and the Custodian indemnified RRS by agreeing to purchase replacement securities, or retumn the cash collateral, in,’ .

b : _ " | .63



CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o
N . d une 30, 2005 ‘ . -

the event the borrower failed to return the loaned securities. There were no such failures by any borrowers during
" the year, nor were there any losses during the year resulting from the default of a borrower or the Custodian. RRS
and borrowers mairitain the right to terminate all securities lending transactions on demand. The cash collateral
received on each loan was invested; together with the cash collateral of other qualified tax-exempt plan lenders, in
a collective investment pool. ' The average duration of the investrment in the pool for the year ended June 30, 2005
was 25 days with an average weighted maturity of 174 days. As the loans are terminable at wﬂl the duration of
the investments generally did-not match.the duration of the investments made with the cash collateral. The
collateral held and the market value of the ‘securities on-loan as of June 30, 2005 were $38; ;047,767 and
$37,351,788, respectively. The cash collateral is recorded as both an asset and a liability on RRS’s financial
statements. Securities and letters of credit received as collateral at June 30, 2005 are not recorded in the Statement
of Plan Net Assets, as the RRS cannot séll or pledge the collateral received absent a borrower default. At. year-
" end, the RRS has no credit risk by. borrowers because the amounts the RRS owes the borrowers exceed the
amounts the borrowers owe the RRS.  The gross earnings for securities lending were $760,698 and the related
expenses were. §713,062 in borrowers rebates and $19 052 in agent fees netting $28 584 in secuntles lending
income.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

-

The City reports interfund balances between many of its funds, as follows:

IR
T e g

Debt NonMajor internal " NonMajor

: T R R L e T
e sk Diefromeg: Ca T e “I

. s . R - Total
: . Service Proprietary B Service Govermnmental .
"] General Fund 5 560,533 § - 2,788,097 3B 1,958,198 § 2,183,754 § 7490582
Major Proprietary Funds: . ’ '
Gis . - - 775,970 . - 775,970
Water - ~ 404628 - " 404,628
Wastewater - - . - 1,152,211 - 1,152,211 .

Total $ 560,533 § 2788.097, $ 4291,007  § 2,183754 § - - 9,823,391

The balance of $1,958,198 due to the General Fund from the mtemal service funds resulted ﬁ‘om loans made to
establish working capital when each internal service fund was first created with the balance scheduled to be
collected in fiscal year 2006. . .

All remalnmg balances resulted from Lhe time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are
prov:ded or reimbursable expendlmres occur and' (2) payments between funds ate made.

The Clty reports interfund transfers between many of its funds Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, '
2005, consisted of the followmg ) .
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CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
| : NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e , June 30; 2005 -

Ma;or Prupnetaxy Funds . NonMa_]or All
 Gas Water “Wastewater . Govemmeital | Others " Total

.

40,858430 - = ‘ - ' 898,084 - 41,756,514

9,573,060 o - .= 1033556 - . 10606616
£ 50997746 $ 233,500 § 790900 § ' 1471800 ‘% . 3,040482 § .. 246439+ § 57680867

8

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the find that statute or budget‘recbluires to collect them to the fund

v - that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the funds

collecting the receipts to the Debt Service Fund-as debt service payments become due or'(3) to use unrestricted
revenues collected in the Genera] Fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accnrdance
w1th budgetary authonzauons - ) . Coe

o ‘ Fund [ Waer *» Vbsewater | Govemrmntil Total ~

G0 lemalSeviee § . gs) ¢ 19e0sult | 1G0SLOGE | 2L5M342° | 324008 3SISSM.

1

b 5.” DUE FROM AND DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTS .

.

Amounts due from other govemmeﬁts at June 30, 2005 are as follows:

Prlmary Government o . ) - Federal - _ State © . o Toml

) General Fund - . ' $ - 8 21,429,862° § 21,429,862
. Non-major Governmental Funds ' 4,427,115 - 5011817 © 9438932 °

[ Internal Service Funds ’ : - - - 18,166 18,166

w ' ) : $ 4427015 $ 26459345 § 30886960

[',k_ Component Unit - ; . ' ' ' ] ' ;

o - School Board $ 8906426 § _1380604 8 10.287.120

Amounts due to other f,;ovemme‘nts totaled $3,638,196 for the General Fund, $30,602 for the Non-major
s ' ‘Governmental funds and $3,189 for' Internal Service Funds at June 30, 2005 *

6. NOTES RECEIVABLE

i : . Notes receivable in the General Fund are as follows: :

' v
|

In connection with 4 legal settlement, six notes with interest at 5% per annum, princ'i'pal i

S . " duein years 2004 and 2006. . . . Co- 8 1,000,000
L K . A non-interest bearing promissory note due on demand from Greater Richmond Transit Company - , , " 543,100
: A ] 1,543,100

¢ ' o : . 65
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CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA

7. CAPITAL ASSETS

Primary Government - Governmental Activities

-Capital Assets Not Being Dépre&iated:
Land and Land Imprevements
Construction In Progress
Works of Art/Historical Treasures

Total Capital Assets
Not Being Depreciated

Capital Assets Being Depreciated:.
Infrastructure
Building and Structures
Equipment =~ )
Improv;ements other than Buildings

Total Other Capital Assets

Less Accumulated Depréciation For:
Infrastructure
Bui]difag and Structures
Equipment ’ L
Improvements other than Buildings
Total Accumulated Depreciation

“Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net
Goverrimental Activities, Capital Assets, Net

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2005
Balance ' . Balance
July1,2004 Additions Deletions June 30, 2005
$. 21000460 § 312492 $ 203860 $ 21,109,092,
80,153,120 34,936,108 34,105,429 80,983,799 -
1,209,287 1,446,525 e - 2,655,812.
102,362,867 36,695,125 34,309,289 104,748,703
654,050,728 10,041,686 S - 664,092,414
. 327,544,208 26,269,595 354,072 353,459,731
94,161,419 © 6,384,874 4,456,421 " 96,089,872
4,263,368 24,597 ’ — . 4,287,965
1,080,019,733 ' - - 42720,752 4,810,493 . 1,117,929,982
360,692,110 11,697,850 - 372,389,960
186,886,693 8,188,209 . — 195,074,902
51,337,572 8,634,516 4,416,311 55,555,777
270,801 - . 280451 - 551,252
'599,187,176 28,801,026 4,416,311 623,571,891
480,832,547 13,919,726 394182 494,358,091

50,614,851 §

$ 583195414 §

‘Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

General Government
Public Safety and Judiciary
Highways, Streets, Sanitation and Refuse
Human Sér_vices :
- Culture and Recreation
Educa_tion .

Subtotal
Allocation related to Internal Services Funds
Total

. $ 1,103,830
< 7,976,493
7,019,875

T 262,382

704,436

5,061,728

22,128,744

- 6,672,282
$  78,801.026

66
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' CITY OF RICHMOND; VIRGINIA .

: o NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Primary Government - Business-type Activities N

Gas Uhility: | o

- Capital Assets Not Being Depréciated -

Construction in Progress
Capital Assets Being Depreciated -
Plant Held for Foure Tke
Plent-in-sevice
Total Capiwlmws Being Dipreciated*
Less- Aocunmlamd Depreciation For: : ‘
Plant-in-service: - " ¥
Tota! Accumnlated Deprogiation
Tota] Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Nea ,
Gas Unility, Capital Assets, th

Water Urility: - ) ‘4 N

Capital Assets Not Being Deprecnmed - A
Construction iri Progress
Capital Assets Being Depreciated -
- Plam-m-semce
- Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Less - Aocurnlated Depreciation For:
- Plant-in-scrvice . [
Total Aceunmilated Depreciation
" Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net ©
Water Utllity, Capital’ Assets, Net
Wastewater Utility: ) ’
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated -
. Construction i Progress .
Capital Assets Being Depreciated -
Plant Held for Future Use :
» Plant-in-service .
Toral Capital Assets Being Deprecisted
Less= Accunmlated Degreciation For: T
Plant-in-service N -
Total Acoumutated Depreciation -
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net
Wastewater Utility, Capital Assets, Net -

Other Business-type Activity: .
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated -
Comstruction inProgress ~~ ~
Cepital Assets Being Depreciated - P
Buildings and Structures :
* Equipment and Other leed Assets ¥
' Total CapltalAssets Being Depreciated -
Less - Acounmlated Depreciation For: .
Buildings and Structures - ' -
Equipment and Other Fixed Assets
Total Acounulazed Depreciation
Total G\plm.'l Assets Being Depreciated, Net ,
Cther Business-type Activity, &pnal Assets, th .7

Busms-lype Activities, Capital J_Assers. Net

Allocation of Internal Service Fund - Starés Utility, Net (Exhibit E-2)

N -

June 30, 2005 . O ' .
- ! ' = 4 Ba-[mu -
July 1,2004 Additions “ ' . Deletions ! June 30, 2005
. « s Lot ) '
s 20,652,916 . IS4 S v " 14372730 s 20,433,934
e . B3 ’ = . - 25813
316,090,455 11,907,255 : 1,051.753 326,939,957
316,116,268 11,907,255 R 1,057,753 326,965,770
L - maem. 1031012 * T lasies 92,877,950
83202203 _ .t 11,031,012 1,445,265 92877950
' 232,824,065 ' 276,243 (387,312) 234,087,820
$ 253,476,981 24029991 13985218 §  ° .263,521754
$ 2724477 C19776304  § 9254765 8 24,246,105,
. 268,399,080 6,994,588 - 546,562 274.847,106
- 268,399,080 6,994,588 546,562 274,847,106
’ 70,279,082 5,584,159 581,510 75281731
. 70,279,082 5.3’4.159 - ' 581,510 CTEBLTIL
- . , 198,119,998 1410429 . (34.948) 199,565,375
$ 221,844,475 . 2186823 " § - 9219818 % 233,811,480
$ . 29,571,214 10519777 § . BALMT S 39,269,244
. . 207,075 - A - 207,075
- 338,712,681 7 548,748 N . 339,261429
v 338919756 ° 548,748 - 339,468,504
. 103401825 10,651,620 2,250,166 111,803,279
103,401,825 10,651,620 © 225066 - 111,803,279
235,517,931 (10,1287 . +(2,250,166) 227.665.225
L8 265089045 436905 % ', . (1408419) § ’ 266,934,469
$ £233,390 R - 8,233,390
1,360,328 62,951 R 1,423,279
' 23,294,871 LT g ) 2,758,141
5,936,957 IS 1,725 ¢ £7,346 6,031,336
‘ 29231328, ' 1,643,934 " 121275 30,754,477
9,852,516 1,235,650 T L3t 9,423809
- 537,304 2,045,040 7.389 '2,544,955
. 10,439,820 3,280,690 1.751,746 11,968,764
18,792,008 (1,636.766). . (1630471) 18,785,713
. $ 28,385,726 s (ISTISIS) § . 0 (630471 5 . . 28442382
3 765796327 4079904 § 20,166,146 § .792,710,085
5 20560689 - . 1251074 -§ 126528 § 30,685,235
$ 798357,016 45330978 5 029261 § 825,395,320
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CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2005
School Board Component Unit - Governmental Activities
Balance Balance
July 1, 2004 Additions Deletions June 30, 2005
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Vehicles S 16,644,920 § 412,700 S 1,370,913 S 15,686,707
Other Equipment 5,727,302 434,275 146,547 6,015,030
Total Other Capital Assets 22,372,222 846,975 1,517,460 21,701,737
Less Accumulated Depreciation For:
Vehicles 12,238,583 908,434 1,319,734 11,827,283
Other Equipment 4,392,500 225,200 132,787 4,484,913
Total Accumulated Depreication 16,631,083 1,133,634 1,452,521 16,312,196
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net $ 5,741,139 § (286,659) § 64,939 § 5,389,541

Richmond Redevelopmentand Housing Authority Component Unit - Business-type Activities

Balance
Balance September 30,
October 1, 2003 Additions Deletions 2004
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land $ 10,001,813 % - % - 8 10,001,813
Land pledged against debt 2,902,193 -- 2,618,307 283,886
Construction In Progress 21,279,174 8,303,868 563,044 29,019,998
Total Capital Assets
Not Being Depreciated 34,183,180 8,303,868 3,181,351 39,305,697
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Land Improvements 7,493,709 -- - 7,493,709
Building and Structures 136,492,064 25,999 360,000 136,158,063
Building and Structures pledged against debt 64,983,867 - 35,815,914 29,167,953
Equipment 2,820,778 23,620 -- 2,844,398
Total Other Capital Assets 211,790,418 49,619 36,175,914 175,664,123
Less Accumulated Depreciation For:
Land Improvements 4,539,886 314,255 -- 4,854,141
Building and Structures 94,033,997 3,007,183 - 97,041,180
Equipment 1,691,080 216,835 -- 1,907,915
Total Accumulated Depreciation 100,264,963 3,538,273 - 103,803,236
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 111,525,455 (3,488,654) 36,175,914 71,860,887
Total Capital Assets, Net $ 145,708,635  $ 4,815,214 § 39,357,265 $ 111,166,584

R N T M R YD AR
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‘ © Component Unit Capital Assets Pledged Against Debt: S ———

r

; During the year, management of the City confirmed their intention to require the returmn collateral when the related debt %
is extinguished. Therefore, RRHA has reduced the carrying value of these pledged assets (currently utilized for City

‘ activities) to their related debt value. This resulted in the Old Manchester Project bonds and the Sixth Street
Marketplace pledged net assets totaling $67,886,060 being reduced by $38,434,221 in the current year.

A L U S A s, 8 o - i
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. CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA ,
NOTES TO.FINANCIAL STATEMENTS S R
June30,2005 -

. F [ . +

OBLIGATIONS - I

Changes in the short-term liabilities during the frgéal‘ yéar ended Juge 30, 2005 arq_éum‘mari,;ed_be]&w:

"Primary Government - vaernme'n;al A.t:ﬁvities

1

. .’Balance .  Balance ‘
’ July 1, 2004 *_Additions _ Deletions ., June 30, 2005 .
", Generl Obligation Revenue Anticipation Notes ~ * _$ - 45,000,000 - 45000000 .§ ' -
Changes in the long-term liabilities during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005 are' summarized below:
Primary Government - : !
. Governmental Activifics, . . N " Due
' - -~ Balance oo . . Balance . " Within
_ Faly 1, 2004 Additions Deletions June 30, 2005 One Year
General Obligation Bonds (GO) : '
Govenmental Funds:’ - . - ~ _ . B . L .
Existing General Obligation Bonds To$ AR0TSTIS S - - S "27,007914 8§ 39096781 § - -
Debt Alldcated to Business Activities' ; - = 1,575,486 (15754860 -
Total General Obligation Bonds 418,075,775 - 28,683,400 389,392,375 33,106,581
NewDebt Issued: . .. , T _ .
General Chligation Serial EqmprrmNotes 1,820,000 7,000,000 -, 1,820,000 7,000,000 1,400,000
Virginia Public Schools Anthority Bends -+ 3,263,521 - 221,132 3042389 21,815
Qualified Zone Acadenty Bonds 2,142,167 “1,536,671 _ - 114,145 3,564,603 , 192,480
HUD Section 108 Notes " 6,125,000 - 530,000 5,505,000, 575,000
Total(haaIObhgantouis amdNotes . § 431426463 S 8536671  § 31368677 § 4083504457 S 35495936
Abereted Value - ChpltalApprematlonBonds L 0486 83,998 - ‘188824 -
Premium on Debt Issued - . . 12034226, " - - ", 655,683 11,378,543 655,683
Certificates of Participation 18225000, - - 640,000° 17,585,000 665,000
Capital Leases : 667,067 - BEO L, 43425 142,037
Compensated Absenices . . 14242556 69,793 5901 * 14,306,448 9414,221
Totals ' $ 47670038 § 8600462  § ' 32903070 § 452487530 § 46372877
Notes: =

1 'Ihe$1,5754860fdebtprewwslyrqxxhdastrmyGomnmt GovmumtAmwumhasbeenrca]lmtedmﬂlerhsaml(Sl 512,535)andr.heC£nEtmes
(562,951) EnterpnseFlmds audm'erqntedas&mnw-TypcAcmquﬁ. -
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CITY OF RICHMON]) VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2Q05 .

Primary Government -
Business-Type Activities -

. o ) L Due ,
' ' Balance o . Balance - Within |
July 1, 2004 * Additions Deletions June 30, 2005 One Year
General Obligation Bonds: ) : .
Gas $ 115379573 § - 8 4848809 § 110,530,764 S 4,309,490
Water 89,544,848 - - 3,823,507 85,721,341 ' 3,000,277,
. Wastewater k ' 48,151,024 ~ . 2,714,456, 45,436,568 2,572,037
Other NonMajor Enterprise Funds ' 17,427,617 . 1,575,496 1,495,804 17,507,309 1,261,826
Accreted Value - Capital Appreciation ‘ - " ' : .
General Obligation Bonds: .
Gas . 734,784 - 588,800 . - 1,323,584 . -
Water . 1175552 942,000 - 2,117,552 -
" Wastewater 480,705 385202 . - " 865,907 , -
. Revenue Bonds: - ’ - ‘
Gas 115,792,877 7,087,009 812,928 122,076,958 975,121
Water ' 36,275,082 55,788,313 67,890 91,995,505 1,068,601
Wastewater 104,823,667 . 4,769,673 2,850,210 106,743,135 3,022,425
. Total Bonded Debt - 520,785,729 71,146,498 16,613,604 584,318,623 "16,299,777
Capital Léases; . ' . '
' . OdierNgnMajdrEnLemrise Funds 2,253,952 o 183,819 2,070,133 207,968
Totals “ 8 532,039.681 © 3. 71,146/498 8 16,797,423  § 586,388,756 T % 16,507,745

4 r

Long-term habthtles appllcab]e to the City’s governmental activities are not due and payable in the current penod and
accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities in the- governmental funds. Interest on long-term, debt is not accrued.in
governmental funds, but rather is recognized as an expenditure when- due.  All'liabilities — both current and long-term . -
— are reported in the Statement of Net Assets.” Also, for thé governmental actwmes, clalms and judgments and
compensated absences are generally liquidated by the General Fund. ' :

General Obligation Bonds and Notes are secured by the full faith and credit of the City and are payable from taxes
levied on all property located within the Clty Gerleral Obligation -Serial Equipment Notes and’ obllgatlons under
capital leases are payable from Geneéral Fund and Internal Service Fund revenues,

1

Legal Debt Limit: ) ) .

" Article VII, Section 10 of the Constltutlon of Virginia pmwdes Lhat the legal debt limit for cxtles for'i 1ssu1ng General

Obhgatlon debt is ten (10) percent of the last preceding assessment for-real estate taxes. As of June30, 2005, the City
had a legal debt limit of $1,507,923,335 and the statutory capacity to issie approximately $822,538,667 of additional
General Obligation debt (remaining debt margin). The City has no overlapping debt with other jurisdictions. As of
June 30, 2005, the City had a total of $508,136,964 general obligation or revenue- bonds authorized, but not issued, for
funding additional Capital Improvemerit Projects. Of these authorized but not issued bonds, $401,161,766 is
earmarked for self-supporting'Public Utility projects and. $106,975,198 for various General Fund supported capital
projects and equipment. <
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" Premturm on Debt Issucd

. CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
’ June 30, 2005

B

Details of Bonds ‘and Notes Outstanding:

General Obligation Bonds }
Pubbe Improverent Bonds 19894

Public Tgrovement Bonds 19898

Public Inprovement Refimding Bonds 19934
Pulic Irproveiment Bonds 15938 ,

Public Inprovernent Refinding Bonds 19958. -
Public irprovement Bonds 1999A

“Public Improvement Refinding Bonds 19998

Public Improvernent Refimding Bonds 20004
Public Improverment Boods 2001

Public Inprovement Bonds 20024

Public Improvement Refimding Bonds 20028
Public Improvement Bords 2003 '
Public Improvemen: Bords 20044

Public Inprovement Refimding Bonds 2004B

Virginia Public School Authority Bonds
VPSA Bonds 19974

Cualified Zons Acadeiy Bonds - 2004
Qualified Zone Arademy Bonds - 20045

Generad Obfigation Notes
Seria! Equiprient Notes Series 2005

HUD Section 108 Notes

HUD Section 108 Note Series 1997
HUD Section 108 Note Series 2000
HUD Section 108 Noté Series 2003
HUD Section 108 Note Scries 2004

Public Utility Revemue Bonds 19684 .
Public Utility Reveme Bonds 1998C - VRA
Public Usility Reverue Bonds 1998D - VRA
Public Utity Reveme Bonds 20024
Public Utility Reverue Bonds 2003 - VRA
Public Utility Revenue Bonds 2004-
Certificates of Participation Series 20014
Richmond Redevelopment & Housing Authority
Reverme Notes and Bonds .

Downtown Redevelopment Project One

Cther Mortgage Notes . * >’
EUA CitiZens Cohservation Service Note
Rehabilitation Notes Payable d

Broad Street Community Development Authoriy

2003 Revenue Bonds

Total Ourstanding Bonded Debt
Accreted Value - Capital Appreciation Bonds |+

2

v

. . - ‘ot June 30,2005
Interest Issue - Matuity " Origiml Goverimental Enterprise
Rates Datc Datc Issuc Aktivitics »_Funds . Units
6.800%« 7.55% JISNSES  MIS009 S CMSN000 § - 268277 § - 80349 § -
5,800 - 6.70% T15/1989 WL5/2010 65,674,506 5,532,055 2492,11] 59,794
*3.00%- 6.50% 611993 171572022 175,125,000, 32,471,508" 2,905,010, 172,068
3:00%- 6.50% . 611993 TN512023 91,700,000 6,783,401 « B,646,559 -
4,05% - 6.00% 12/15/1995. 111572021 82,270,000 893898 ¢ 63,511,102, =
40064-5375% 6111999 /152024 98,145,000 £2,456,849 2,268,151 -
- 400% - 5,125% 611999 11502016 35,740,000 13324950 - . - 14597231 48,999,
4.50%-5.50% 10182000 1152018 122,730,000 ) - 108,500,000 -
A4.00% - 5.50% 12/1572001 1512022 116400000 . | - 95443650 1,621,350 -
3.00%- 5.25% 1111572002 M08 50,455,000 38,107,554 7227446 . -
4.00%- 5.25% 114152002 M523 96,220,000 35,657,363 46,114,403 146,432
442% 1171372003 M08 13,500,000 12945000 ° - -
3.00%- 5.50% &152004 W152024 . 55655000 - ' 55,655,000 . = -
3.00% - 5.00% 6/15/2004 52015~ 9,300,600 TA67,780 - 1832230 ° -
435%- 535% 1141511997 52017 4,578,704 3,042,389 L= .-
% /672004 5162019 2,142,167 2,028,022 . - -
. 0% 1273072004 120302020 1,536,671 1,536,671 - -
.~ " . [ . . '
* Yoo ’ '
295% 672912005 61512010 7,000,000 7,000,000 : - -
" 58T~ 6.9%% 10:2811997 8172014 2,445,000 1,360,000 - , =
6.56%-7.76% 61472000 ®/1/2014 4,500,000 . 3,000,000 - -
- 1.21%-493% 8712003 #1/2014 500,000 650,000 - -
231%. 5.19% 630/2004 B1/2014 585,000 * 585,000 - . o
420%- 525% 41211998 My 114,740,000 - 97,110,000 -
Y 3 UL 1572018 10,000,000 - 7515046 - -
300% /71997 21512019° B.600,000 - 6,500,552 -
5.00% 6152002, ' 11572033 139,015,000 - 139,015,000 -
210% - 3.82% 12/472004 - 10/1/2008 3,730,000 = ‘ 3,020,000 -
2,00% - 5.00% 61572004 171512024 67,655,000 - 67,655,000 -
4.00% - 5.15% - 612001 8/1/2022 18,840,000 17,585,000 . -
- - - - 49282145 - - 31,006,839
- - - 200000 .- - . 15,800,000
_ - - _ - - 419,028 . - . - 257,89
s SR 10481599 12182013 6,161,174 - : - 4,564,658
- - s - - - 12,081,463
7.1%-1.5% 571502003 172033 66,740,000 - . 66,740,000
. ' ; I aEImAT 5 WAL S . 124
$ . u3msa s - -
. : . - 188,824 - 4307083 -
: 3 437,746,824 135,278,149
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CITY OP: RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2005

The .annual requirements to amortize to. maturity all long-term. debt outstanciing {General Obliéation Bonds, General -
Obligation Serial Equipment Notes, Virginia Public School Authority Bonds, Public Utility Revenue Bonds Certzﬁcates of .
Participation and Section 108 Promissory Notes Payable), mcludmg interest payable is as. follows

u
1

Governmental Activities:
) General Obligation VPSA . HUD Section Certificates of
"Bémds and Notes Bonds - - .. 108Notes _ ', Paticipation
Fiscal Year (000's amitted Principal , - Interest - Princinal nterest.  Principal  Interest | Principal =~ Interest’
2006 - $ 34698 19 s 2 S 153 § 575 $ 345 §- 665 $ 80
- 2007 34,182 21,739 - 23 142 555 312 690 772
. 2008 .. 31,540 19,779 225 o130 sss . . . T, M
: 2009 27057 19,776 1) 118 55 ¢ 243 7 . 780 715
2010 26,979 15,580 ° 29 106 855 208 780 684
2011-2015 . 99063 48,993 1,179 346 2800 482 “4,415 2877
2016-2020 84,960 26,251 737 58 - - 550 1720
2021-2025 - 6l468 . 6,629 - - - .= - . 4025 309
Subtotal . 399957, 181906 .. 3042 1,053 5,595 1,868 17585 8621
Premium ‘ 11,379 - - . - - - - .-
Accreted Value - Capital . S ’
Appreciation Bonds 189 C— — ~ - - = =
Total ‘85 411,525 § 181906 % 3042 & 1053 5 5595 § 1868 'S5 17585 8 8621
Business-type Activities; . ‘ , S .
General Obligation Reveme*
Fiseal Year (000's omitted) Principal Tnterest Principal " Interest
2006 0 $ 1,51 % 14355 $ 5066 § 15575
2007 11,680 13909 ° 5267 15378
. 2008 12,023 13,970 5,469 . 15172 f
2009 14,112 12,003 5,691 14,955 '
.- 2010 . 14,825 12,130 5,099 14,740 .
| 20112015 K 85,772 4,713 . 20,053 0,156 - . .-
2016-2020 : 83,509 17659 T 34361 - 62945 - L '
2021-2025 - 26,124 2,102 55,600 53,368 ' ‘
. 20262030 - - - 96,720 - 34,655 .
. 20312035 - - 78,490 8972 . .
Subtotal - 259,196 128021 . 320816 305,916 T - ..
Acereted Value - Capital , L : ‘ ) o S
. Appreciation Bonds . 4307 - L= =
Total '$ 263503 § 128021 § 320816, § 305916




CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. June30,2008 -

The City is in compliance with'all significant financial debt c(fvenants.

The City has several lease agreements for equrpment under non-cancelable caprtal leases. They are as fo]lows

o A $700 000 equrpment lease purchase agreement to ﬁnance a portlon of the costs of upgrades and
. replacements to the heating, ventilation, and air condmomng systems of the Landmark Theatre.

Il

e A $1,670,000 equ1pment lease- purchase agreement to finance upgrades and replacements to the heatmg,

ventllatlon and air condrtromng systems of the;Richmond Coliseum. -

'-h

e A ﬁve-year $716 298 equipment lease purchase agreement for coinputer equrpment

‘The assets acqurred through capltal leases are as. follows !
. ' *.Governmental

Business-type, }

e - Activities . Activities
Asset: - - -
Machineryand Equlpment - % 716 5 2,370,
Less: Accumulated Depreeratron : C . 282 300
* Total assets acqurred through capital lease paymets 8 T 434§ 2070
Future minimum lease payments are as follows: .
' Governmental | BuSirtess—type 7
. Fiscal Year { $000'% Omitted . ! . Activities Activities,”
2006 o © 8 151 s . 299 .
2007 ' . 150 299
2008 ' Y150 299
2000 . . C - 299
2010 ‘ ' . - 299
2011-2015 ' L “1,017
Total minimum capital lease payments 3 451 '§ 2512
Less amounts representing interest . : ' 17 .. 442
8§ 2,070

Present value of minimum capttal lease payments 3 434

Debt issued during the ﬁseal year ended June 30, 2005 is as follows:

from 2.00% to 5.00%.

! .

On November 4, 2004, the City sold $45,000,000 of seasonal General Obhgatlon Revenue Anticipation Notes through a
competitive bid. Wachovia Bank N.A. was the purchaser of the Notes Prior to issue, Moody’s, Standard & Poors and
Fitch Ratings gave these notes their highest short-term credit ratrngs of MIG-1, SP-1+, and Fi+, réspectively.
coupon interest rate of these notes was 3.50%; however the City received an upfront ‘premium. of $433,350 thereby

73

On July 15, 2004, the City issued -867,655,000 of Public Utility Revenue, Bonds — Series 2004 fo find -capital
improvements of the Gas, Water, and Wastewater Public Utilities. The bonds-are limited obligations of the City and are
" payable solely.from certain revenues- derlved by the City from its natural gas, water, and wastewater utilities. ‘
Principal payments are due each January 15" beginning January 15, 2006 and annual principal payment amounts range
from $1,210,000 to.S2, 410,000 per year. Interest on the bonds .payable seml—annually at coupon interest rates ranges

fl




CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2005 h

making the effective true interest rate cost.on the Notes a rate of 1.88%. Proceeds of these notes were used to fund
ongomg operations. The notes were repaid in full on June 29 2005. . _ '

On December 30, '2004 the City zssued $1,536,671 of Quahﬁed Zone Academy Bonds (“QZABS”) to ﬁnance spec1ﬁc
capital projects of the Richmond Public Schools. A local bank purchased the bonds. The QZABs are zero percent
interest bonds with principal payments due in annual installments each December 30 through the year 2020. No interest

s due on the QZABs throughout the life of this debt.

On June 29 2003, the City issued a $7,000, 000 five-year Note to finance the purchase of various equipment and vehicles
during the fiscal year. A-local bank provided the financing at a fixed interest rate of 2.95%. ' The Note calls for dnnual
repayment of $1 400,000 on July 15® of each year with mterest due semi-annually on  January 15" and July 15% of each
year.

- The Clty maintains a $15.0 million Line with the U.S. Department of Housmg and Urban Development (HUD) under

.

the Section 108 Loan Guarantee Program. This Program allows communities such, as the City of Rickmond to boriow
against future Community Development Block Grants made available by HUD. These HUD Guaranteed loan funds
are used for eligible housing rehabilitation projects in programs administered by the Richmond Redevelopment and
Housing Authority. No additional borrowings were made under the line during the year ending June 30, 2005..

£

Defeasance of Debt
At June 2005, the City had no outstanding defeased debt. *

Subsequent Events

On July 28, 2005 the City issued $93,245,000 of General Obllgatton Publtc Improvement Refundtng Bonds, Sertes
2005A to advance refund cértain maturities of its_outstanding Series 1999A and Series 2001 General Obllgatlon
Bonds. The $93,245,000 par amount along with a premmm received were used to establish an irrevocable trust with-
an escrow. agent to provide for all future principal, premium, and interest payments on- the refunded maturities of the
-1999A and 2001 bonds. The refundtng generated $6,338,963 in debt service savings, equal to $3,690,043, in Net
Present Value Savings over the remaining nineteen-year life of the bonds The 2005A bonds have coupon interest -
rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.00% with interest payable on January 15" and July 15" of each year. Annual principal
amounts due of between $75,000 and $9,615,000 are payable on July 15" of each year with a final maturity on July
15,2023,

‘On October 18, 2003, the City issued $61 890, 000 of General Obligation Public Improvement Refundlng Bonds,
Series 2005B to current_refund certain maturities of its outstanding Series 1995B General Obligation Bonds being
called effective January.15, 2006. The $61,890,000 par -amounts along with a premlum received were used to

' establish an irrevocable: trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future prlnclpal premium, and interest payments

due on the 1995B-bonds. The refundmg generated $6,373,841 in' debt service savings equal to $4,222,474 in Net
Present Value Savings.over the remaining sixteen-year life of the bonds The.2005B bonds have coupon interest rates -
ranging from 3:00% to 5.00% with interest pdyable on January 15® and July 15" of each year. - Annual principal.
amounts due of between $135 000 and $7,575,000 are payable on July 15" of each year with a final maturity on July
15, 2020, .
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CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA .
oo : ,NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS :
June 30,2005 - L

Component Units
o o Schdol Boaid

At June 30, 2005, School Board long-terrn obligaticns consisted of the following:

AmountsPayable - . Amounts Payable  Dus Within One

B R at Juyl,2004  Tncredsés” Decreases - at June30,2005 ~  Year
. Workers' Compensation Liability - .- 8 121186 § - 703162 § 54813 § 1373,195 § 940743 *
: Vacation Pay Liability - ' 311904 ST2779 80073 . 290L650 349771
SickPaylLisbiliy .~ ) 10,167,880 2526483 3,052,634 964,729+ 1018787
Incurmed But Not Reported Healtli Clains Liability T o3eiI83 2560703 25294201 . 4,039,595 3,595,240
Ezrly Retirernent Benefits Plan . . - o
- Net Pension Obligation ‘ ' N 3792796 940349 - - 4733145 -
Total C s 21994749 S 041476 § . 20TH/OU § 268934 §_ 500454
f ‘ . " . . (' ) , |
- : - Richmond Ambulance Authorlty L ‘ . cno

- .« Long-térm debt comprises $367,499 of vanous General Obllgatron Bond issues. that are. guaranteed by the full farth
g and credit of the Clty, of which $53,181 is current

Heospital Authorlty of Richmond

P - Long-term debt. comprises $59,794 of various General Oblrgat:on Bond issues, whlch are guaranteed by the full
! -~ faith, and credlt of the City, of whlcb 513, 658 is current,

Rlchmond Behavroral Health‘Authorlty o

RBHA has a $1 million unsecured line of credit agreement with’ a ﬁna.nc1al institution, payable on demand with ”
interest baséd on the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 2:375%, The line of credit commitment has no
exp1rat10n date, RBHA d1d not draw upon this 11ne of credlt during the ﬁscal year ended June 30; 2005, .

.

Ru:hmond Redevelopment and Housmg Authority

v " Long-term debt comprises $68; 110 856 of various General Oblrgatron and Revenue Bonds and Notes Payable.
- $19,000,000 of this amount is payable to the City of Richmond. Of the remammg $48,310,856; an amount of
. + $36,850,355 was issued under cooperation agreements between RRHA and the City of RJchmond whereby the Crty
- . has made moral obh gations to provrde funding to pay the debt. A

o : Rlchmond Broad Street Commumty Development Authorlty

‘ + ., Long-term debt .comprises.$65, 005 242 of Revenue Bonds payable, net of dlscount of $1 734,758. There 1smo current
portton due. The first scheduled pnnerpal payment is due J uly I, 2009 ,

= ' 9 "FUND EQUITY BALANCES . .

It * . . Y

- , "The fund equity balances have“been classified to reflect tiie limitafions and restrictions placed on the respective * -

funds. Reserved fund balance represents that portion of fund balance not available for appropriation or expend1ture
;o De51gnated fund balance represents amounts that are tentatlvely planned for financial r ‘Tesource, utilization in a fiiture

s - 4 ¥
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penod Undesignated fund balance represents the remamder of the City's. equlty in govemmental funds’ fund
balances.. Fund balances reserved at-June 30, 2005 are composed of the following: .

Other NonMajor -
. Governmental
. General Fund . Debt Service Funds
Encumbrances , ‘ $ 4500712 $ - 5 -
. Advances to Component Units, ' © 1,300 . -, e o
Debt Service Cos ' , o . 1480501 . .-
Trust Corpus : . : , - . - © 463,561
Notes Receivable \ . 1,543,160 L - A -
. Other . : . ) ' " 16,171,559 = . 48,468,982

Totals " * Co : $ 2216671 § , 1480501 $

L

. 48,932,543 .

Other reservations for the General Fund are comprised mainly of the development of a new' financial s&stem

(54,000,000), Special -Revenue Funds ($1,600,000), Real Estate Bonds ($1,000,000), Emergency Commumications
($2,700,000), the Coliseum ($900 000), fuel costs ($1 000,000), and the City Sheriff’s Department ($2 000 ,000). -

Fund balances designated at June 30, 2005 are composed of the followmg

Other'NonM_ajor_'

. Governmental
. . ‘ o - General Ftnd Funds '
Completion of approved or specified ‘projects and activities $ 6218440 § 11473432

The Risk Management and Radio Maintenance Internal Service Funds had deficit net assets of $12, 090,660 and
$368,790, respectively, at June 30, 2005. City' management anticipates eliminating the deficns overa penod of time

_» - not exceedmg ten years (see Note 10). Yo : ) .

10.

ar TN

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City’s risk management activities are conducted throtigh the Self, Insurance Internal Service Fund and have been
accounted for in accordance wrth GASB Statement No. 10, as amended by GASB Statement No. 30 Risk Fi mancmg
Omnibus.” . . ' . o

_The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, errors:and

omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disastérs. For all retained risks, claims expénditures and liabilities are
reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount.of loss can be reasonably estimated. These

Jlosses include an estimate ‘of claims that have. been mcutred but not reported There_have been,no significant

reductions in. insurance coverage from coverage in the prior year, and settled claims have not exceeded the amount

- of insurance coverage in any. of the: past three fiscal years.

For workers™ compensatton the Clty assumes the first $750 000 of any accident and pays claims filed directly - from

appropriations to various agencies. Excess workers’ compensation coverage provides. protection for accidents.

exceeding ' $750,000. -Claims for mdemmty benefits may be paid over a maximum period of 500 weeks with the
exception of certain legally deﬁned cases, which may be pard for the lifetime of the claunant
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-The City is self-insured for the first $1,000, 000 of any general llablhty, automobr]e lrabrhty, ‘public officials-or polrce
- professional liability claim. The, City bas purchased $10,000,000 in excess liability coverage over a $1,000,000 self-

insured retention from States Self-Insurers Risk Retention’ Group (States) a-public entity risk .pool domiciled in the"
State of Verrnont Cla1ms under the $1,000,000 self-insured retentlon are paid through budget appropnatlons

The City-owned Utilities (Gas, Water and Wastewater Proprietary Funds) are a member of the Associated Electric
Gas and Insurance Services, Ltd., a member-owned company based in New Jersey. In éxchange for an annual
premium, the utilities are provided insurance coverag'e fo a limit of $35 million per- «occurrence for excess liability .
with self-insured retention of $1,000,000 per occurrence for General and Employers' Lzablhty, and $1,000,000 per -
occurrence for Pollution Llablhty The utilities are also a member of Energy Insurance Mutual Ltd, which provides
excess liability coverage with hmrts of $100 million in excess of the $35 million underlymg coverage.

The City also carries commercial insurance in a number of srnaIIer more.defined nsk areas such as employees faithful
performance, money ‘and securmes and medlcal professional. llabrhty -

- During the fiscal year ended Juiie 30, 2005, prermums for excess coverage and claims paid for self-ingured coverage

were recognized as revenue in the Risk Management Fund and recorded as expenditures (expenses) in the appropriate
Governmental and Propnetary Funds, respectwely . ) ‘

Tn ‘conformity. with GASB No. 10, as amended by’ GASB No 30 the Clty ] aggregate llablhty for umnsured‘ L
. workers’ compensation, gcneral liability, and automobile liability at Juné 30, 2005 was $28,264,064 (undrscounted)

and $23,835,562 (discounted at 15.7%) as recommended by a ﬁrm of conSuItlng actvaries. Changes in the aggregate

+ b

', Current Year- ) .
" . Beginningof - Claimsand - Claims and .
" ' Fiscal Year - ChangesIn, | Premium Balance at Fiscal
Fiscal Year ' Liability Estimates . . Payments ' Year end
2004 $ - 19,682,060 % 8,089342 $ (5,798,608) $ »  21,972,7%.
2005 . \21,972,7534 $ 7,650,827 - &~  (5,788,059) $" - 33835562 .

School Board Component Unit

- The School Board is exposed to various'risks of loss related. to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
* - errors and omissions; injuries to.employees; and natural disasters. The School Board reports all of its risk mianagement
activities in its General Fund, and pays all claims for retained risks from General Fund resources. The School Board

maintains a comprehensive property ‘and casualty policy, @ commercial general liability ‘policy, a comprehensrve
liability vehicle fleet policy, and coverage for School Board errors and omissions, workers’ compensation and
employer’s liability, and certain other, risks with commercial insurance companies. The General Fund retains the risk
up to $350,000 for each worlker’s compensanon clairh and $100,000 for each property dainage claim, and retains the

full risk for unemployment compensation and health care benefits. All-unemployment and health care clains are paid ° )

through a third-party administrator from General Fund resotrces. For all retained risks, claims expenses and liabilities
are reported when it is probable that a loss. has occurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estnnated -These
losses include an estimate of claims that have been incurred but not reported

" At June. 30 2005 the amount of claim liabilities were $5 412,790; which’ con51sted of lncun’ed but not reported

health claims of $4,039,595, and workers compensation habrlmes of $1 ,373,195.
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Changes in the aggregate for these liabilities for fiscal years 2004_a:nd 2005 were:

- u ,

. Current Year - .
Beginning of Claimsand | Claims and, "
Fiscal Year ChangesIn . Premium Balance at Fiscal  Due Within One
Fiscal Year Liability . Estimates - Payments Year end Year
2004 $ . 4910869 $ - 26809436 $ (26,865,276)" § 4855029 $ 4,001,617 °

2005 3 4855029, § 26393865 . $ (25,8356,104) $ 5412790 § ~ ° 4,535983

11. HEALTH CARE PLAN '

The City offers all active employees a He'althcafe program to include a Health Maintenance Organization (I:IMO),
Point of Service Program (POS) and a. Preferred Provider Organization (PPO) through the CIGNA organization.”
_Under the HMO, employees must see network physwlans hospltal pharmac:les and other network providers for all
serv1ces .

1

Networks are not guaranteed and may change during the’ contract year. Flat dollar co-payments apply to this
program. The POS program has. the same network as the HMO; however, there is an out-of-network benefit plan
that allows employees under the plan to use any provider. Deductibles apply to this program as well as flat dollar
and percentage co-payments, depending on the service. .

The PPO is only availablé to employees who live outs1de the CIGNA service area. If an employee is not ellglble for
PPQ, a companion mdemmty prograin is available, Rates for cach program are as follows

A

. HMO - "~ - POS . ' PPO - Indemmty , City -

Status Semi-Monthly Seimi-Monthly Semii-Monthly Semi-Monthly Monthly
Single $ 1665 $ 3297 § 1665 § 1665 $ 238.64
Plus One $ 10272 S 18944 $ 10272 § 10272 § 406.36
Family $ 17159 [$ 22461 § . 17159 § 17159 $ 54056

N ' a
.

'12. RETIREMENT PLANS

A General

]

The City maintains a smgle-employer defined benefit pensnon plan Richmond Retirement System (the City Plan),
which covers substantially all City employees, certain School Board employees and all RBHA employees, and
certain Hospital Authonty and Port of Richmond Commissidn employees. A majority of the employees-of the
School Board participate in the Virginia Retirement System (VRS), an agent and cost sharing multiple-employer
retirement plan that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for certain political subdivisions in the
_Commonwedlth of Virginia. The Clty Plan is. considered part of the City financial reporting entity and is included

in the City's financial staternents as a Pension Trust Fund. The payrolls for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005 for -

the employees covered by the City Plan and VRS were $159, 048,796 and $148, 098,643, Tespectively. The total -
payrolls for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005 were $257 433 009 for the C1ty and$176,498;256 for the School
Board. , : ' . .

.
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| ' B. Richmond Retiremhent System ~
I Plan Descnptmn

] The RRS Board of Trustees administers the City Plan. Clty Council is responsible-for establishing benefit
prov1smns and- fundmg requiretnents. Current membersh1p in the- Clty Plan at June 30, 2005 is as follows:

,

1 ' Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving ‘benefits < 3,720

|
o Veited Terminated Employees L 711
C " ' Current Employees . T ’ .
‘ ' - . Vested o . ‘ l 2,636.
l Nonvested A . 971
DC Plan Participants with Frozen Benefits 70
Total : . C . 9508

1 .. Systemare credited to a single retirement account. Alli income from the assets of the System is credlted to this
‘ account. Al System benefits are pald from this account,

A member is ehglble for normal retirement on his normal retirement date Early retirement is penmtted at any

t1me within the ten-year penod prior to normal retirement date, provided the member has completed five or -

"more years of creditable service or at any age with 30 years of creditable serv1ce (general employees) or 25
years of creditable service (police/fire employees). Police and fire employees may retire at age 50 with five or

b more years of servicé; however, the benefit zmount will be reduced by 5/12% for each complete month by-

which retirement precedes the earlier of age 60 or the date on wh1ch the employee would have completed 25

- ‘ years of service. General employees may retire at age 55 with 5 or more years of service; however, in this

' instance the: benefit will be reduced by 5/12% for edch ‘complete month by which retirement précedes the
e o : earller of age 65 or the date on which the employee would have completed 30 years of serv1ce '

o : Upon service retlrement a member becomes ehglble to receive ‘an annual allowance payable in equal |

B . ) monthly mstal]ments "The a.nnual allowance is computed as follows: S S
- * _An amount equal to:

s, General Employees - 1 .75%. of the meimber’s average final compensatlon multlplled by the number of
years of cred1table service up to 35 years.’

\ b. Police & Fire Employees - 1.65% of the member 8 average final compensatlon mult:plled by his

number of years of -creditable service up to 35 years. 'In addition, a supplement of .75% of-the .,

- ' . . . member’s average final compensation, multiplied by the number of y years of creditable service up to 25
; years is payable from retlrement to age 65.

Effectlve March 1, 1997, certain City ofﬁclals and department heads can make contributions to the RRS The

I

amomzatlon of prior service costs over a 20-year period.

79

" The City’s plan provides retirement benefits as well as_-disability'beneﬁts. All permanent full time-employees-
must participate in RRS. All benefits vest after 5 years of credited service. All of the funds and assets of the .

City contribution, authorized by City Council, is actuarially determined and consists of current costs and'
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RRS issues a publicly available annual financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to Richmond Retirement System ‘900
East Broad Street, Room 400, R.lchmond Virginia 23219 or by calhng (804) 646-5958

II. Funding Policy

_ determined by the actuary (expressed as a percentage of payroll) equal to the sum of the “normal contribution™
and the “accrued liability contribution.”. The accrued liability contribution is determiried as that amount

. actuarial accryed hablllty in future' years. due to changes’in actuanal assumptions, changes in the City Plan -

I

The City Code of 1993, as amended, requires the City to contribute to the City Plan, a'unua.lly, an amount as

necessary to amortize the unﬁ1nded~actuar1a1 accrued liability and any increase or décrease in the unifunded

provisions (mcIudmg the grantmg of cost-of- living mcreases) ‘or actuarial gains or losses amortlzed over a
period of 20 years with payment 1ncreasmg 4% per year:

The following is:a schedule of the City’s contributions for fiscal years ended June 30,-2003 through 2005
(unaudited):

Fiscal Year =~ Annual Required . Percentage : : )
* Ended Jine 30 Contribution - Contributed Y ' ‘
2003 YT 18692905 - - 100.00%
" 2004 . 21,448,527 100.00% .
T 2005 1. 23,386,747 100.00%

The overall employer.contribution rate increased from 12.92% for the fiscal year endmg June 30, 2004 to
14.32% for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2005.

Actuarm! Method, Stgmf fcant Assumptwns and Legtslanve Changes

"I‘he actuarial cosi method utlllzed is the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. This method is an

acceptable method for determining the annual required contribution in accordance with GASB Statement
No. 25 Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and” Note, Disclosures for Defined
Contribution Plans. For purposes of detennmmg contribution rates and asset valuatmn, ‘'the net realized

and ‘unrealized appreciation or depreciation in the market value of assets is recognized over a three year’

period with the restriction that the actuarial asset value cannot be less than 90% or greater than 110% of the
market value of assets. For purposes of determining the Clty Plan’s funded status and other required
disclosures, assets are valued at market. ] L

Slgmﬁcaut actuarial assumptions used in determining the actuarial accrued liability include:.{a) a rate of

return on the mvestment of present and future assets.of 8.0% per annum compounded annually, (b) *-

projected salary increases ranging from approx1mately 0.5% 10 4.0% per year. Salary increases include a
2.5% component for Imﬂatlon and @ variable component for-merit increases and «(c) the. assumptxon that
benefits will not increase .afier retirement, There have been no changes in actuarial assumptions' and
methods du.rmg the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005

As of the July 1 2005 valuation date, the actuarial cost method utilized is the projected unit credit actuarial
cost method. The amortization method utilized is a level percent of pay over a closed period of 20 years.
The remaining amortization peried is 30 years for remammg unfunded acerued liability as of July 1, 2001
and 20 years for subsequent changes. For purposés of determining asset valuation, the realized and
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b

unrealized gains and losses are recognized over a five year period with. the’ restriction that the resultmg

_ asset value cannot be less than 90% or greater than 110% of. market value

+
E :

There was no legislative change durmg the ﬁscal year endmg June 30 2005 which had a financial 1rnpact .
on the RRS . . )

- W

A Schedule of Fundmg Progress is presented below for the current and preceding two fiscal years "This
mforrnatlon is. inténded"to help ‘users assess the funded status - of the C1ty Plan and the progress made in-
accumulatmg suﬁicrent assets fo pay beneﬁts when due

il Accrucd

) Y- Lisbility(AAL) ¢ y ) © UAALasa
Actuarial Valuation ~ Actuarial Valueof ¢ Projected Unif | -Unfunded AAL | - . L ' Percentage of
Date June 30 " Assets - Credit (UAAL) - - FundedRatio Oovered Payroll . Covered Payroll
2090- 3 527, 666 622 § ° 534,981,233 -%. 7,314,611 i 98.63:%‘ 8 154, 573 238 . 4T3% -
2001. ~ .- 467, 662,106 . 569,347,610 101 ,685,504 T, 8L14% - 158, Ill 509 -, 64.31% :
2002 455321428 - 616,004,735 E '1 160,683, 307 . 73.92% . 166777160 T 9635% .
2003 430500004 . 63636031 (195037007 692T% . V2407094 113A3% .
" 2004 O a9316712 67812344 T 248806672 6331% .- | 157390046 . .15758%

2005 419,185,192 ) ‘696 705,794 © 277, 517 602 . 60.]7% . 159048796: ‘174'.49%

Analysrs of the-dollar amounts of plan net assets actuarial accrued lrabrllty, and unfunded actuanal accrued
liability in isolation can be mlsleadmg Expressmg plan net.assets as a percentage of the-actuarial accrued
liability. prov1des one indication of the City Plan’s fundmg statis on a going-concern basis. " Analysis of this .-

‘percentage-over time indicates whether the City . Plan is becoming ﬁnanclally stronger or weaker. Generally, o

the greater this percentage, the stronger the City.Plan. Trends:in the unfilnded actuarial accrued liability and
annual covered payroll are both affected by inflation. Expréssing the unfiinded-actuarial accrued liability asa
percentage of annual covered payroll approximately-adjusts for the effects of inflation and ‘aids analysis of the
City Plan’s progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due Generally, the smaller
tl'ns percentage the stronger the C1ty Pla.n : ‘

- -

. RRS does not have investments (other than Us. Government and agency obhgattons) in any one organlzatlon )

. -that; represent 5% or'more of net assets ‘held in trust for penswn beneﬁts 2

Durinig the- ﬁscal year ended June 30 2005 the School Board contnbuted 11 79% of aninual covered

. payroll. , The School Board’s contributions to the RRS for the years ended June 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003 -

were.$3 03 892 $323 843, and $305 741, respectlvely, equal to the requlred contnbutlons for each year.

C School Board Vlrgmla Retlrement System . - ) o .

. The School Board contributes. to VRS, a cost—shanng multrple-employer deﬁned beneﬁt pensron plan

administered by VRS. ~Professional and” nonprofessional employees of Richmond School Board are covered -

- by the VRS, All'full-time, salaried permanent employees must participate in the VRS: The School Board’s

-professronal employees participate +in". the cost-sharing' multiple-employer plan, and’ non-professronal‘.

“.employees participate as a separate group in the ageit multlple-employer plan. Benefits vest after five years .

of service. Employees are elrglble for an unreduced retlrement beneﬁt at age 65 with ﬁve years of service and,

i
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at-age 50 with 30° years of service, payable month]y for life in an amount equal to 1.7 percent of- thelr average
final compensation (AFC) for each year of credited service. An optional reduced retirement. benefit’ is

.available to members of VRS as early as age 50 with 10 years of credited service. - Benefits,are actuarially

- reduced for retirees who retire prior to becoming -eligible for full retirement benefits. In addition, retirees
quahfy for dnnual cost-of-living (COLAY increases beginning in their second year of retirement. The COLA

is'limited to five percent per year, AFC is defined as the hlghest consecutive 36 months of salary. The VRS
also provides death and disability benefits. Title 511 of. the Code of Virginia-(1950), 4$ amended, assigns the

authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the State’ legislature. VRS issues a publicly available "'

comprehensive annual. financial report that includes, financial statements ‘and reqmred supplementary

information for VRS_ A copy of that report may be obtamed by wntmg VRS at P O Box 2500 Rlchmond

VA 23218-2500

e FundmgPahcy T L K

k]

" Plan members are reqmred by Title 51.1 of the Cade of Virginia (1950), as amended to ‘contribute 5 percent

.of their annual salary to the VRS; however, the School Board has -assumed the full amount. of the member - -

contrlbutlons In addition, the School Board i is requited to contribute the remaining amjounts necessary to
fund its participation in the VRS using the actuarial basis spec1ﬁed by the Code of Virginia and approved by
the VRS Board of Trustees. For professmnal émployees participating. in' the VRS cost-sharing thultiple

. employer plan the School Board’s contibutions for.the years-ended Juse 30, 2005; 2004 and 2003 were
$8,227,651, $4,930, 213, and $4,796, 736, respectively, equal to the required contnbutlons The School -
Board’s contnbutlon rate applicable fo non-professwnal employees for the fiscal year ended June’ 30 2005 )
" was 5.0% of annval covered payroll: . ‘

I

hY

1L Annual Pension Cost - -Non-professwnal Employeés

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, the School Board’s annual pension cost applicable to School Board
‘non-professional emponees of 572,605 was equal to the-School Board’s required and actual contributions.

The required contribution was determined as part of the .Tune 30, 2001 actuarial valuation using the entry age -

normal actuarijal cost method.

H

The actuarial assumptnons mcluded (a) 8 percent investment rate of return, (b) projected salary-increases of

4.25 percent per year, and (c) 3. 0 percent per year cost-of- ~living adjustments. Both (a) and (b) included an
inflation component of 4 percent The ‘actuarial value of the School Board’s assets is equal to the modified
market'value of assets. This method was determined using techniques that-smooth the effects of short-term

o volatlhty in the market value of dssets over a ﬁve-year period. The School Board’s unfunded actuanal

accrued liability is bemg amortized as a Ievel percentagc of payroll on an n open baSlS over a ﬁve—year period.

+

Trend Information

Fiscal Year Annual Pension  Percentage of APC . Net Pension

Ended June 30 Cost(APC)  * Contribyted .  Obligation
20000 0§ . 341157 100% - § -
2001 E 363,838 100% - -
. 2002 © - 309,502 - 100% - -
SRR 2003- . 170,614 00% .
- 2004 : 176891 - 100% -

2005 572605 . 100%", .-
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b Schedule of Funding Progress (Unaudited). *
S ! -
1 : - - ' o ' ’ FAAL
P , Fnded Actuarial  ° . ' L sa
: ’ Actuacial Valuation  Actuarial Valieof  Actuarial Accrued - . Accrued Lisbility - ] . Percentage of
. Date June 30 Assels - Liability (AAL) - (FAAL) | Funded Ratio -Covered Payroll ‘Covered Payroll
o . 1999 § 14868332 5 13,%06401 S 961931 1069%  _% 8,858,067 109%
T 20007 117,804,755 14,417,856 3,386,899 '« 123.5% ) 9,580,201 . 354%
200 . 20291638 16,713,468 3STLIT0 « 1214% - ¢ 10316744 L347%
- . 202 - 21718560 19,380,179 2338381 0 1121% ¢ 70 11374241, 20.6%
1 b T 2003 C . 2533316 21,536,582 1 T 996,734 1 104.6% 11,792,737 8.5%
. 2004 23,338,675 23806806 (468,131) 98.0% ' 1145209 0%
" ' . - ' . - O .
P ' D. School Board — Early Retirement Incentive Plan ST C "

] K :

T I Plan Description o .

10 ’ . The Early Retirement Incentlve Plan {(Plan) is a legally separate single-employer defined benefit pension plan

: . C established in fiscal year-1995 under the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, to provide early retirement

T oo benefits’ for eligible School Board emp]oyees The ‘School Board is the sole participating employer: in .the
. : , " Plan, functions as the Plan administrator, and has authority to -establish and amend its contribution.

i : 'requrrements and benefit provisions, The Plan does.not issue a stand-alone. annual financial report

' Membershlp in the Plan consisted of the followmg at July 1 2005 the date of the latest blenmal actuarial
P ’ ; . ' ‘valuatron .

Retirees currently receiving bénefits ’ 714

~ ' ) Retirees completing their service option . 345
é [ : J Active plan members " ‘ vt L -
-t L . ol *  Non-vested o e ) ’ J 332 ‘

' * Total . . 139

. i The Plan pr0v1des early retirement beueﬁts only. All employees are ellglble to pamclpate in the Plan.
Part:crpants in the Plan become eligible for benefits when they meet the following badsic requirements and
I . have provided sefvices immediately preceding their early retirement date in.accordance with: one of the three
Wt service options described below. Basic requirements prescribe that employees must (1) be an eligible retiree
. under either VRS or RRS,(2) be between 55 and 62 years of age, (3) have completed 10 years of service with
L i Richmond Public Scheols, at least 5 of which must 1mmedlately precede the date of retirement, and (4) meet
Ao . : other plan provisions, Monthly beneﬁts are paid based on one of the following service options as elected by
4 C "~ the pamc1pant
E . Optlon A -The partrcrpant must provide services for 1 fuil acadennc year (175 days) and will recerve
b B o 25% of final annual compensatron each year for 7 years. ‘

- ) Option’B - The participant must provide services for.1 full academrc year (175 days) a.nd w111 receive
. - 35% of final annual compensatxon each year for 5 years :

' ’ Option C - The partrcxpa.nt must provide services for 1/2 an academic year (105 days) and will recewe'
g . " 35% of final annual compensatlon each year for 3 years.
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y

The Plan does not pr0v1de for postretirement benefit increases. During the required service period, benefits
are paid by the School Board’s General Fund based on services rendered. Thereafter, the pension trustee

pays vested benefits. All benefits vest after completion of the required service option. School Board -

contributions are recogmzed by the Plan when received. Benefits are recogruzed when’due and payable.

_ Investments are valued as discussed in Note 1.

Fi unding,,Pali:‘:y

" The entire cost of‘ Plan benefits is borne by the School Board. The School Board’s policy is to make Plan

contributions based on actuarially determined amounts sufficient to provide* the required ‘Plan benefits.

.Generally, this has resulted in the School Board making annual contributions to- the plan, which over time

should apprommate the cumulative annual required contnbutlons determined by biennial actuarial valuations,

However, in any one yéar, the actual contribution made may differ from the annual required contribution

based on budget constraints. Most admm1strat1ve ‘costs of the Plan are borne by the School Board’s General
Fund.

v
‘

"The following i is a schedule of School Board contnbuuons for fiscal years -ended June 30 2000 through

2005: - )
. L Annual Required . ’ 4
: Fiscal Year Contribution . - 'Ach‘ual - Percentage
Ended June 30 . , ."Contribution .Contributed
" 2000 $ - 2978841 § . 2,600,000 87.3% .
2001 3,899,673 " 3,000,000 76.9%
2002 - 3,899,673 3,567,000 915%
2003 3899673 2400000  615%
2004 3,809,673 - 22,800,000 . 71.8% .
} 2005 3,899,673 2,900,000 . T44% .

"

- The School Beard’s annual pension cost and net pensmn obhgauon to the Plan. for the year ended June 3{)
"2005 were as follows: - . . ,

menual Pension.Costs .
Annual required contribution  *° o $.. 3,809,673
_. Interest on net ;;ensmn obligation ' [ . \ 202.317. .
Adjustment to annual reqmred conmbunon - §261,641 )
. ‘ -Annual penswn cost -7 T l S - 3,840,349
Contributions made R ) o N 52 900,000)
" Increase in net pension obligation * | * k o . 940,349

Net pensicn obligation, beginning of year 3,792,796

Net pension obligation, end of year ' § 4,733,145

The annual required contribution (ARC) for the current year was actuarially-computed at July I, 2000, the

date of the latest biennial actuarial valuation, using the entry age actua.nal cost method.. The actuarial value of

‘
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A

.. thé Plan’s assets was determmed usmg a market value method The Plan s unfunded actuarial accrued
" liability. is betng amornzed using the level dollar method over an open amornzahon penod 6f 40 years.

A v e L

- S1gn1ﬁcant aetuanal assumpt:ons used in the Valuatlon include: (a) a rate of return on the investment of

Rid

present and future assets of 7.5% per year compounded annually, {b) prOJected salary 1ncreases of 4.5% per
X ,year of whlch 3.0% annually is attnbutable to mﬂatton .

Trend Informatton .
v A ] . ;lFis‘cal Year ) Annial’ Pension Cost 'Pei','centag'e of APC * Net Pension
, . . ‘EndedJine 30 T(AFC) * Contributéd Obligation (Assets) -
S 2000 . 2,995,536 coo868% . (31,104)
S0 3899724 T (T68% - 868620 -
: 3002 ¢ © o T3,898243 L 915% - 1,199,863 -
< 2003 C 3,897,699 61.5% .. 2,697,562 "
2004 o . .3,895,234' S 71.9% ' 3 792 796
2005 ' 3,840,349 . U75.6% , 4733, 145
# o ¢ * .I i . * B V '.‘ s . - ' l .. 4
Schedule of Funding Progress (Unailditecﬂ s

A Schedule of Fundmg Progress 'is. presented below for the current and preceding. years since the P]an ]

'progress made n accumulatlng sufficient assets to pay beneﬁts when due

inception in fiscal 1995. This information is’ ‘intended to help users assess the funded status of the Plan and the

k

mam L T LoUAAL .

, I_Jablhty(AAL) ‘ A - . omal
" Actuirial Viluation _Agtuarial Valtie of PrqectedUi‘ut Unfundsd AAL Lo e Coverad L 'Percentzige of
Dste.Tulyl Assits Qeditt . (UAAL) °~  FundedRatio..~  Payoll " Cotered Payroll
9% . § TS S, j RA57T. § QI00AT . U163% . S . 89149880 - 304%
"~ 1998 . Copgerms L. 046983 | (27277,169) 30%% - . 938789% 1291% .
2000 -, 13970,521 - 47,266,277 L@V . 296% 101 J26144 . - . 325%
. 2002 L 1400545 - 48579206 | (34,358,661) 289 95034768 - 364% )

o4 - C 11,078,824 32525440 ‘(21,446,616) MI% - 32,171,266-" o 66.7%

At June 30, 2005 the. PIan had mvestments representmg more then 5% of Plan net assets in the Welhngton

Management Company . (a registered - investment company)’ Enhanced" Bond, Market Portfoho totahng'

$5,076,996. The "Wellington Management Company Enhanced Bond' Market. Portfoho (Portfoho) is a

" collective- mvestment fund, which invests in-a: diversified; portfoho of U.S. Government, ,morigage backed

E Rlchmond Behavnoral Health Authonty Rlchmond Retlrement System

«I..‘

asset backed and corporate debt securities: The Plan’s share of any one underlymg secunty in the Portfollo

. did not exceed 5% of: Plan net assets at June 30; 2005 R e s

v .
t .
5 Ly, - . l . .

Plan Descrq;tmn . _ . i

*. RBHA partlcnpates in RRS défined benefit pension plan whjch covers substantlally al] its employees Priorto *

the creation of RBHA on July 1,.1996, substantially all employees were City employees and pursuant lo the |

Agreement of Transfer, RBHA employees continue to be members of the RRS

A - '
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The retlrement beneﬁt prov1s1ons are the same as those prowded to Clty employees (See Sectlon B. I)

1L Contnbuttans and Fundmg Policy

’ 'RBI-IA contributed- $1,224, 123 as its annual required contnbutlon equal to 100% of the contribution for the

- mmal plan year ended June 30, 2005 as determmed by the RRS actuarial valuatlon

‘ Other Component Umts

'The RAA prov1des pensmn benefits for all its eligible. employees (21 and 20 employees.at June 30 2005 and
2004) through a single employer defined contribution plan. In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely:

on amounts -contributed’ to the plan plus investment -earniigs. 'Employees are eligible to participaté after. the

_corpletion of one-half year of service. RAA contributes an amourit equal 10 9% of each eligible: employees .

. - «compensation each -month. RAA's contributions for each. employee (and interest allocated. to the employees

) Hospltal Authonty of chhmond T - L ) u -

g RRHA contributes to the VRS, ‘a cost-shanng multlple-employer deﬁned beneflt public employee retlrement .

system.. All full-time salaried permanent employees must participate in the VRS, "Benefits vest after five years of-

. service. All employees ‘who rate after age 55 with at least five years of credited service are entitled to-an annual
.Tetirement benefit payable rnonthly for life in an amount equal to 1.7 percent of their average final salary (AF S) up

. RAA’s payroll for 2005 and 2004 for employees covered-under the plan was $926,000 and $957,000, respectively,
“and total payroll for 2005 and 2004 approx1mated $1,163,000'and $989,000, respecttvely RAA made the requlred

aceount) are vested ratably over the first three.years of service. Imterest forfeited by employees who leave
employment. before the one-half year of service-is completed is ‘used to reduce RAA's contribution. requnement

- 9% contribution of $106, 810 and $70, 416 in 2005 and 2004, respectwely

. -Substantlally all employees of" the Port of R1chmond Comm:ss:on are members of the RRS

¥

. -

R Under the terms of Ihe June 30, 1993 Agreement of Transfer, the C:ty agreed to continue to contrtbute to the RRS,

for all of the: employees of the HAR that were vested in' the City’s retirement plan as of June 30, 1993. The
retirement plan expense for the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004 was $29 354 and $32,148, respectwely and is
mcluded asa part of the unresiricted operatmg subs1dy 4

v

Port of Richmond Commtsszon p

v

chhmond Rea'evelopment and Housmg Authartty

N
il

* 10.$13,200 plus 1.65 percent of AFS of $13,200 for each year of credited service. An opt1onal reduced retirernient

_ years or'more of credited service are entifled to an annual benefit equal‘to 1.65 percent of AFS for each year of -
credited -service. In addition, retirees qualify’ for annual cost-of- lwmg increases beginning in their second year of
" retirement. - AFS is defined as the highest consecutive 36 months of.salary. Beneﬁts are actuanally reduced for |

benefit is.available to members of VRS as early as age 50 with 10 years of crédited service. Employees with 35

retlrees who retire pnor to becoming el1g1ble for full retirement beneﬁts

Plan-members are requlred by Title 51.1 of the Cod’e of Virginia (1950), as amended o contrlbute 5%-of thelr\

salary to the VRS; however, RRHA has assumed the full amount of the member contributions. In addition, RRIIA

is requ1red to’ contribute the remalmng amounts necessary to fund'the VRS using the aetuanal basis spectﬁed by -

L :
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statute, RRHA’s actual contnbuuons to the VRS for fiscal years ended September 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were
31,047,214, $1,233,517, and $1,279,451 respecttvely, and were equal-to the contnbutlon requirements.

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION BENEFITS

In addition to the pension benefits in. Note 12, the C1ty prov1des health dental and life insurance benef ts to retu'ees .
The: City pays a portion of the cost of health insurance benefits for retirees under the City’s group plans through one
provrder CIGNA Healthcare. Any employee who retires. from active service and has participated continuously in the
. health insurance plan the five years prior foretirement may participate. as a retiree.” The monthly health insufance °
prem1um for retirees is based-upon years of servicé. The actual ¢ost to the City for health insurance beneﬁts for retirees
in fiscal year 2005 was $3,314,978, with 1,620 retirees partlclpatmg The City offers two denta] insurance provrders
Dominion Dental Services, Inc. and United Concordia’ Companies. The retirees pay the total cost for dental insurance
* benefits, with.892 retirees pamelpatmg “The cost to retirees for.fiscal year 2005 for both health and dental benefits was
$4,597,964 - Group life insurance, minus accidental death and dismemberment- coverage continues after retirement at
no cost to the retiree.

Component. Unit

The School Board provides certain postretirement health care beneﬁts to' retlred employees Substanttally all of the

- employees may become eligible for those benefits if* they retire while working for the Scliool Board. .'Coverage 'is

provided through the School Board for retirees covered under the VRS plans and through RRS for retirées under the

RRS plan. (The School Board then reimburses RRS for the employer portion of these payments.). Under the School ‘

Board's policy, 1,973 retirees are currently receiving benefits at June 30, 2005. For coverage provided through RRS, "
132 retirees are currently receiving benefits at June 30, 2005. The School Board's share of contributions is between
38% and 60% of the total insurance premiums. Expenditures for retiree health care beriefits ate recognized on a pay-
as-you-go basis as insurance premiums are due. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005 the School Board's share of

premmms approximated $5,403, 313.
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Under the terms of the June 30, 1993 Agreément of Transfer the City prov1ded postretirement healthcare benefits to
HAR retitees. The postretlrement healthcare benefits expense, pald On & pay-as-you-go basxs, by the City for the
yedr ended June 30, 2005 was $48 240. .
RBHA pays a portion of the cost of health-related insurance benefits 1o, all employees who retire from RBHA. The
benefits comprise health-related group insurance policies through which retirees, their spouses, and eligible unmarried
dependents can obtain coverage. Retirees fotaling 8, their spouses, and eligible unmarried dependents were receiving
such benefits at June 30, 2005. ‘RBHA’s share of health-related premium contributions for the year ended June 30,
2005, was $49,251. The RBHA’s share of contributions was charged to ‘expense based on premium cost allocable to.
the ﬁscal year period. . .

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

1

" The City offers its employees e deferred compensation plan (the plan) created in accordance with Internal Revenue

.Code (IRC) Section 457. The plan.is available to all City employees and permits deferral.until future years of up, to

100% of salary with a maximinm deferral of $14,000 for caléndar year 2003, which ever is less. In calendar year 2006,
the maximum deferral:amount will be $15,000. The compensation deferred is not available to eémployees until
termination, retirement, death, an unforeseeable emergency, or a small balance account withdrawal. Employees are

“ . eligible to initiate a one-time disburseiment of an account if the balance is $5,000 or less-and neither the employee nor -

the employer has contributed to,the account for at least two years. In accordance with the amended provisions of IRC
Section 457, which were enacted into law in August 1996 and their subsequent adoption by the City, all assets and
mcorne of the plan were transferred to a trust during December: 1996, and are held for the exclusive benefit of

-

87



15.

16

. CONTINGENCIES, COMMITMENTS, AND OTHER MATTERS -

) CITY OF RICHMbND VIRGINIA
3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2005

N N 4

. participants and their beneficiaries. The-City is the Trustee for the plan and has contracted ‘with a nongovernmental
third party administrator to administer the plan. This plan is reported in accordance with Governmental Accounting
Standards'Board Statement No. 32 Accounting and Financial Reportmg Jor Internal Revenue Coa'e Section 457
Deferred Compensation Plans as an Other Employee Benefits Trust Fund.

At June 30, 2005 the fair value of the plan investrnents was $42,369,987.
Companen-tlUnit :

RBHA offers its employees a defelred compensation plan createdin accordance w1th Internal Revenue Code Section
457. The plan is available to all RBHA’s employees and permits deferral until futire; years of 100% of saldry with a
maximum deferral of $14,000 for calendar year 2005, which-ever is less. In calendar year 2006, the maximum-deferral
amount will be $15,000. The compensation deferred is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death,
an unforeseeable emergency, or a-small balance account. withdrawal.. Employees are eligible to initiate. a one-time
disbursement of an account if the balance is $5,000 or less and neither the employee nor the employer has contributed

to the account for at least two years. The plan is administered by a nOngovemmeutaI third party administrator and 18

accounted for as a restricted investment asset in trust.

OPERATING LEASES S

Lessee b . o -

&

The City,.School Board, RBHA, and RRHA lease office space, business machirles clinics, apartments for residential

programs. and vehicles under various operating lease agreements. Except for office space for the Clty, all City

operating lease obllganons are subject to annual appropriation of funds.

At June‘30, 2005, the annual operating lease commitments are as follows:

o

" Component Units

3

Richmond
. . Richmond, Redevelopment . .

I:rimary Behavioral Health,' and Housing

Fiscal Year - Government " School Board Authority Authority -
2006 7 . k3 1,692,325 § 2,322,618 § ©1,272,790 % 100,812
2007 o 1,433,470 2,222,067 1,270,911 103,832
2008 ' 1,251,394 ¢ 1,663,413 1,259,283 106,948
2009 . 932,360 965,570 1,253,965 110,160
2010 . -7 . 935463 847,510 © o, .80,799 . -
2011 - 2016 . 938,659 ~ 838,600 110,652 - .-
Total minimum lease payments 7,183,671 ‘8,859,778 5,248,400 - ‘421,752

Lease expense/expenditures for the year ended ' *

June 30, 2005 ' § 74,256,364 § . 1,563,053 3 1,274,990 § .-

A Combined Sewer Overﬂow (CSO)

The Clty is partially served by combined sewer lines that carry both stormwater and wastewater. Those
combined séwer-lines overflow after certain precxpltatlon events, discharging combined stormwater and sanitary
sewage into the James River. The City completed a study of methods of controlling CSO irito the James River

'
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and submrtted 1ts ﬁnal report-on the study to the State Water Control Board (the “Board”) on October 1 1988,
The report adopted a CSO control plan {the “CSO Plan®). with an estimated total ‘capital cost of $295 million in
1987 dollars. The total cost of the City of Rlchmond’s CSO Plan 18 currently 8512 mrlhon (2004 dollars)

The Board adopted the techmcal components of the CSO Plan and contmues to regulate and monitor the Clty ]
program through the current Virginia Pollntant Discharge - Elimination System. (VPDES) permit ‘and CSO
Special Order issued by the. Virginia Department of Environmental. Quality (DEQ) with oversight from the -
Env1ronmental Protection’ Agency (EPA), Phase III of the CSO Plan will begin in 2005. :

As part of the CSO Special Order the Clty was.required to’ reevaluate the CSO control system at the completron

.of Phase II and submit a report.to the Board: The purpose of the CSO Control Plan Regvaluation i is to evaluate

the success of the préviously completed CSO contiol projects,” re-assess- the underlying assumptions used to

. .develop the criginal CSO control projects using more recent’data, to eyaluate new CSO control technologies,

develop CSO control alternatives and make recommendations for the Phase TII CSO .control-plan. “This report
was submitted to the Vrrgrma Department -of Envrronmental Qualtty on January 2, 2002. . The reeva]uatron
report conforrns ‘the City’s’ CSO Plan to EPA’s- 1994 National GSO Control Pohcy and .identifies several

+ alterhatives for future CSO control., Environmental benéfits and costs for: all CSO'control scenarios, including a ‘
. “no additional €SO control” scenario, were comparatwely evaluated. -Scenarios- -providing additional CSQO

: prehmmary engmeermg studres of the projects in the Phase 1 CSO control plan'

control ranged in cost from $213 million to nearly $2 billion for complete crtywrde ‘separation of sanitary and

storm*sewers. In March 2005, the City and the’ Board have entered into a new Special Order which. identifies
" the Phase III CSO control projects and their respectlve priorities. This. agreement will take into account the

City’s financial capabrhty (defined in the Special Agreement as a typtcal annual residential wastewater- bill of at-

least I. 25% of median household income) and availability of federal, state, and local funding:

The Phase IIT CSO PIan wastewater control pro_|ects required to comply with the requrrements of the Crty s
discharge perm,rt and’ other wastewater control projects. plannied. by the City have a tofal capital ‘cost of

approximately $287 million (2004 dollars), inflated to-the time of anticipated expenditure. The Department of
Public Utilities plans to increase Wastewater Utility rates an average of 5% (2% real incredse above pro_jected‘

CPI-U rate of inflation) per year over the:next five years, in compliance with the negotiated. revised special -
order to cover the costs of the planned caprtal prolects and inflation in other operatmg costs. The Department )
beheves the prOJected rate increases are recoverable wrth no srgmﬁcant change in uncol]ectrble expense.

i

_ Pérthe March 2005 CSO Specral Order the Clty is requlred 10 actively seek state and federal ﬁnanc1al assistance

for the CSO: program,” The Phase II CSO control projects utilized $23.6 million in low infefest loans from the' ’

. Virginia Revolying Loan Fund, $14.1 million in State” grants and §$15.2 million in EPA grant funding. -

Addlt:onally, the City has benefited from over $2 million that the Army Corps of Engrneers has allocated for

1

Grants . = R oo e B

- :
R

i Federal grant programs in whrch the City participates have been audtted in accordance w1th the provrsrons of the.
" Office of Management and Budget Circllar A-133. In addition, these grant programs are.subject to financial and
°comp11ance audits, by, the ‘federal government, which may result in disallowed Lexpendrtures Based on prior
-experience, Crty management belleves such- dlsallowances if any, will be immaterial. ’ v -

The Peuman’send Cr’eek Region'al Jail Autht)rity‘

" The City Councﬂ through an erdmance adopted on October 3, 1994, authonzed the Clty to join The Peumansend

Creek Reglonal Jail. Authorrty (the Authorrty) Consequently, the City, along with five other” local pohncal )
_]urlsdrctlons in Vlrgmla rngned a servrce agreement to construct and operate a regional correcttonal facﬂlty m

&
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Caroline County, Virginia. The land for this fac111ty was donated by the Umted States -Government. to Carohne
County, which. agreed to lease the land to the Authority for the constructlon of the facility. The initial construction
phase comprised space for:336 prisoner beds and began to house’ prlsoners in January ‘of 1999.. The: constructlon

cost of the project was $23.8 million and was funded through $10,220,000 Regional Jail Facility Revenue Bonds.
" Series 1997 and $12,000,000 Regional Jail Facility- Grant Antwtpatlon Notes Series 1997 issued March’ 15, 1997.

At completlon the City guaranteed to accept space for 100 prisoner beds. Annual operatlng costs of the facility

. are to be shared among the participating jurisdictions based on.a formula set forth in the service: agreement The
City will fund its share of the annual-cost through annual budget. appropnatlons For ﬁscal year ended June 30,

2005, the City contnbuted $1 345,440 for its share of costs.

-

To ensure continuity” of natural gas supphes and transmlsswn facilities, the Ctty 5 Gas Utlhty Enterpnse Fund has -

entered into, various long-term supply and transmission contracts - through the year 2017. The _aggregate
commitments under these contracts amounted to approximately $703 million at June 30, 2005

Component'Units

The RAA has a contract with Amerlcan Medical Response Inc. (AN[R) for all emergency and nonemergency ’

ambulance services for RAA through Jine 30, 2006. - These services include establishing and’ paying salaries of
operatlonal personnel and maintaining vehicles and equipment. , The agreement - provides that AMR receive a
minimum montth payment plus additional- payments for certain other services, provnded Management fees paid
in 2005 under thls agréement amounted to. $9 222 193 .

2

On January: 15, 2002 the HAR entered into a contract for management services with- Premler Healthcare Resources ~
for a period of one year. Thereafter the contract automatically reriews for successwe one-year terms for up to two-
additional years unless either party terminates this agreement, with 6r without cause and without penalty at airy _

time upon sixty (60) days prior written notice. Upon expiration of the original terms, the Board renewed-their

. contract with Premier Healthcare Resources through December 31, 2005. The contract requlres the HAR to pay -

$12,500.per month with certain specified adjustments based upon : actual results vérsus budgeted results. During
the year ended June 30, 2005, the HAR expensed $150,000 of management fees in connection with their contract
with Premier Healthcaré: Résources. HAR provides a substantial portion ‘'of its services to beneficiaries of state and

_ federal -programs. - These’ programs use cost related reimbursement methods which- ate subject to audlt and

retroactive adjustments. Such audits'could lead to requests for reimbuisement from HAR. Based on prior

experience, HAR management believes such requests, if any, will not be s1gn1ﬁcant The Agreement of Transfer 3
from the City to HAR dated June 30 1993 pr(mdes the Clty w1th a reversionary right to the- h‘ansferred assets -

upon HAR'’s dtssolutxon , ,

" The RBHA operates programs, whlch are typically funded by grants recetved from federal, state ot local SOurces.

Expenditures financed by grants are subject’to audit by the grantor If expenditures are dlsallowed due to
noncompliance with grant program regulations, RBHA may be requxred to reimburse the grantor. RBHA believes

 .that the likelihood of disallowarice of expenditures and subsequent re:mbursement is remote'and would not have a
material effect on the overall financial position of RBHA. The reimbursement office of the RBHA is penodlcally '

reviewed by representatlves of Federal and State authorities regardmg its billing of Medicaid and Medicare. These
reviews may result in RBHA refunding certain collections on prior claims to Medicare and:Medicaid. The 1mpact
of these reviews cannot be presently determined. However, RBHA’s management believes that any liability for

" ‘reimbursement, WhJCh may arise as the result- of these audits, is net beheved to be material 1o the ﬁnanc:al posmon

ofRBHA Co ) -

9
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Claims and J udgﬁlenis :

The City is a defendant in lawsmts pertaining to matters including claims asserted which are incidéntal to
performing routine govermnenlal and other functions. This litigation mcludes ‘but is ‘not limited ‘to: actions
commenced and claims asserted against the City arising out of alleged torts; aIleged breaches of. contracts; alleged
violations of law; and condemnalmn proceedings. As discussed in Note 10; the estimate of the liability for certain
unsettled claims has been reported in the govemment-w1de Statement of Net Assets. The liability was estimated
by categorizing the various claims and applying a historical - ~average percentage, based prlmarlly on actual -

'settlements by type of claim during the preceding ten fiscal years, and supplemented by information, provided by

the City Attorney’s .Departmenit with respect t6 certain large ‘individual claims and proceedings. ‘The recorded

hablhty isthe Clty s best estimate based on avallable information and apphcatlon of the foregoing procedures

Disaster Recovery — Hurricane Isabel - .
During fiscal 2004, Hurricane Isabel struck the Clty with strong winds and rain resultmg in mdespread damage
The City worked closely with the Federal Emergency Management Agency- (FEMA) and the Virginia Department .

- of Emergency Management (VDEM) o assure the work was properly completed and eligible for maximum

reimbursement. The City anticipates receiving an additional reimburserhent totaling approx1mately $3,333,000; |
This representS a change in estimate from prior year by approxxmately $1,771,000. " Prior year’s estimated
re1mbursement was appr0x1mately $5,104,000. 1In. addition, the Department. of Public Utlhtles has received. ‘

' approximately $988 100:in relmbursements from FEMA for Hurrlcane Isabel. - ) o

Disaster Recovery — Troplcal Storm Gaston B ' . T

During fiscal 2005, Tropical Storm Gaston struck the City with strong winds an& tain resulting in wxdespreaﬂ'
damage. The City worked- closely with the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and the Vlrglma

' Department of Emergency Managemeni (VDEM) to assure-the work was properly completed and eligible. for

maximum reimbursement. - The City has received advanced funding totahng approximately $7,990,500, of which
approximately $4, 288,400 has been treated as deferred revenue. The revenue will be recogmzed when addltlonal
spending has been ifcurred., In-addition, the City has provided the required match totaling approximately

-$1,500,000. The City has incurred expenditures primarily in the departments of Public Works and Public Utilities

totaling approximately $5,494,800. The City anticipates additional fundmg totaling apprommately $3,084,200 and

additional expendlmres totaling approxxmately $7,079,800.

o1
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Revenues
City Taxes
Real Estate
Sales-1% Local |
Personal Property -
Machinery and Tools
General Uility Sales
Bank Stock
Prepared Food
Admjssion -
Delinguent Tax Payments—AIl Classes
Private Utility Poles and Canduits
Penalties and Interest '
Titling Tax-Mobile Home
State Recordation ' N
Property Rental 1% -
Vehicle Rental Tax
Telephone Commissions

Total City Taxes

Licenses, Permits and Privilege Fees
Business and Professional -
Vehicle
Dog
Transfers, Penalties, Imterest & Delmquem Collecuons
Department of Social Services
Department of Finance
Department of Public Works
Department of Parks, Recreation and Community Facilities

Total Licénses, Permits and Pﬁvilcge Fees

Intergovernmental
Richmond Public Library .
Juvenile and Domestic Relations District Courl  ©
Juvenile Justice Service.
Department of Social Services
Départment of Public Health
Departiment of Public Works- Street Maintenance
General Registrar
Depariment of Finance
Attorney. for the Commonwealth
City Sheriff * °'
State Aid to Localities
Service Charges on Tax Excmpt Property
-Administrative Costs - Federal Grants
* ABC Distribution
Rolling Stock Distribution
Total Intergovernmental

" CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

1

-EXHIBIT H-1

94

Variance with _
» - Final Budget
Original Budget Final Budget Actual __Positive (Nepative)
S 1 ~ T
$ 173,897,872 § 173,897,872 § - 181,172,923 § 7,275,051
-24,661,496 24,661,496 . 26,302,100 " 1,640,604
44,263,363 44,263,363 45,091,878 828,515 "
15,792,570, 15,792,570 14,618,256 (1,174,314)
32,794,658 32,794,658 31,124,964 (1.669,694)
3,250,000 3,250,000 2,904,338 (345,662)
14,374,691 14,374,691 16,028,093 1,653,402
1,728,514 1,728,514 1,195,603 (532,911)
9,179,548 9,897,259 . 9,589,601 (307,658)
93,137 93,137 150,549 57412
$,077,000 5,303,959 4,242,744 o (1,061,215)
10,500 10,500 16,942 6,442
668,791 - 668,791 609,343 (59,448)
88,276 88,275 120,684 32,409
803,338 803,338 864,415 - 61,077
629,880 ° 629,380 466,562 (163,318)
327,313,634 328,258,303 334,498,995 6,240,692
- 27,985,106 27,985,106 28,497,160 512,054
3.595,600 . 3,595,600 3,453,989 (141,611)
129,204 29,204 ' 20,758 {8,446)
1000 - < 1,000 3,298 . 2,208
65,000 ~ 65,000 45,377 (19,623)
1,865,522 1,865,522 1,989,786 124,264
1,477,000 1,477,000 1,255,739 (221,261)
33,000 * 33,000 36,853 3,853
35,051,432 35,051,432 35,302,960 251,528
225,722, 225,722 210,272 (15,450)
15,300 . 15300 10,591 (4,709)
1,897,735 . 1,897 735 2,014,308 116,573
51,835,546 51977 345, 47,393,968 (4,583,378) -
3,325,123 3,357,469 3,584,407 226,938
19,204,997 19,204,997 "19,070.28) (134,716)
76,557 76,557 173,708 97,151
1,009,191° 1,009,191 < 1,004,527 (4,664)
12,222,518 2,222,518 2,325,897 , 103,379
. 17,709,539 17,709,539 | 18,082,382 372,843
14,902,801 - 14,902,801 16,136,712 1,233,911
3,189,404 3,189,404 2,849,187 | 340,217y
520,000 520,000 665,790 145,790
335,283 0335283 237,492 97.791)
112,105 112,105 101,713 10,392y
116,581,821 116,755,967 113,861,235 (2,894,732
L ' !
- '
{Continued)
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Service Charges

Assessor of Real Estate

Richmond Public Library

City Sheriff

Dcpartmem of Commumty Dcvclopmem

Departmem of General Services

Departmem of Finance

Department of Héalth —"‘_‘—""—"___-'

Departments of Police, Fire and Emergency Services '

Depariment of Public Works ,

- Deparument of Parks, Recreation and Commuaity Facilities
Procurement Services

Total Service Charges

Fines and Forfeitures - »
“ Richmond Public Library
Circuit Court
General'District Court
Juvenile and Domestic Relations District Court
Parking Violations
License Code Violations
Total Fines and Forfeitures

Payment in Lieu of Taxes
Gas Utility
Wastewater Utility
Water Utility .
Electric Utility,
Stores and Transponation Division

. Total Payment in Liew of Taxes

' Miscellancous Revenue

Overhead Costs-Port of Rmhmond Commission
Interest Income - Hilton ’
Depanmem of Public Utilities Payment~C1ty Service |
Utilities Payment for Collection Service
Richmond Metrapolitan Authority Payment
Department of Information Technology Charges
Administrative Payments to the General Fund
Sundries

Total Miscellancous Revenues

Total General Fund Revenues

t

CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCH]:DULE
GENERAL FUND .

For the Fiscal Year Ended June JIJ, 2005

4

(Continued)

[

- Variance with
« s Final Budget
. Original Budget Final Budget * Actual Positive (Negative)
5 35000 § 35000 S 26977 § (8,023)
. . 3,131 R k) I "1,203 (1,838)
. 157,500 157,500 161,462 3,962
i 3,610,592, 3,610,592 . - 4,306,702 .. 696,110
. 656,092 656,092 » V654,440 ¢ . (1,659
“"M‘“W 233,800 233,800 . 248,672 14872 .
~ 341,555 341,555 518,528 ) 176,973 -
) - 91,500 91,500 208,550 ' 118,050
10,076_,60‘0 , 10,076,600 10,070,836 ' (5,764)
102,500 102,500 144,412 41,912
5,000 5,000 1.083 (3,917
. 15,313,270 15,313,270 ' 16343955 1,030,685
T r
118,000 118,000 90,818 (27.182)
' 4,235,931 4,235,931 . 5,407,670, 1,171,739
1250445 1,250,445 « 1,741,796 497,351
B " 7,500 7,500 : 5815 ~ (1,685)
I . 2,768,085 7 ° 2,768,085 3,057,089 289,004
28,000 28,000 '19,564 (8,436)
8,407,961 8,407,961 10,328,752 1,920,791
19,608,000 19,608,000 - 10525312 | (9,062,688).
! - - T $,029,075, 6,029,075
- - 2,080,084 +2,080,084
55,602 55602 - 500,010 444,408
- L 496301 ¢ 496,301
19,663,602 - 19,663,602 19,630,782 (32,8200 -
117,88 117,886, 86,623 31,263y
L 225,000 225,000 50,000 (175,000
2,323,060 2,323,069 2,323,069 -
435,000 T 435,000 . 450,000 15,000
104,900 104,900 - 94,500 10,310y .
' '1,307,800 1,307,800 1,192,009 (115,791) .
807,487 807,487 828,453 20,966
573,861 573,861 647,049 73,188
5,895,003 5,895,003 5671793 (223,210}
528,226,723 520,345,538 535,638472 6,202.034



Expenditures -
Current

General Government
City Council and City Clerk
Department of Community Development
Assessor of Real Estate
City Auditor 4
Department of Law
Board of Review of Real Estate Assessments
General Registrar
Self - Insurance Cost
Office of Management Services

“Departmient of Information Technology

* City Manager
Budget and Strategic Planning
Department of General Services
Department of Human Resources
Deparment of Finance
Department of Transportation
Customer Service and Orgamzatlonal Development
Procurement Services
Communications, Media Relations and Marketing
Intergovernmental Relations
Economic Development
City Mayor's Office

Total General Government .

Public Safety.and Judiclary .
Judiciary
Juvenile and Domestic Relations District Court
City Sheriff .
Juvenile Justice Services
Department of Police ;
Department of Fire and Emergency Services

Total Public Safety and Judiciary °

Highways, Streets, Sanltation and Refuse
Departenent of Public Works

Human Scrvices
Human Services Advocacy
Department of Social Services
“Department of Public Health

Total Human Services

Culture and Recreation

Richmond Public Library
Department of Parks, Recreation n.nd Commumty Facilities
Total Culture and Recreation .

, CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRG]NIA
BU'DGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE-
GENERAL FUND-

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

EXHIBIT H-1, Continued -

* Variance with

.
. o ' - Final Budget
Original Budgst; Finai Budget Actual Positive (Negative)”
$ .1,519.560 & 1,563,710 1,573,527 % 9,817)
: 6,512,415 6,829,345 6,129,675 609,670
2,683,674 2,850,653 2,669,080 181,573 °
1,044,471 1,423,136 1021714, 401,422
1,603,022 1,660,554 . - 1,637;502 . 23,052
26,574 26574 16,582 ) 9,992
706,540 1,554,171 1,490,294 63,877
'7,694,319 7,694,319 7,694,319 -
1,347,786 1,462,107 1,409,285 52,822
10,289,671, . 11,408,643 9,950,132 1,458,511
1,233,725 1,585,500 1,418,637 166,863
- - 696,360 714,601 713,764 837
1,191,751 1,263,751 1,290,930 (27.179)
1,777,509 1,856,280 1,886,214 (29,934)
7,699,147 8,428,121 7,605,103 823,018
1,451,942 1,459,678 1,102,663 357,015
L115172- 1,515,462 926,723 588,739
1,083,810 1,167,202 968,047 195,155
688,276 665,600 655,184 10,416
250,447 253,000 243,126 9,964
1,792,666 1,921,510 1,730,681 190,829
373,460 513,769 540,808 (27.129)
52,782,387 . 57,817,776 52,674,080 . 5,143,696
6,663,817 6,869,902 6,469,561 400,341
363,301 L 377,721 337,454. 40,267
23,574,354 23,578,638 27,875,103 - (4,296,465)
5,554,043 5,677,135 5,616,550 60,585
56,601,808 59,903,800 62,731,486 (2,827,686)
32,210,901 32,806,555 33,473,743 . (667,138)
194,968,224 129,213,751 136,503,897 (7,290,146)
46,871,116 54,429,438 53,756,034 673.454
S1,132919 1,140,892 1,088,717 52,175
-58,271,013 58,654,471 56,126,063 2,528,408
6,827,528 6,956,047 6:361,630 592,417
66,231,460 66,751,410° 63,578,410 . 3,173,000 -
"4,510,157 4,604,025 4,574,947 29,078
19,132,083 14,352,421 13,474,578 877,843
23,642,240 18,956,446 18,049,525 906,921
hl -
1 )
F * i v
\ (Continued) '
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- . . L B - U - .- " EXHIBITHI,Condluded " .
{ . . b, o v S
. -CITY OF RlCHMOND VIRGINIA 7, i RS L . .
' ‘ - BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE . : Lo IERTER .
R ' GENERAL FUND : . .
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005 .
L ¥ N . " 4 N t f
T . ' = L - - ‘ ’ : Variarice with
| ’ . - . .o ° . Final Budget |
: . - o ' ‘o ' .___ Original Budget Final Budpet . Actual Positive (Negative)
Non-Departmental . ’ . ! .o ) - : o .
- ' Crestar Projects -, ' S ) 2,686,625 . 2686625 2,693,099 (6479
o Paymcms to Other Govemment Agencies . o " 14, 164 231 14,874,322 . 11,714,976 : 3,159,346
Y Tax Relief for the Elderly - 1,776,641 1,776,641 | 2,206,121 ' (429,480)
St Greater Rxchmond Transit Compa.ny . . ’ ‘ . - 6,716,376 . 6,766,376 . 6,766,376 . - '
) Retiree's Health Care NS . o . 3,411,684 3,411,684 . 2,802,045 tO609639 -
- Other Non-Departmental Expenses [ . 200,000 - 44,859 - © 28760, 16,159  ~
Total NonDepartmental . ‘ 28,955,557 " 29,560,507 26211317 3,349,190 o
B - S ) ; . — - N . —
' . Total General Fund Expenditures o ' 343 450 584 . 386,729378 . . 350,773,261 3,956,115 .
Excess-of Revenues Over Expenditures . - . L ‘184,775.739 I 172,616, 166' . 184,865,209 1.2,24'9,049
, Other }?‘inancin_g' Sources (Uses) - . . . ' 7 . ' o ) E
. Proceeds from Issuance of Bonds . ’ - , 1,969,117 . | 1,969,117 . - :’1 000,000 i 30,883
i . Transfers In - Component Units L ! e - . 6,218, 440 6,218,440 )
, s Transfers In - Other Funds LT N s 5,404,142 . 5,544,142 5,317,737 (226,405
* ) . Transfers Out - Component Units : . ! (140,000,381) " 7 °(140,000,381) ~ (140,015,381) - (15,000
Transfers Out - Other Funds ' [ . ' co . (52148.617) (52,148,617) (50,997.746) . 1,150,871 i
i ' . Total Other Financing Uses, Net - C . (1B4,775739) ' (1B4,635739) - (177,476.950) 7,158,789 . o
A ," - Speclalltem T - . e L N T - B
. Disaster Reécovery T ' , P WS - -(1,733.968) _. (1,733,968)
. - Total Special Item * v - . ' . e _(1,733.968) (1,733.968)
. v ._‘Excess of Revenues, Other Fiﬁancing Sources, and Spccial'ltcm ol o o . )
' Ower (Under) Expendituees and Other Financing Uses ; .- ot (12 019 579) 5,654,291 - 11,673,870
) . B , B . ] . . Y \’. o i
- - Fund Balance- Beginning of Year  ~ Lo ‘“ 61,840,820 -6l 340 820 . . 61,840,820 L -
Fund Balance- Eng of Year - ’. : 5" 61,840,820 £ 49.821.241 3 '67,495;111 8 17,673,870 °
The Department of lntergovernmenla] Relallom, Departmen( of Castomer Servm:: & Orgamzatmnal Development, and the Dcpnrtmehl of ' Ta
. Management Services . a]l report expendltures for Fiscal Year 2005 however, these depa.rtments were eliminated prior to ) the end of the- ﬁscal year (Iunc 30, 2005) ‘
;o . . v
: R o : \ i -
Wl +
o’ A L N ' a
{
* ' ' Y LI ) ' . J
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w0 . ExhibitH-2

CITY OF RICHMOND VIRGINIA.
NOTE TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND S
" For the Fiscal Year Ended J une 30, 2005

‘

The Clty follows these procedures whrch comp]y with legal requrrements in establtshmg the budgetary data reﬂected
in the financial statements.- .

‘®  The General Fund and Debt Servme Funds have legaily adopted annual budgets Capttal Projects Funds have :
© - five-year spending plans which are legally adopted-on an annual basis. On or before April 7, the City Mayor

* submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. "

‘The. operatmg budget. includes proposed expend1tures and the means for ﬁnanomg those expenditures. -

F

g Public Hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer,comments,
. Prior}to May 31, the bidget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance L

® The legal level-of budgetary control is the department level for the Clty Thé Clty Mayor is authorized to
“transfer bhdget amounts within departrnents in the City budget however, any revisions that a]ter the total
- expenditures of any department or'agency must be approved by the Ctty Council, :

® Formal budgetary tntegratlon is employed as a management control dev1ce during the year for aIl funds.

® Budgets for the General Fund, Debt Servrce Fund and Capttal Pro;ects Funds are pnnelpally prepared on the
- modified: aeorual basis of accounting, - ’

®  Project budgets are utlllzed in the Clty Capitals Pro_]eots Funds (Al appropnatlons not encumbered lapse at
year-end for the General Fund. Appropnatlons for the. Capital Pr0]ects Funds are continued untjl complenon-
of applicable projects, even when proj ects extend for more than one fiscal year, or untif repealed

Budgeted amounts are as orlgmally adopted or as amended by the City Council. No supplementary budgetary
approprlatlons were necessary-during-the ﬁscal year, which would have affected the total budget. -

The Budgetary Compatison Schedule for the General Fund reflects the onglnal budget, rev1sed budget and actual
amounts. for the City’s General Fund. The General Fund revenues, other financing sources, and special item of
$547,440,681 were over- expectattons by $10,581,884 for fiscal year- ended June 30, 2005. The General Fund
expenditures and other financing uses of $541,786,390 under budget by $7,091,986 for fiscal year ended June 30,
200s5. However certain departments/agenctes expendttures exceeded appropnatlons for this fiscal year. The City
Council and City Clerk ’s expenditures exceeded appropriations by $9,817. The Department of General’ Services’
expendrtures exceeded appropriations by $27,179. The Department of Hurnan' Resources’ expenditures exceeded
appropriations by $29,934. The City Mayor s Office’s expendltures exceeded appropriations by $27, 129. The City ™
Sheriff’s expenditures exceeded approprtattons by $4,296,465. The Department of Police’s expendltures éxceeded
approprratlons by $2,827,686. The Department of Fire' and Emergency Seérvices’ expenditures exceeded
appropriations by $667,188. Other Non- -Departmental expendltures related to Crestar Projects and Tax Rellef for
the Elderly exceeded appropnattons by $6,474 and $429,480, respectlvely
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"N on‘-major,_Govetfnmental Funds -

Specml Revenue F nnds

Speczal Revenue Funds are used to account for thé proceeds of speczf ic
revenue sources (other than expenddble trust, or major capttal projects)
that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. Each
fund is established on d functtonal baszs and may mclude one .or more

grants or other. fundmg sources.

Grant Revenue F unds

These funds'are used to account for federal and state grants,_ Pprivate

donattons and other program revenue.

]

. Consoltdated HUD Grants

' These funds account for activities for the Communzty ‘Development BIock_ L
Grant, Emergency Shelter, H.O.M.E. fnvestment Parmerships and Section - .

- 108 Loan” Program admtmstered by the Department of Commumty
Development

leital' !’roiectg Funds

h Capltal F und

The Capital Fund is used t0 account for budgeted capttal projects '.
(acqmsmon or construction of major. facilities, other than those fi nanced

by Proprtetaiy Funds and Trust Funds) approved by .City Council. lIts
prznczpal sources of fundzng are the sale of General Obligation Bonds and
transfers ﬁom the Reserve F und for Permanent Publtc Improvements

The Reserve Fund for Permanent Pubhc Improvements :
The Reserve Fund for Permanent Public Improvemeénts may only be used

as funding for the Capital Pro;ects Fund. Its sources are transfers jrom S

*_the General Fund, sales of capttal assets, and other governmental (mainly
state or federal) capttal grants. :

VDOT Urban Program :

The VDOT Urban Program is used to provtde Jor resurfacing, restoratzon
rehabtlttatton and reconstruction or various city streets and bridges. The
source of the funds is federal and state urban ﬁmds that are approved for
the C:ty by allocatzons of formulas. -
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_P_ermanént-Eunds " ;
Permanent funds are used-to report resources that are legally restricted to
the extent that only earnings, not prmczpal may be used for purposes that
support the reportzng government s programs. ]

Recreation oo

A gift to be used to matm‘am cemeterles " The prtnc:pal of the glft is
carried as a. nonexpendable trust and the accumulated net revenue is the

~ expendable trust, T o

Rlchmond Publtc Ltbrary
" Certain bequests compose the nonexpendable trust, and the net revenue
accumulated is classtf‘ ed as the expendable trust

J. Fulmer Bright. Park F und.
_The J. Fulmer Bright Park Fund ‘was establtshed to construct and’
mamtam a park in honor of J. Fulmer Bright, a former City Mayor.

Memortal ' | ’
These bequests provide specifi ic reservation of the principal and use of the

income by the City for specy" ic memortal purposes
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RICHMOND®
lll. ‘

- -  CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINLA )
. o COMBINING BALANCE SHEET . .
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

“ . . June 30, 2005 . . : . .

Capital Projects

- Special Revenue
' . o = . Reserve Fund for

102 R

. © Consolidated | ' Permanent Public vDoT *
' Granl Revenue Funds HUD Funds Capital Fund Improvements Urban Program
Assets . a' . .. - LY . * -
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 9,019,000 § } - 5 554850 $ - ¥ - -,
* Accounts Receivable, Net 1,977,248 939,541 95,684 - . N
* Due From Other Goverments 6,482,537 2,956,395 - - -
Restricted Assets N B — — 34,625,358 1,482,373 21,998,738
Total Assets ' N 17,478,785 § 3895936 § 35.275892 % 1,482,373 § 21,998,738
L ) " -~ N " ‘ .
Liabilities and Fund Balances . : -
Liabilities: : ) ’ , "
Accounts Payable .3 1,004,953 5§ - 1,611,356 3 . 275640 § . - 3 644
Acomed Liabilities 264,466 44,554 -, . - -
Due To Other Funds o RIS - 2,183,754 - - > - LR -
Due To Other Govemments " 30,602 . - : - - -
Deferred Revenue 4,761,604 - - - 10,011,737
Total Liabilities . . 6,061,625 3,839,664 ) 275,640 — 10,012,381 N
Fund Balances: c ) . L '
Fund Balance-Reserved . - - 35,000,252 1,482,373 11,986,357
Fund Balance-Unreserved: ) ] o .
. Designated for Specific Projects 11,417,160 56,272 -, - =
_Total Fund Balances, - ‘ ) ) 11,417,160 56,272~ 35,000,252 1,482,373 ) - 11,986,357
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances. ' 3 17,478,785 §& ° ) 3,805,936 § 35,275,892 § 1,482,373 § < 21,998,738

[



) ’ . EXHIBITL1
" Permanent Funds ! ’,
J. Flumer Bright Park, s . chhmpndi’ubli; - .
» Fund Memorial Recreation Library Total
) ' - 3 - § ' - - 3 9,573,850
.- - : . - 3012473,
- ) - - - 9,438,932
395,533 . 31,030 25,000 11,998 58,570,030
3 395,533 3 31,030 - § 25,000 115998 § - 80.595.285
$ - 8 - 8 - - & ., +2802,593
- - - - 309,020
- - - - +2,183,754
- - - - 30,602
— - - - 14,773,341
- - - - 20,189,310
' 595.533 : 31,030 ! 25,600 11,998 48,932,543
- = - — 11,473,432
395,533 31,030 25,000 11,998 '60,405,975
s 398533 S D 310305 . 25000 11998 % 80,595.285
L v
: . . ’




. . B , - - Specialkevenu: ) -" Capital Projects R
! . Reserve Fund for
. . . Consolidated Permanent Public  + VDOT - .,
¢ * Grant Revenue Funds %-  HUD Funds ¢ Capital Fund . Improvements ._Urban Program .

Reventues ' " , . . ' .
Intergovernmental 3 29,984,780 § 9928,040° § 8,227,292 § ' - .5 11,626,613
Investment Income . 92,143 B -957,459 70,465 - 378,465 .
Miscellaneous . 14,156,648 -- 35,685 1,098,535 -

Total Revenues . 44,233,571 9,528,040 9,220 436. 1,168,991 12,005,078 J
Expenditures , . . : P ' ) "
Current; i - . ) B : -

General Government 10,376,708 9,029,956 - - -
Pubtic Safety and Judiciary 11,939,687 - - - - - -
Highways, Streets, Sanitation and Refuse 617,506 - - — -
Human $mices 25,881,018 | - - - R -
Cultare and Recreation - 1,579,143 - . - -- - N
Capita] Outlay . ' - - 43,090,541 : - 18721 ' .
Total Expenditures , 50,394,062 + 9,029,056 43,000.541 - 18721
Exctss of Revenugs Over (Under) Expenditures (6,160,491} . B9B084 " {33,870,105) 1,168,991 11,986,357
- . \ v s ) - . -
Other Finaacing Sources (Uses) b - ' ‘
Proceeds from Issuance of Bonds . - -7 L536,671 - - ,
Transfers In-Other Funds . 5,031,393 898,084 676,667 - - i
Transfers Out-Other Funds A (3133842 (1,796,168) . L - {10,000) = N
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses), Net . T - - 6,897,551 .(898@84)'\ 2,213,338 - (30,000) . -
] . ! = N ' v -
Special and Extraordinary Itoms . ) . T
Special Iiem - Disaster Recovery 2,507,074 .- - - -, )
Extraordipary Ttem - Disaster Cost ‘. (4,020,240} - - - . - - -
‘Total Extraordinary Item, Net L (1,513,166). - - -
Excess of Revenues, Other Financing Sources, and Special [tem * . - o - . - - '

Over (Under) Expenditures, Other Financing Uses, and Extraordinary Iiem f (776,106) . -- . (31,655,767) . 1,158,991 11,986,357 von
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 12,193,266 56,272 66,657,019 323,382 -

Fund Balance - End of Year s 11417,160 § 56272 § 35000252 $ 1,482,373 § . 11,986,357 ;
" 4
) 1

.CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
. COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005
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EXHIBIT I . : N o

Permanent Funds

J. Flumer Bright Park ! Rickmond Public
:_Fund Memorial Recreation . Library Total
s L - - - 5 Y 59,766,735
2,720 95 264 - 113 - 1,501,725
.. _ i - 15,290,858
2,730 95 264 113 76,559,308
1775 “ - - 19,408,439
- - - , - 11,939,687
- - - - 617,506
- - ) - - 25,881,018
- - - - 1,579,123
- — i - - 43,109,262
1775 - - - 102,535,055
945 95 264 113 (25,975,747
. . - M - 1,536,671
- 472 - - © 10,606,616
- (95) (264) (113) (3,940,482)
= 377 (264) {113) 8,202,805
- - - - . 2,507,074
-~ - - - (4,020,240)
. - L - - (1,513;166)
945 an - - (19,286,108)
394,388 30,558 25,000 11,998 79,692,083
$ 395,533 31,030 25000 § 11998 S 50,405,975
¢ . L. *



RICHMOND
1

Principal Payments
+General Obligation Bonds .
General Government
Streets and Bridges -
Sehools General Obligation Borids
Schools Virginid Public Schoels Authority Bends
B Schools Qualified Zope Academy Bonds
Lmdmark Th:alre
Richmond Convention Center
Coliseum
Cemeteries
Public Utilities P , '
Richtnond Metropolitan Authority - Expressway Deck

Hospital Authority of Rickmond
Richmond Ambulance Authoriny
Internal Service Fund - Fleet Management

Total General Obligation Bonds  ~, *

General Obligal‘in'n Notes-
Serial Equipment Notes - General Fund
.Serial Equipment Notes - Internal Service Funds
- Total General Obligation Notes R

Other Debt Instruments
HUD Section 108 Notss
Certificates of Participation -. 800 Megahertz Project
' Tot‘al Ocher Debt Instruments- . :

Total Principal Payments

Interest Payments ' . . M
Géneral Obligation Bonds ! .
General Government \
General Governnent Equipment
Streets and Bridges
Schools General Obligation Bonds
. Schaols Virginia Public Schools Authority Bonds
Landmark Theatre
Richmond Convention Center
Coliseum
Cmetcnes
Public Unlmes
Richmond Melrupo]ltan Authority - Expressway Deck

Richmond Redevelopment Housing Authority - Thuxcr Row Bu1!dlng

- Hospital Authority of Richmond
Richmond Ambulance Authority
Internal Service Fund - Fleet Management
Total General Obligation Bonds

General Obligation Notes
Serial Equipment Notes - General Fund
‘Serial Equipment Notes - internal Service Funds

Total Genetal Obligation Notes

Other. Debt Instruments
HUD Section 108 Notes
Certificates of Paticipation - 800 Megahertz Project
Total Other Debt Instruments

Iunterest - Short Terro Debt

Tota! Interest Payments

Issuance and Legal Costs

Total - ' 2

Richmond Redevelopment Housing Authority - Theater Row Building

CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA -

DEBT SERVICE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

.

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005 -

EXHIBIT I-3

Variance with -

Final Budget S
Original Budget Final Budget Actual Paositive (Negative) A
) ! . " ! 1 - Il -
5 15,538,843 5 T 15538843 5§ - 15338843 5 . -
2,612,785 ' 2,612,785 2,612,785 - . -
4,684,634 ' 4,684,634 4,684,634 R oo
. 221,132 221,132 221,132 - Lo
142,812 : 142,812 114,145 28,667 -
. 497,125 497,125 497,125 ) Y-
- 550,857 559,857 550,857 _ - S
- 949959 949,959 ' , * 949,958 1 S
48,721 48,721 48,721 - ’
11,484,379 11,484,379 - 11,484,379 . - _
- 384,085 384,085° 384,085 -
242,589 : 242,589 242,589 L )
! 14,596 14,596 " 14,596 . - .
29,073 2907 29,673 -
3,371,600 3,371,600 2,371,600 - e ' '
. ' 40,782,190 40,782,190 4 40,753,522 - 28,668 -
i 433,592 - . 433,592 433,592 - :
1.386:408 1,386,408 1386408 - .
_ 1,820,000 1,820,000 1,820,000 —
575,000 575000 530,000 5000, ;
: 640,000 640,000 - 640,000 ' - L
1,215,000 1,215,000 1,170,000 45,000 :
43817190 43,817,190 43,743,522 3668 0 - f
" 13,930,583 13,930,583 13,935,370 (4,787 S
235871 235,871 246,458 . (10,587) -, P
2,266,962 T 2,266,962 2,389,795 (122,833) - it
4,277,049 *4,277,049 4,266,299 - 10750 . -
R 163,868 163,868 163,868 -
. 285487 - 285,487 247,758 37,729 .
780,069 780,069 Y L779,811 . 258 '
713,437 - 713,437 697,156 16,281
37,167 . 37167 35,203 = 1,874 .
13,629,004 13,629,004 13,629,004 -
- 911,655 911,655 911,654 1.
. 1,105,115 : 1,105,115 1,105,114 1, ,
e 24423 24423 24,422 ' - b
20,452 . 20,452 20,451 , . '
517,380 517,380 - 547,880 {30,500} . T
) 38,898,522 38,898,522 | 39,000,333 {101,811} '
' 21,138 , 21,138 - 21,138 : - C
. . 67,588 . 67,588 67,588 - .
88,726 . 88,726 88.726 - i
307,102 07,102 " 368,083 9,01 -
! 825,713 825,713 825,712 _ 1 .
1,232,815 1232815 1,193,795 39,020
L 150,000 750,000 529,150 226,850 ‘,
40,970,063 10,970,063 40812004 158,059
1,000,000 1,000,000 625009 . 374,091 3 .
]
- $ 85,787,253 § 85787253 8 '85.181435  § 605,818 -




’ ; EXHIBIT 14
) .. ' ’ CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA . i
, , L BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE . '
’ Lo . SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS.
! : For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005 ' . .
’ 2
Variance with
- “ , Final gudget
- . ' Original Budget Final Budpet Actual . Positive (Nepative)
Revenues ' L N . : : :
Intergovernmental T - J
Intergovernmental * - 5 86,719,205 § 97,784,817 § 39912820 § (57,871,997
Investment Eamings and Contributions . .-92,143 92,143 « 92,143 -
Miscellaneous Revenue 15,007,935 - 15,097,935 - 14156648 (941,286) +
Total Revenuss 101,909,283 112,974,895 54161611 (58813283
Al .
{Expenditures. ! - h
, General Government . . . o )
General Goveriment R - -8 736189774 §. 46979066 § * 19406665 § 27,572,401
Public Safety and Judiciary ! > 19,143,913 19,154 313 v 11,939,687 7,214,626
Highways, Streets, Sanitation and Refuse 2,741,885 3,007,805 617,506, 2,350,299
Human Services . L 40,474,420 40,474,420 * 25,381,017 14,593,403,
' Culture and Recrealiup L0 B 3,359,291 3,359,251 1,579,143 1,780,148
Total Expenditures '101;909,283 * 112,974,835 59424018 53,550,877
Exc:css‘of Revenues Over ('Under) Expendi’lur'es ' - - (5,262,407) . (5,262,406)
Other Financing Sources (Uses) .- . .
Transfers In-Other Funds 9,929,471 9,929,477 9,929,477 -
Transfers Out-Other Funds (3.930,010) (3,930,010) (3,930,010) -
Total Oiher Financing Sources, Net ' “ . - 5,999,467 _5.999.467 " 5999467 - -
Special and Extraordinary Items D )
Special Item - Disaster Recovery . R - -7 2,507,074 2,507,074
Extraordinary Item - Disaster Cost A : - - (4,020,240) 4,020,240 -
Total Extraordinary ltem, Net . . - (1,513,166) ° © 6,527,314
Exceés of_Reveﬁues, Other Findncing Sourees, and Special Item . L, T, ) I .,
", Over (Under) Expeniditures, Other Finasicing Uses, and Extraordinary Item 5,999,467 5,999,467 (776,106} {5,262,406)
"Fund Balance - Beginning of Year ! . - = 12,249,538 ' 12249538
Fiind Balance- End of Year s 35,999,467 3 5999467 § - 11473432 § 6,087,132

A\

~



>

Revenues

Intergovernmental Revenue
Regional STP Funds (TEA-21}
VBOT Urban Funds -

Total Intergovernmental Revenue

Investment Earnings and Contribution:
Eocal Matches and Contributions’

Total Investment Eamings

Miscella’neol;s Revenue

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Capital Outlay:
School Board
Iifrastructure ., 1
Economic Development
Neighborhood Development
City Facilities

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenes Over {Under} Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses) .
Proceeds from Issuance of General Obligation Bonds
Transfers In-Other Fiinds .
" Transfers Out-Ollher Funds

Total Qther Financing Sources, Net

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year
Fund Balance-.End of Year

5

‘CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

.’ For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

" EXHIBIT LS

\.l'i;u"ianu::ewilhf
: L - ) Finat Budget

N Original Budget " Final Budpet Actual Positive (Negative) .
) 14,343,000 3 14,343,000 § _ 8227292 § (6.115,708) .
17,673,000 - 17.673.000 11626613 *(6,046,387)

32,016,000 32,016,000 19,853,905 (12,162,005)

+ 89,000 89,000 1,406.390. _ 1317390

89,000 89.000 1,406,350 1.317.390.

666,667 ' 666,667 " 1,134,210 467,543

32,771,667 32,771,667 22,394,505 (10,377,162)

4,500,000 " 4,500,000 8,552,855 (4,052,85%)

40,481,000 40,481,000 8,182,845 - 32,298,155

' (1,243,333 {1,243,313) 7,325,521 (8,568,854)
2,860,000 2,860,000 3,826,872 (966,872

+ 13,630,000 13,630,000 15.221.169 {1,591,169)

60.227,667: 60,227,667 43,109,262 17,118 405

- (27.456,000) (27,456,000) (20,714,757 6.741.243

i zs,issfoop 28,456,000 1,536,671 (26,519,329)
. C - - 676,667 - 676,667

- . -- (10,000) 10,000

28.456000 28,456,000 2,203,338 (26.232,662)

1,600,000 1.000.000 (18,511,419} (19.451,419)

66,980,401 66,980,401 66,980,401 - C

$ 67980401 § - s * (19.491.419)

108

67,980,401

43,468982 §

<
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Non-major Proprietary Funds
Non-major proprietary funds are used for operations (a) that are financed
and operated in a manner similar to private ':business'enterprise—when the -
intent_of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including
depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing " basis be ' financed or 'recovered primarily through' -user

. charges; or (b) where the City has decided that pertodtc determination of .
revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is.appropriate for

. capital maintenance, public policy, management com‘rol accountability,
or other purposes. :

g he Non-major Proprietarjz F unds are:

Richmond Colisewm - - - = -~
(Coliseum) promates and operates the Coliseum facility.

Zthhmond Ltmdmark Theatre - -
(Landmark Theatre) promotes and operates a Iheater for

' performmg arts

Cemeteries .. ) '
maintains and operates cemeteries..

-+ 109,




N June 30, 2005
. Colisecum * ' Landmark Theatre -Cemeteries . Total
Assets !
Current Assels: ] oo ‘ ' ,
Cash and Cash Equivalents . o 5 T, 561,592., § - 3 94025 % " 655,617 -
Accounts Receivable, Net : . 259,619 .. 121817 - 134,033 515,469
Inventories of Material and Supplies ) N 105,789 " — - - 105,789
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets' 90,246 - . - - 90,246 *
Total Current Assets : ‘ 1017246 121,817 228,058 1,367,121 °
Noncurrent Assets: . B ’ ,
Capital Assets:
Land oL .- T 44,690 ' 8,188,700 8,233,390
Buildings and Structures 14,827,115 9,294,597 601,429 24,723,141,
Equipment : : ' 4,984,189 N 962,657 84,490 . . 6031336
- Less Accumulated Depreciation - ’ (8,407,051) -2 (3,194,026) (367,687) (11,968,764)
Construction in Progress * T~ . i 1,144,069 279,210 1,423,279
Total Noncurrent Assets ' g 11,404,253 | - 8251987 - £,786,142 28,442,382
- Total Assets $ 13,421,499 § 8,373,804 § 9,014,200 § 29,809,503
Liabilities ' : .
Current Liabilities: ' . N
Accounts Payable 3 1,002,170 % ' 51,7200 8 4,723 § 1,058,613
Accrued Liabilities ' 1,446,818 . 146,740 24,529 1,618,487
‘Due To Other Funds R . - . 2,788,097 = . 2,788,097
Due to Other Govemiments . . 413,046 N - - 413.,046
Compensated Absences ' ’ :, . - 17,276, 61,338 78,614 .
Accrued Interest on Bonds and Notes Payable 342,308 - ’ 124,420 ' 15,963 482,691
General Obligation Bonds and Capital Leases 1,036,478 393,015 40,300 1,469,794
Tatal Cumrent Liabi[iti'es . . 4,240,820 3,521,269 147,253 7.909,342
. Noncurrent Liabilities: . .
Compensated Absences ' - - - 13,356 6,837 20,093
General Obligation Bonds and Capital Leases . - 12,993,054 . 4,525,258 ' 589,336 18,107,648
M ot -
Total Nénurrent Liabilities 12,993.054 4,538,614 595,173 18,127,841
Total Liabilitiés ' 17,233,874 8,059,883 ‘743,426 26,037,183 -
Net Assets . . al
, Invested In Capital Assets, Net of Reldted Debt L . (2,625,279) " -3,333,713 8,156,506 | 8,864,940
Unrestricted X ) B . - s £2,187,096) ’ (3,019,792) . 113,268 (5,092.620)
Total'Net Asscts 3 (4812,375) § 313921 3 8,270.774 §

. . CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
COMBININGB'I“ATF.MEN-T OF NET ASSETS
NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

EXHIBIT J-1

110 ’

3;772}320



- ‘ " EXHIBIT J2

CITY OF RICHMOND VIRG]NIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND.CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
s NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

, J
. . N

" Caliseum Landmark Theatre __*__ Cemeteries . _ - Total
Operating Revenues . T ) L ’ ' i
, Charges for Goods and Services ' . § 2,068,567 § 390,879 § 1,412,205, § . 3,871,651
Al y O B " N
Operating Expenses ) ' . " B ’ -
Salaries and Wages . . . 1,208,403 714,205 956,754, L 2879362 -
Materials and Supplies = . , ! 344,069 7 “-56,444. 21,116 v 421,629
Rents and Utilities ' . ’ - 183,688 41,955 225,643
Maintenance and Repairs 134914 ) 136,944 _ 5583 277,441
Depreciation and Amortization - 1,336,422 239 896 4+ - 23,901 1,650,219 .
Miscellaneatis Operatmg Expenses ) 1,038,175 L 52100 256,486 .- Y 1,349,853
" Total Operating Expenses Co. 4,061,983 1,4'3_'3,369 1,308,795 6,804,147
Operating Income (Loss) L (1,993.416) T (L042490) - S T 103410 (2.932,496)
Non-Op'erating Revenues (Expenses) . ,' , . ot R R nr ’ ) i ot
Government Subsidies.and Contributions L. 3 1,338,615 § . 744,883 § 84014 3 2,167,512
Interest Income . 8,276 L - - 8,276
Interest on Long-Term Debt ‘ R (297,039) (35,490) T (332,529)
Miscellaneous Revenue . R 261,448 7 .- - 261,448
Miscellancous (Expenses) , oo ' (911,349) =" o ' (911,349)
Total Non-Operating Revenues, Net 435,542 . 709,292 . 48,524 1,193.358
Cliange In Net Assats . ' " (1,557,874) " ~ (333,198) 151,934 " (1.739.138)
A . , . . D ) B . e
Net Assets - Beginning of Year (3.254,501) 547,119 | 8118840 5511458
Net Assets - End of Year . ) ot % - {(4,812,375) § 313921 § . 8270774 § 3,772,320

f '

-



CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINLA
< . STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS.
' NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FINDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2005

+ Colisesm Landmark Theatre Cemeteries Taotal
Cash Flows From Operating Activities \ ) . ' . )
Receipts from Customers . ' 3 3,180,182° %, 295011 | 1,393,636 3§ 4,868,820
Paymems ro Suppliers (1,161,913) . (378,402) (354,752) »(1,895,077)
Payments 1o Employees ) {1,201,801) (713,139 - (965383) - '(2,380,318)
Other Receipts or (Payments) R i . - 51,642 (84,013) - (3237
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) , s ' . .
Operating Activities ) * 816468 {744,883) _(10,522) 61,063
“Cash Flows From Noncapita! Financing Activities » . ' r )
Govemnmient Subsidies and Contributions . - - 744,383 84,014 - . 828,897
. Payments on Capital Lease v (124,590) - . -- ,(124,590)
Other Cash Distributed ' (105,378) - - . {105,378)
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) - - -
Nencapital Financing Activities . (229,968) ‘ 744,883 . 84,014 598,929
Cish Flows From Cupltal and Related Fiu,'mcil-lg Activities ' ) . ’
Acquisition of Capital' Assets . . (26,833) - 5 - {26,833)
Net Cash (Used [n) . .
Capital and Related Firancing Activities ' . " (26,833) B - - (26833)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities - ' )
Interest-Eamed on Operating Funds 8,276 - -- 8,276
. Interest Paid on Customers' Deposits . ’ {85,675) - - . - (85,675)
Net Cash (Used In) v - .- .
Investing Activities . - . . (77,399) - - (77,399)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents . . T 482,268 - "73,492 . sss7e0
Cash and Cash Equivalents at July 1, 2004 . 79,324 - . 20,533 99,857
Cash and Cash Equivalents at June 30, 2005 } 5 561,592 § -~ § 94,025 3 655,617
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) T : . N ’ )
To Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities ; \ " . s
Operating Income (Loss) b {1993416) $ (1,042490) % 103410 S (2,932,496)
Adjustment to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) 1o Net Cash - ' B ’
(Used In) Operating Activities: '
Depreciation .o . . R 1,336,422 289,896 23,901 1,650,219
Miscellaneous Expenses . B . = o 7(568;175)  {B4,013)- {652,188)
(Inerease) Decrease in Assets and Increass (Decrease) in’ Liabilities: . 7 . '
Accounts Receivable - . 24,785 (95,868) (18,569) (89,652)
Inventories of Matetial and Supplies ! 12,417) - - - © o (12,417)
Prepaid Expenses (33,642) - - (33,642)
Accounts Payable - ) ' 501,304 50,866 (26,621) 525,349
Acerved Liabilices s 1,093,432 45,890 2,657 1,141,519
Due to Other Funds- ) €100,000) 578,708 - 478,708
Compensated Absences . T~ . (3.710) {11,287) (14,997)
Total Adjustments 2,809,884 " 207,607 (113,932 . .2,993,559
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities - b3 " 816463 § {744.883) § (10,522) $ 61063
Supplemental Cash Flow Information ' .
Non-cash Transacticns: : . A N o
GO Bonds Principal payments made by City Debt Service Fund on behalf of Fund '949,958 497,125 48,721 ],495,804
GO Bonds Interest payments made by City Debt Service Fund on behalf of Fund - 697,156 247,158 35,203 930,207
Capital Lease Principal payments made by City Debt Service Fund on behalf of Fund 124,590 59,229 .- . 183,819
Capital Lease Interest payments made by City Debt Service Fund on behalf of Fund 85,675 26,854 - T 112,529
Capital Assets aquired on behaif of Fund ) 1,512,535 -, 62,951 o 1,575,486
Debt allocation to Fund , , T . 1,512,535 -, 62,951 -1,575,486

s



Internal Service F unds

' * '

Internal Serwce Funds are used to account for the fi financing of goods or
services prowded by one a'epartment or agency to other departments or
agencies of the. City, or. other govemments on’a cost-rezmbursement'

: baszs

2

The Internal Service Funds are:

"-Fleet Management

0y

provtdes Jor repairs and maintenance 1o C‘zty—owned vehicles and . -
related equipment, as well as monthly and daily leasing sérvices.

Radio Maintenance :
provides for installation, repairs and maintenance of radio - and

.other . emergency communication " equipment  in ' City-owned

vehicles.

" Risk Management - -

provides for the accumulation and allocation of costs associated
with risk and insurance for the City. ' '

.Pubhc Works Stores

provzdes supplies przmartb) Jor Schools, Department of Public.
Works, and Utilities departments -of a bulk natyre such as sand,
bricks and construction materzals._

s

| ‘ 'Electric Udlity - -

provides street lighting and other electrtc service to part of the

City.

Stores and T mnsportatton Division
provzdes supphes and vehtcles for the utilities departments

- T

113



CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA

) - COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

‘ . INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

-

EXHIBIT K-1 )

- Stores and

Flect Radio " Risk Publio Werks _ Traisportation
: T ' Matiagement - Mintenance  _ Mamagement __Stores Electric Utifity ' Division __ Total
" Assets : N h ) v, ) .
Current Assets: to. I . j
! Cash and Cash Equivalenis $ - % ' - % 1,361,011 3% 246890 § - % 31,244973 & 42,852,834
Aocou?ns Beceivable, Net 860,154 82,157 - - 2,244,126 - 3,186,437
Due From Other Govérnments 18,166 - - - - - 18,166
Inventory ; ' ! : l2.52§ 314381 - 315413 . - -2,971,857 3,331,275
Prepaid Expenses . - = - 486,000 " - 143,510 265919 895,429
Total Cuﬂ"enlAssels 890,844 113,638 11,847,021 - 562,303 2,387,636 ' 34,482,749 50,284,191 v
Noocurrent Assets: * N . '
Advances 1o Other Funds - Lo - - 3,294,908 - 3,204,908
Drferred Expenses . - - (- - 39,415 - 39,415
- Capital Assets: ' ' _
Land : 98,000 - - - - - 98,000
Buildings and Structures - 1,273,551 - - - 38,327,917 57,431,587 97,033,055
Equipment 60,076,855 620,633 - 22,136 - - 60,719,024
Less Accumulated Depreciation (34,772,366) {101,177y . ’ - (21,954) (19,419,523) (36,335,851) N (91,650,911)
. Construction in Progress - - . - - 3,330,495 9,589,539 12920034 . .
Total Capital Assets - . 25676040 518,856 e e 182 22238889 30;685235 . ” 75,119,202
Total Noncurrent Asscts . 25,676,040 518.856 - 182 25,573,212 36,685,235 82,453,525
"l‘ntal Assets s 26,566,884 § 632494 § 11847021 § 562485 S YTS60.848 § 65167984 3 [3LTITTI6 -
Liabilities .
4 Current Liabilities: . - . : - ,
Accounts Payable -, 1 578953 % 144,553 § 11,645 § 430,2'.'_5 -$ 303902 § 1,524,818 % 2,606,146 §
Acerued Liabilities 73,705, 10,683 67,434 2,333 808,869 90,590 1,053,614 -
Due To Other Funds 1,138,210 819,988 - - 2.332,309 - 4,291,007°
Due To Other Governments - 3,189 - - - - 3,189
Accrued Iuterest on Bonds and Notes Payable 246,720 - - - 2,165,569 - 2412,289
General Obligation Bonds Payable ’ 3,971,750 - - - 71,282 - + 4,043,032
Netes Payable ) L +1,000,000 * T Tt -, - - 1,000,000
Compensated Absences N . 35,856 4,440 15,897 . 5,610 . 98,650 34,033 194,486 ‘
Other Liabilities and Clajms * ‘ - - 5,920,003 L - . - 5,920,003 . "
Total Current Liabilities 7,045,194 , 982,853 6,014,979 48,218 - 3,783,081 1,649.;14l 21,523,766 ’
Noncurrent Liabilittes: - . - !
Agcreted Interest . - - - - 188,824 + - 188,824
Deferred Revenue B - - - = - 331,030 9% 331,126
General Obligation Bonds Payable 6,740,350 - - - 2,017,341 - - 8,757,691
Notes Payable . 4,000,000 - - - P I ¢ - 4,000,000
Compensated Absences L 147,678 18,431 Lo . 1,143 6,865 12;503 3,018 195,638
' Other Liabilities and Claims ) . - -, 12815559 b “ . - 17,915,559
Advances from plhcr Funds N 150 - - - - 63,515,429 ' 63,515,579 *
Total Nonctrrent Lizbilities ' 10,888,178 18431 17,922,702 6,865 2,549,698 63,518,543 94,904 417
Total Liabilities - : 17,933,372 1,001,284 23,937,681 -55,083 8.332.779 65,167,984 116,428,183
Net Assets . . - I
- invested In Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 9,963,940 518,856 - . o182 19,961,442 30,685,235 ~° 61,129,655
Unrestricted - . . (1,330,428) (887.646) (12,090,660) ;507,220 (333.3739) {30,685,235) (44,820,122)
Total Net Assets . . $ 8,633,5'12 $ ('368,790) 3 . (12,000.660) $ 507,402 % '19.-628,06‘) $ v - § 16,309.533

. - .
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- . N : EXHIBITK-2-
. \ ' " CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA - -
COMBINI.NG STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS ° . ' .
. R INTERNAL SERVICE' FUNDS ' .
* For the Fls_cal.Year Ended June 30, 2005, .- B ' ; )
' . "o .\ . : : ot N . N
1
i ' . "
B : ) Stores and .
. Fleet - Radio Risk Public Works Trapsportation . | _
. . Management Mainténance - - Mapagement |,  Stores - "_Elcctric Utility Division Total
' L N - - - N . B -
! Operating Revenites . . s E T o : .
o Charges for Goods and Services 3 12730181 8 927,191 § 11,652,836 § 1,343,757 § 7446388 § 4339459 § 43439815
Operating Expenses : i oo . v .
- . Costof Goods and Services Sold 8,561,026 656,782 - 1,201,886 ) - - 10,419,694
' . Salaries and Wages 1,183,930 134,850 260,816 131,406. 1,164,385 460,132 . 3335519
f Data Processing ) 118,829* 51% - - - . - 124,005
B . Materials and Suppliés . . 115,943 - 249N + 5,688 1,449 s+ 545,269 y 11,538 . 704,864 )
Rents and Utilities 240,349 37,200 . 8,381 C 43,651 2,063 456 17,235 2,410,272
o . Maintenance and Repairs - . 31277 ' 6,3359™ 184 i 14,301 641,27 ¢ . 58,036° 783,628
| = Dep and An ization . 5,365,356 5,069 - ' . 725 1,301,132 -3,300,637 9,972,919
K Claims and Settlements - - V11,154,034 - - - 11,154,034
L Miscellaneous Operating Expenses 1382377 216,65 2,355,701 - 1,120,550 663,630 5,718,817
, . Total Operating Expenses 17,024 937 1,087,272 i3.?84,304 1393418 6,842,063 X 4,511.208 * 44,643,752
. Operating Income (Loss) 705,194 (160,081} (2,131,965) {49,661 604325 (171,749) (1,203,937)
! - f s . . v »
, . t d f ,
f o i Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
“ Goverament Subsidies and Contributions . ’ - - - . - 812,678 ' - - §12.678
Interest on Long-Term Debt (603,110) - s - - - (486,724) . - (1,089,834)
) Miscellancous Revenue 605,893 172 < 1,196,659 . -, 22,873 171,749 1,997,346
- Miscellancous (Expense) (225,000) (L132) - - T - (8,570 - (234,702)
T Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (222,217) {96D) 1.196:659 - 340,257 171,749 1485488
! i Net [ncome (Loss) Before Transfers 482,977 (161,041) + (935306) (49.661) 9‘44.58i - - 281,551 .
i ' Transfers Out-Other Funds - - - . (213,700) (32,739) - (246,439)"
. y R :
i 4 Change In Net-Assets . . 482,977 {16041} (935306) -_ - (263.361) 911,843 - 35,112
; Net Assets - Beginning of Year 8,150,535 o 202,149 (11,155.354)' 770,763 18,716,226 * - == . 16,274 421
‘Nﬁl Assets - End of Year 3 8,633,512 % 368,700y §  (12,090.660) § 507402 ° 5 19,628,069 § L 5 16,309,533
| ‘ : ' .y " . [ . N '
i- JI & : . 0 .
| .
B " - T - ' !
. . f - Lo
T .
v - - ' - B
" o . 1 . . , - ' ,
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Cash Flows From Operating Activities
" Receipts from Customers * ' .
Payments to Suppliers ’
Payments to Employee:
Paymeats to Other Funds
. Other Reczipts or (Payments)
Wet Cash Provided By
Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Capita) and Related Financing Activitic
Acquisition of Fined Assers ’
Proceeds from Issuante of Notes Payable
Repayments of Revenpe and GO Bonds
Repayments of Notes Payable
Interest Paid on Long-Term Debt

Net Cash (Used Im)  * -
Capital and Re]a'led Fiflancing Activities

Cash ¥lows From Noncapital Financing Activities ) -

Govemment Subsidies and Contributions
Transfers - Out Other Funds
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) . '
Nongapitah Finanging Activitics
‘-

N [

© Net Increase {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at July 1, 2004 .
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Junc 30, 2005 «

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss)
To Net Cash Provided By (Used In} Operating Activitles
Operating Income (Loss) . .
Adjustment t¢ Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided By Operating Activitics:

Depreciation
Miscellanzous Revenues (Expenses)
{Increase} Decrease in Assets and Increase {Decrease) in Liabitities:

Accounts Receivable * .

Due From Other Governments

Inventorics of Material and Supplies

Prepaid Expenses

Deferred Expenses

Accounts Payable
+ Accrued Liabilities

Due To Other Funds .

Due To Component Units . .

Deferred Revenue *

'Cempensated Absences "

Onher Liabilities and Claims

‘Totel Adjusiments

Net Cash Provided By Operaiing Activities

I

CITY OF RICHMOND; VIRGINIA ~ _
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended Juoe 39, 2005.

N Stares and
. i Radie Risk . PublicWerks Transportation ”
Flcet Management __Maintenence Management Stores Electrie Utility Dhvision " Total
' e Lo : '
5 17221882 8 1038840 3 11,652839 8 1343757 $ 7,034,395 § 4,339,527 'S 42,631,240
{10,350,652) - {869,691) {5,679,003) (76,108) {3,726,976} - (20,703,030)
(1,159,639) {130,863) {6,225,324) (136,6%4) (1,031,433} (478,818) {9,162,792)
- - - — (BBB,187) (541,563) (1.430,152) |
(621,660) 485,639 1,196,659 (1,108,533} 24,275 863437 839,817
508993 523,925 94517 21,822 1412053 - . 4182181 12,175,083 -
14,716,456) (523,925) - - (1,950,051). (4,425,183) (41,655,615)
- 5,000,000 h— - - - - 5,000,000
{3.371,600) - B - - 57,60 - - - (3,469,207
{1,386,408) - - - - - (1,386,408}
(615,467) - - - (104,334) - (715,800) -
(5,088.931) (523,925) . - v - (2,161,952) (4,425183) . (12,231,031)
- = i - - - 812,678 - 812,678
- - - (213,700) (32,719) - (2465.439)
= - - (213,700) 779,939 - 566,239
- - 9451717 (191,878) . (243.005) ' 510291
- - 10,415,350 433,768 - 31,487,975 42,342,593
s - 3 ~ § 11361021 $ 246.890 § - § 31244973 8 423852834
b3 765,194 §- (160.081) $ ° .(2131965) § 49,651) $ 604,325' § (171,749) §  (1,203,937)
5,365,356 5,069 - T 1,301,132 3,300,637 9,672,919
177,512 (960} 1,196,659 - 14,304 171,749 1,559,264
(504,382) 106,500 - . - 411,992) 68 (809,306}
3917 5,149 - : - C - - 1,232
4913 (1,714 - 93353 . - 658,606 745,332 ¢
- s - - - ' 11,268 11,634 22,502
- = - 9,973 .- 9,973
29962 - 79,376 ©.m0) (17300 148,811 33,397 644,369
14,619 1,450 26,148 {1.817) 45,236 - (59,034) 26,602
(799,022) 433,410 - - v (287,640) - (603,252)
b 3,189 - - - 3,189’
L. - R - - {17,522) n {17,523}
9,522 2,557 1,291 (3ATL) . (5,902) (42,926) {33,949)
- . 1,862,768 ~ L - - =t 1,862,768
4,384 737 584,006 3,077,136 71,483 807,728 4,353,930 13,379,020
5 5089931 § 523925 § . 945171 § 21822 § 1412053 § 12,175,083
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'F iduciary Fundsﬁh '

4

Fiduciary Funds are used 10 account for resources held for the benef tof

parties outside the government. The: City maintains two Ftductary Funds:
1) Trust, Funds and 2) Agency Funds. Fiduciary Funds are not reflected
in the- government-wide financial- statements ‘because the resources of

those funds are not avdilable to support the. city’s own programs.

"T he Fiduciary F undglare;
Trust Funds
" -The Richniond Retirement Sys'tem
provzdes retirement and -disability benefits for aIl vested ‘

. permanent full time employees

Other Emponee Benef ts ' ) .

is a deferred compensatton plan created in accordance

" with the Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section, 457, The
plan is available to all City employees and permtts deferval-

o s until future years on up 10.25% of salarjy wu‘h a maximum
o " deferral'of $7,500 per year:

- ’ ; .-+ Agency Funds o

" Agency Funds are custodial in nature and do. not present
results of operations or have a measurement focus. The

 Agency Funds consist of the assets and liabilities of several
organizations for which the city sérves as fiscal agent, such
as the ' Department . of -Welfare, the Department . of

" Recreation and Parks, the Department of Public Works and -
the Law Department
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‘ . CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINTA
- 2" COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
: - FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 2005

Assets: ) .

‘Cash and Short-term Investients

Receivables
Due from Brokers on Sale of Securities
Due From Other Governments

+ Interest-and dividends

Employee Loans Réceivable

Investments, at Fair Value:
U.S. Domestic and Agency
Corporate Bonds
Commaon Stock
International Stocks .
Internaticnal Bonds .
Real Estate Investment Trusts .
Cash Collateral Received - Security Lending Program

Total Investments, at Fair Value _
Total Assets

’

‘ N

Liabilities:
' Accobmts Payable :
Payable for Collateral Received - Security Lending Program
." Due to Other Governiments
Due to Various Agents -

Total Liabilities '

Net Assets Held in Trust for Pension Benefits and Other Purposes

$

1

. Richmosd~ .

Other Employee

EXHIBIT L-1

—Retirément System - Benefils . Total
23,669,177 § - 3 23,669,177
8,417,020 - , 8,417,020
1,735,977 . - 1,735,977
2307099 - - 2,307,099
‘ - T L190,662 1,190,662
’ 50,670,737 42,369,987 93,040,724
51,353,495 - - 51,353,495
199,807,274 - 199,807,274
82,274,112 - - 82,274,112
34189912 ° - 34,189,912
25,909,354 - 25,909,354
38,047,767 - 38,047,767 .
482,252,651 42,369,987 - 524,622,638
518,381,924 43,560,649 - 561,942,573
1,065,235- - " 1,065,235
38,047,767 - - 38,047,767
- 2,561,080 - 2,561,080 .
10,912,937 - 10,912,937
52,587,019 - 52,587,019
$ 465794905 8 43560649 § 509,355,554




| . . ) L ‘ - R[CHMOND

‘ ' : ‘ ' c : : . . " EXHIBITL2
. CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA .

- o ’ . COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS + °
FIDUCIARY FUNDS o
. For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2!]05 ) T

i d

I . ’ . B ’ " Richmood * Other Employee

. . Retirement System Benefits Total
Additions: . ! " N . ‘
Contributions:; . E . L. co , o . .
City of Richmond ' ; . ' $ 21,944,739 § 4265411 §$ 26,210,150 .
Richmond Behavioral Health Authonty ) » 041,879 . - 1,041,879,
Richmond Public Schuols ) . 41,533 1 . - [ 341,533
Plan idembers. - T 1,372414° - © 1,372,414
. Investment Income: - . ’ .
Appreciation in fair value of investments 38,811,802 .- 38,811,802 .
.o s Interest . . o L+ 8,403,217 “ , 2,095,301 10,498,518
' Dividends . ’ o 3,841,394 51,994 3,893,388
Net Income Eamed On Securities Lendmg Transa.ctmns - ) , - .
Secutities Lending Income N ) . - -t 760,698 R 760,598
Securities Lending Expense ) . ' ' . (732.114) it (732,114) N
Tatal Net Income Eamned on Securities Lending Transactions - 28,584 - . 28,584
’ Invesiment Income -, L o ‘ 51,084,997 2,147,295 33,232,292
Less Investment Expense - ‘ . . ' - 2,561,080 - - 2,561,080"
Net Investment Income - . 48523017 2,147,295 50671212
Total additions P -, T . 73,224,482 6412706 . . 79,637,188
Deductions: v ’ )
' .~ Benefits - . - L e 47,394,595 ' 3,478,480 50,873,075
- Administrative Expenses \ . ) 968,835 10,265 - 979,100
) Total deductions : . . 48,363,430 3,488,745 51,852,175
Net Increase l ’ ! i ‘ 24,861,052 2,923,9jﬁl ’ 27,785,013
Net Assets Held In Trust For Peusnon Benefi ts and Other Purposes - Beginning ot‘ Year . - 440,933,853 40,636,688 . 431,570,541 -
. Net Assets Held In Trust For Pension Benefits and Other Purposes - End of Year ' 5 465,794,905 * §. . 43,560,649 § 509,355,554
! h ' r ! % .
¥ ' N
i H ) i ! ‘\
, .
L L
o
‘ N

o ) : 7 ‘ v - 119 : ' . :



"Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable

Refundable Deposits *
Due-to Various Agents

Total Liabilities

Cash and Cash Equivalents

EXHIBITL-3

CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA .

. ~AGENCY FUNDS . !

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
For the Fiscal Year Jll.me 30, 2005

Balance s . ' . " Balance
Jaly L, 2004 _ Addiions " Deletians June 30, 2005
$ 1256098 § 7817980 '3 1567303 § 1,506,775
$ 1,256,008 - § 7817080 § ' 7,567,303 § 1,506,775 -
) 30,108 107,992 w005 - . 107992
. . . 393,148 oL 730,354 699,595 423,907
L. 832,845 6958425 6816304 -, 974.876.
£ 1,256,098 § . 16T % 7;546.094 5 1,506,775
g
1 Al

M
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* ‘subjects are not liable to any general tax except the Clty fax,

~CITY'OF RTCHMON]) VIRGINIA‘ ' ,
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICAL DATA ' .
‘June 30, 2005 o s

" DATE OF IN’C(_)"RPORA_TION

thhmond wds founded by Wllham Byrd in 1737 estabhshed as a town in May 1742 ,and 1ncorporated as.a
Clty on July 19 1782. _ ! S . .

' 1

S AREA OF CITY.
The area of the City consists’ of 62 535 square miles.

o POPULATTON

" United States Census- 19900 203056
United States Census 2000 ... Vet 197,790

. United States Census 2004 O 192,494,

. " Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, .S, Census Bureais,’

. FORM OF GOVERNMENT

Richmond is orgamzed under the Mayoral—Councﬂ form of government The mayoral form consists of a City
Mayor, elected at-large; and a City Council which serves as the ‘municipality's legislative body. The Council is
composed of nine' members elected on a single member district basis. The Vlce-Mayor and Assistant. Mayor are

-chosen by a majority vote of all members of Council from their ‘own members. The Mayor appoints, ‘with the

consensus of council, a Chiéf Administrative Officer to act as the chief admmtstrator of the City. He serves at the

pleasure of the City- Mayor carries out the City’s adm1mstrat1ve and policy-related duties, directs business
procedures and has the power of appointment and removal of the heads.of all administrative departments as well'as,
other officers and employees of the administration. By. doing so, the City benefits from professional management; -

allowing the Ctty Mayor and City Council to focus greater attentlon on pohcy development and pohtlcal leadership *

roles

fl

SEGREGATION OF TAXABLE SUBJ ECTS FOR LOCAL TAXATION ONLY

By an Act of the: General Assembly of V1rgm1a approved March 31, 1926, all real €state, tangible personal
property, and machinery used'for manufacturing and mlnmg purposes, were segregated to the Clty, and - these

" During the year 1926, the Commonwealth of Vtrgmta turned over to the Ctty the state tax rate of 25 cents per -
$ 100 of valuatlon on real estate.and tangible personal property then ex1st1ng .

¢ -

ASSESSMENTS

The Clty Assessor of Real Estate assesses real-estate annually at “fair market value”. This "v'alltie is currently -
esttrnated to be 98% of recorded sales. : : )

i



‘
L

Areas vaults marquees gasohne tanks, electrlc wires and condurts on, above and under public property are

" “assessed by the City Assessor of Real Estate, as certified to the Assessor by the Department of Public Works since
taxes on these subjects are lneluded in the real estate tax bill.’

' Spec1al assessments for s1dewalk anid alley paving, demolition of unsafe structures; and lot clearance, if not
pa1d during the:current year are added to the real estate tax b111 of the ensuing year and bef:Ome a hen upon the

property.

The Dlrector of Finance as required by’ the’ State Code assesses tanglble persanal property and machmery and e

. tools in manufactunng and mlntng The City prorates personal property\taxes on a monthly. basm

ran . PR )

. o - ’ TAX RATES N

N

RealEstate S y S e K L
® 3l 33 per $100 of Assessed Value: 2005 - J
® 31. 37955 per $100 of Assessed Value: 2003 2004
* 1. 38975 per $100 of Assessed Value: 2002 . ,
) .. $1.410 pér $100 ofAssessed Value: 2001 - - o ' S .
. o * $1.f130 per $100 of Assessed Value: 1997 - 2060 - '

®  $1.445 per $100 of Assessed Value: 1994 - 1996 -

. Tangible.Personal Property: : . : s : S o .
. o *$3.70 per $100 of Assessed Value: 1992 - 2005 o L
. $3.65par $100 of Assossed Valuc: 1990 - 1991 |
®  $3.50 per $100 of Assessed Value: 1988 — 1989

Machinery and Tools Used 't‘or Manufacturing and Minifig:- l' ‘
‘e 5230 per $100 of Assessed Value: 1992-2005 ©
® " $2.10 per $100 of Assessed Values 1991
. $200 per $100 of Assessed Value: 1990 . '
. ‘.$1.‘90 per $lb0\6f Assessed Value: 1988 — 1989 - o

\ R . . . . . ;
i

Utility Consumers " Tax:

e Monthly Resrdentlal Blllmg

> Electricity— $1.40 plus .015116 per kllowatt-hour and the amount ‘of tax shall not exceed $4. 00 per '

"+ "month.

.

» Gas - $1.78 plus .010091 per 100 ‘CCF delivered per month and the amount of tax-shall not exceed
: $4.00 per month. - b

» Telephone - 25% of first $20; no tax on amou.nt over $20 )
» Competitive Telephone — 4% of the ﬁrst $625, 5% of excess of $625 .

122



Business, Professi()nal and Occupational Licenses:

. Month]y Commerelal and Industnal Brllmg

> Commerclal Metered Electrrcrty- $2.75 pluis 016462 per kllowatt hour (kWh) first 8, 945 and 002160

" per kWh in excess of 8,945 kWh.

»
) kWh in excess of 1,232 kWh.
» Commercial Gas - $2.88 plus-$.01739027 per CCF delivered (small volume)
‘> Commercial Gas- $ 24.00 plus $.07163081 per CCF, delivered (large volume),
¥ Industrial Metered Gas- $ 120.00 plus $.0011 835 per CCF. dehvered
» Commercral Telephone 25% of first $625 5% of excess of $625 _ A »
® Electric Utility Consumptlon Tax: . | A I BN R

"

. » Less thah 2,500 kWh pert month 00038 per kWh
- » Excess of 2,501 kWh per month but not.in excess of 50 ,000 kWh per month 00024 per kWh
>  All excess of 50,000 kWh per month 00018 per kWh !

- Y

For Busmess with Gross Recerpts Exceeding Threshold

L Wholesa]e Merchants o '

N

$.22per$100'o‘f‘grosspur'chases_ R ‘ - L -

® ' Relail Merchants
$.20 per $100 of gross receipts

® Professional Occupations
$.58 per $100 of gross receipts

-

®  Contractors - o , R ) ‘
$.19 per $100 gross contracts and/or 1.50% of fees from contracts on a fee basis

®  Personal Service Contracfs o
- $.36 per $100 £r08s receipts | oo
. Threshold '
" Receipts less than $5,000, no tax, no $30 fee
Receipts greater than $5 000 less than $100,000, $30 fee only
Recelpts greater than $1 00 000, rate per merchant classification multlplled by amount of recerpts

/ Motor Vehlcle chense

J

. Prrvate passengervehrcles $23 on4000 Ibs. orless $28 0n4001 Ibs. ormore L - o

L Trucks Rates graduated n accordance with gross weight; mmlmum rate 524, maxrmum rate $250

PR

Admission Tax:

+
]

® A tax of 7% of ady charge for admission of a place of amusement or entertainment where such. charge is
$.50 or more - . ) . _ .

123

Industrial Metered Electticity- $2.75 plus 01 19521 per kllowatt-hour (kWh) first 1,232, 001837 per
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" Bank Franchise Tax: ~

® .80 on each $100 of value of bank stock . ) o o X

Sales and Use Tax; -

® - 3 1/2% State and 1% L'ocalq

‘ "Prepared Meals Tax:

'® A tax of 6% on prepared meals sold in the City in addition to the Saies Tax, effective J anuary 1, 2004. The
1% increase from the prior meals tax is deposited into a Spectal Revenue Fund for 'the development of a
e downtown performing arts center. :

Lodging TaX'

® Ataxof8%of the charge made for each room rénted by 4 transient in a hotel or motel

® 100% of the Clty 8 tran51ent lodging tax revenue is allocated to. the Greater Richmond Conventlon Center -

Authonty

" Cable TV Tax:

e A tax of 5% of the charge made for Cable TV services

TAXES DUE

, Real estate taxes are assessed. as of the first day of Januaty.of each year. The full tax bill must be pald on or
before June 15th to avoid penalty and interest. If pald thereafter a 10% penalty and interest at the rate of 10% per
annum is added. .

Personal property taxes are assessed as of the first day of January of each year. Personal property. taxes on
- motor vehicles are prorated on a monthly basis for vehicles acquiring taxable situs in the City after Janpary 1.

K -

:

. DELINQUENT TAXES

Real estate taxes are reported as dehuquent on June 16th of the tax year for which assessed Personal property
taxes are reported as dehnquent on May 2nd of the tax year for which assessed-or 61 days after acqumng taxable

situs. A penalty of 10% 18’ added to.all delinquent taxes. Interest at the rate of 10% per annum is added to the

delinquent tax.

OVERLAPPIN G AREAS AND DEBT

-

+ The City of Rlchmond is autonomous and entirely 1ndependent of any county or any other pohtrca] subdivision :

of the state, being a separate and distinct polmcal unit, '

It is not coterminous w1th ‘nor sub_]ect to any county or school district taxatton and is not liable for any
_ Indebtedness other than its own. It has the power to levy taxes on all real estate and tanglble personal property
without limitation of rate or amount : .

“
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+ " CITYINDEBTEDNESS . -

"All mdebtedness of the Clty with the. exceptlon of the Enterpnse Fund’s revenue and refundmg bonds are a

direct obligation, and the full fa1th and- credlt of the City'is pledged for the payment of a]l its. obhganons

'

Entelpnse Funds' and Intemal Serv1ce ‘Funds pay the prmC1paI and mterest ‘on certam debt (general obllgatlon
- 'bonds, revenue and refundlng bonds and serial equipment notes), 1ssued for the program purposes of each fund,
from user fees. ‘All other:debt redemptlon and interest requ1rements are. approprlated in the General Fund budget
. No long-term bonds are sold 1o ﬁnance current operattons . . -

There are neither speclal assessments nor special fevenue bonds 1ssued or outstandmg *

Bonds of the City are legal investments for savmgs banks and trust funds i in New York

DEBTMANAGEMENT POLICIES o " s

" The’ Clty Councll adopted a resolutlon in 1989 that was amended in 1991 estabhshmg guldelmes for the

. planmng, 1ssuance and management .of debt, for and on behalf of, the. City-of Rlchmond The C1ty will-issue debt

for the purpose of acqumng or constricting capltal ‘projécts’ and for: making- maJor renovatlons o ex1st1ng capital
pl’OjeCtS 1t is the. pohcy of the Clty to provrde operating funds to the extent possxble for pl’O_]eCtS that are perenmal ]
and/or pnmanly of an on- gomg mamtenance type activity. T *

General Obllgatlon Debt

v

r
1

It is the pollcy of the, Clty that general fund supported debt 1nclud1ng bonds authorlzed and umssued wrll be

llmxted by any one of:the followmg

.
» . fund.budget. . .o

4 :

v Y

The amount requlred for general obhgatlon bond debt serv1ce Wlll not exceed 10% of the tota] general

Per capita general fund supported debt willhnot exceed 7% of per capital income;

| B
L.

The City will not incur geﬁ’eral obligation debt in excess of 7{.5‘% of its total taxable real estate value. -

To the extent that general obl1gatlon issued and authofized deb‘t.‘does not exceed: 7.5% of the total

- assessed valuatlon of the City; the general obhgatlon authorlty may be used for enterprise fund capital

projects. When.the ‘general obligation authority, is used in'lieu of revenué bonds, coverage will be- -

« maintdined and provisions 'of capltahzed interest w111 be met as though the bonds arc’ on a panty basis -
with the outstandmg revenue bonds e - B ‘: ' . .

-

The City will issue general fund supported debt wrth an: average hfe that'is cons1stent w1th the useful‘
life of the prOJect with a maximum of matunty of 30 years

'
P

. General ‘Fund supported debt w111 be-structured. in a manner such that not less than 60% of" the .
1outstand1ng debt w1ll be rettred w1th1n 10 years - - ;

s
. ' - *
= R , .
f -

FUND BALANCE POLICY

4 -
N

The C1ty Council adopted a Fund Balance Pohcy on March 14, 1988 whlch established major pohcy goals On -

October 26, 1992 the C1ty Councrl amended the Fund Balance Pohcy, raising the requlred level of the undesrgnated .

.\'.



‘fund balance from 3% to 5% of budgeted General Fund expendltures over a penod of years Implementatlon of the
increased. fund balance goal-began July 1, 1993. On November 26, 2001 the City Council approved a further
* . increase of the required level of unde51gnated fund balanceto 7% of budgeted Géneral Fund expendltures The
Fund Balance Pohcy states ! . -

1

'

> The City Mayor will prepare and adrmmster General Fund budgets that wil] prov1de operatlng -
surpluses-‘on one-half of one. percent of expenditures until .the Undemgnated Fund Balance téaches at -
least-7% of budgeted expend:tures As of June 30, 2005, the Undemgnated Fund Balance was $39 0

T mllllon which is-7.0% of budgeted General Fund expendltures

5

tGeneral Fund budget Lo ' ' o Do

subsequent to the accumulation of the 7% Undesignated Fund Balance, and then only if faced w1th an
" +. unusual; unanuupated and otherwxse seemmgly insurmountable: hardshlp

-
- .

126

> The City “Council, in ddoption of a General Fund budget, wal prov1de that General Fund budget-
- operating “surpluses- be ho less than those recommended by the City Mayor in the subrmssmn of the:

» The Clty w1lI not appropnate any amount from the. Undesxgnated Fund Balance untll at- least one year. .
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. CITY. OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA . . - ‘ s _' . - .
L NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT | o . . ,
Lo Last Four Fiscal Years” o ' '
. . (accrual basis of accounting) ! ‘
i! i t l oo ’. . k ) Fiscal Year i } -
P Governmental Activities - ' ’ 7 a
‘,—: Invested In Capital Assets, Net of Related [}cbt . $ 204,892,717 §$ 199,865,572 $ 191,556,995 § 198,513,944 -
| Restricted . . © 25,2815 l'ﬁ 46,983,399 68,923,046 50,038,794 :
i Unrestricted ‘ S 48,463,377 31,375,839 (10,050,293 40670738 . . .
. Total Governmental Activities Net Assets $ 278,637,610 § 278224810 § 250429748 § 289223476 -
__ Business-type Activities . : - T e - . '
P Invested In Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt $ 242713267 § -280.898,657 § 274968276 $ 277,073,800
e Restricted 52,581,970 - 49,509,466 8,650,941 40,067,236
. Unirestricted o 44,673,232 ° 21,266.273 ' (_59,315,730 43,272,098
oy ) . Total Business-type Activitie‘s Net Assets i $ 339968469 3 351674396 $ 352,934,947 $§ 360,413,134 !
— Primary Government . - . .
- Invested In Capital Assets, Netof Related Debt | § 447,605,984 § 480,764,229 § 466,525,271 § 475,587,744
‘ ' © Restricted . . - 77,863,'}486‘ 96,492,865 , 77,573,987 90;106,039 - -
1. A Unrestrif:ted ' ' 0 93_,136,609 - 52,642,112 59,265,437 ., 83,942,836
. TotaliPiimary.GovemmentActivitics,NetAssets ‘ . 8618606079 38 629,899,206 « § 603,364,695 $ 649,636,610 ,

- "Last i"(;ur Years: i
The City of Richmond reports Statisiical Information for the Last Four Years, due to the availability of data.

! : - W
\ - A
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Expenses

' Governmental Activitigs;
General Government
Public Safety and Judiciary

Highways, Sireets, Sanitation and Refuse

Human Services |

Culture and Recreation -

Education ’

Transportation

Interest and Fiscal Changes'

Extraordinary, Item' )
Total Governmental Activities Expenses -

Business-type Activities: -
Gas o
Water -
Wastewater:

Coliseum
Landmark Theatre
Cemeteries

Total Business-type Activities Expenses
Total Primary Govemment Expenses -
Program Revenues f
Governmental Activities:
‘Charges for Servic'es:
, General Government
Culture and Recreation
Other Activities
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions

Total Governmental Activities Program Revenues

Business-type Activities:
* Charges for Services: -
' Gas " *
Water
Wastewater
Coliseum
Landmark Theatre
Cemeteries: ‘
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions

“Total Business-type Activities Program Revenues
Total Primary Government Program Revenues

Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental Activities
Business-type Activities

 Total Primary Government Net Expensé

i

CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA

. CHANGES IN NET ASSETS -

Last Four Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal

Year

2002

003

v

2004

2005"

v

w

$ 78333258 S. 85220510 § 102,182,089 §  £2,897,797

139,051,357 141,560,046 147,054,040 150,077,017
' 55,742,911 76,549,273 76,654,334. 80,327,346
T 34,031,811, 89,294,156 91,316,190 .93,480,016
124,035,635 26,127,447 . 24,856,175 14,914,204
129,360,758 138,209,993 137,780,535~ 131,661,501,
" 6,276,550 6,114,308 6,699,852 6,766,376
37,139,630 35,659,959 40,538,281 42,868,983
- - 14,728,475 -~
-553,971,910 598,735,692 . 641,809,981 602,993,240
131,743,956 167,936,098 178,520,751 207,682,064
36,059,991 34,294,537 36,523,533 39,004,189
138,893,054 - 37,587,401 40115362 * 45,976,722
3,981,767 4,066,451 4,152,274 - 4,973,332
1,928,890 1,580,618 1,876,343 1,730,408
. 1,447,502 1,602,606 1,389,082 1,344,285
- 214,055,160 247,067,712 __ 262578246 _ - 300,711,000

© § 768,027,070

"§ 845,803,404

$ 903,704,240

$- 42,305,646

‘ 549,118
19,724,718
143,351,487
3,498,180

$  40,875918
663,061
20,715,420
143,710,347
.10,610,426

$ 904,388,227

$ 37,367,491
611105
27,671,318

- 133,650,110
10,516,738

-

.8 41,636,438

561,893
20,602,746
145,167,449
8,227,292

§ 209,429,149

$ 220,195,818,

$ 136,262,738

$ 216,575,172

$ 173,251,482-

$§ 209,816,762

$ 187,051,036

.

8, 221,309,436

45,309,368 Y 42,239,247 45,205,312 ° 44,853,864

. 43,881,354 44,784,105 46,317,014 48,599,478

1,454,450 2,337,854 2,358,184 2,068,567

221,204 . :318,101° 724,250 390,879

11,329,445 1,386,577 1,440,051 1,412,205

o 17,330,305 7,048,589 3,578,979 5,607,052
. 245,780,364 271,365,955 286,674,826 324,241,481

§- 455218,513 " § 487,941,127 $  496491;588 S 544437299

N

$ 344,342,761 § 382,160,520 $ -431,993,219 § 382,797,422

(31,734,204)

- (24,298,243)

(24,096,580)

- (23,530,481)

$ 312,808,557 § 357,862277 $ _ 407,896.639, § 350,266,941
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" CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA

: ] CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
L ' . _ T _: LastFour Fiscal Years . _ .
* ' (accrual basis of accounting) ’ S "
‘ . . Fiscal Year
~ General Revennes and Other Changes in Net Assets ) Lo 1‘ .
* . Govemnmental Activities: v oy )
L..: N Taxes . ° : ‘ i . co. ) 8
Taxes (In Generat) . $ 315,956,154 % -~ 5 - & - -
a Real Estate N . - 165,361,803 172,166,634 - 181,172,923
Lo i ‘Sales-1% Local : ' ) N - . 20,979,945 ' 24,067,131 " 26,302,100
[ Personal Property i ) N . - . -+ 43,200,390 41918417 . 45,091,878
Machinery-and Tools ' . T - . o 16,408,110 '« 14,831,660 © | 14,618,256
o General Utility Sales i . . ) - 33,760,985 ° 33,405,551 ‘31,124,964
' Bank Stock ‘ - 2,976,847 2,362,154 2,904,338
(- Prepared Food , ' . 13,722,642 16,078,165 16,028,093
Admissions . - 17465338 1,804,701 " 1,195,603
- Delinquent Tax Payments-All Classes’ L . - . 13,035,895 10,303,069 9,589,601
’ | anate Utlhty Poles and Conduits . - - . 93,137 93,506 - + 150,549
b Penalues and Interest ’ - 5,203,306 4,564,352 4,242 744
Titling Tax-Mobile Home - : - 10402 7324 . 16,942
i B State Recordation - ’ - - 675,810 605,153 609,343
T . Property Rental 1% . - ’ 236,383 N 158,960 . 120,684
- Vehicle Rental Tax . . : . T ~ LT9s5513 . - 868,115 J-B64,415
. ABC Board Receipts * - L. 400,770 - . -
\ Rolling Stock Tax by - 33,591 2,018,645 466,562
L . Intergovernmental Revenue Not Restncted to Spemﬁc Programs 2,309,428 112,628 ‘ 575,697 13,860,051
) ' lnvcslmenl_Ea:mngs , . 703,044 669,795 . 36@,647 . 1,501,725
. Miscellaneous o - 43,668,088 . 45,0'50,330, 47,259,923 53,846,842
7 Transfers . o , 17277420 7 17,219:836 17,993,646 21,130,671
Special tem? E _ . 638,321 " 174,264 - 773,106
Extraordinary Ttem' . ’ . SR , = 12754707 =
H ‘“. Total Governmental Activities . 380,552,455 381,747,720 404,198,157 425,611,390
Business-type Activities: ’ ’ . . CL S
Investment Eamings " ' - ’ $  .1758397- % 1855899 ‘§ 750,057 'S 1,285,313
. ‘Miscellaneous . ) - 2,839,478 T3,171,621 " 3,045,762 3,793,064 .
: - " * Transfers ' ) L(17.277.420) (17.219.,836) ) (17,993,646 « {21,130,671)
A " Total Business-type Activities . ' (12,679,545) (12,592,316) (14,197,827 - (16,052,294)
Total Primary Government l - L ’ i $ 367,872,910 ' $ 369155404 § 390,000,330 3 409,559,096
E ‘ Change in Net Assets ' ‘ '
o Govemmental Activities . $ 36,009,694 $ (412,800) $ (27 795062) § 42,813,968
- Business-type Activities ) 19,054,659 - 11,705,927 - 9,898,753 “7,478,I87
o . Total Prmary Governmient . § .55,064,353. $ 11,293,127 §  (17,896,309) § . 50,292,155
L ) . S
fht 1Extram'dmary Item' . :
i ' Fiscal Year 2004 Disaster Costs from Humcane lsabel.
- * - i)
} . - . “Special Item: '
v Fiscal Year 2002 - Gain on Sale of Land ‘
- - " Fiscal Year 2003 - Gain on Sale of La.n¢ ' T
o ‘Fiscal Year 2005 Disaster Recovcry
E ' - n L.
i CityTaxes: " * - : e

1 -Fiscal Year 2002 - There was no reqmrement o report City Taxes by category

- ‘ | o129
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CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES TAX REVENUE BY SOURCE
Last Four Fiscal ‘Years
(accrual basis of accnuntmg)

Fiscal Year

200 - 2003 . 2004

2002 2003 2004 005
City Taxes . . . ‘ ot

City Taxes (In General) % 31595615 5§ -~ § . .S -
Real Estate . Y-+ (165,361,803 172,166,634 181,172,923
Sales-1% Local . - 20,979,945 24,067,131 26,302,100
Personal Property - | o . 43,200,390 41,918,417 45,091,878
Machinery and Tools . . .- " 716,408,110 14,831,660 14,618,256
"-General Utility Sales ) CE 33,760,985 33,405,551 31,124,964
‘Bank Stock - . 2,976,847 2,362,154 - 2,904,338
Prepared Food . - T13,722,642 16,078,165 16,028,093
- Admissions . R 1,465,338 1,304,701 1,195,603
Delinguent Tax Payments-All Classes - .7 13,035,895 10,303,069 9,589,601

" Private Utility Poles and Conduits o - 93,137 . 93,506 150,549
Penaities and Interest . Y - 5,203,306 4,564,352 4,242,744
Titling Tax-Mobile Home . - 10,402 - T 1,324 16,942
State Recordation .- 675,810 . 605,153 609,343
Properiy Rental 1% ) - - 236,383 158,960 120,684
Vehicle Rental Tax - 955,513 868,115 ° 864,415
ABC Board Recelpts ' ) ‘ - 400,770 . - - -
! . Rolling Smck Tax - 33,591 - 2,018,645 466,562
Tolal Primary Government $  315956,154 $ 318,520,867 $ 325253,537 $ 334,498,995

'+ CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Last Four Fiscal Years
{modified accrual basis of accounting)

- : Fiscal Year

2002 ‘2003 . 2004 2005
General Fund tL . )
Reserved R . . ) . $ 18,597,316 $.. 21,328,801 § 14,150,287 § 22,216,671 °
Qnrcserv'ed ) 40,645,634 40,552,729 47,690,533 45,278,440
. ‘Total General Fund T '$. 50242050 $ 61881530 S 61840.820 $ 67495111 .
) All Other Govem;nental Funds . . ‘ .
Reserved - § 25281516 § 46,983,399 § 68,923,046 § 50,413,044
Unreserved, reported in: L S . , ' ' :
Special Revenue Funds 19,581,006 20,589,668 . 12,249,538 11,473,432
Capital Project Funds - y : . 34,500 34,500 -t -
Debt Seivice Fund . -- . 11,461 . 11461 . 11,461
Total All'Other_Governmemal Funds .3 44,897,112 § 67,619,028 $  B1,184,045 §. 61,897,937
City Taxes: -

Fiscal Year 2002 - There was 1o requirement to report City Taxes by category.
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‘ o o “'CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA L
P CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
?L,_ : . : Last Four Fiscal Years - -

(modified accrual basns.of'gccounting),

x

! - . . . ' _ Fiscal Year . .
: - ' 2002 - 003 " 2004 2005

. Revenues " ; .- : - ' ', . . .
. Taxes K R $ 299399915 § 306292416 ‘§ 317,204,260 § 334,498,995
s ‘ Licenses, Permits and Privilege Fees ' . 32,890,826 ' 33,259,137 T . 31,821,328 . 35,302,960
- Intergovernmental 149,159,095 154433332° 146970802 173,750,992
- Service Charges ‘ ' 16,866,068 © 17,924,528 14, 933 ]69 . 16,343,955
. Fines and Forfeitures - . 8,646,605 7,774,458 8,559,606 10,328,752
1o ‘ . . SalesofLand |, T ‘ Toooess T e - - ST
* PaymentinLiewof Taxes = . 16518950 °  -17,518465 .13,102;353 19,630,782
. Investment Income - s ot sl 703,044 669,795 365,825 1,501,725
; Miscellaneous - _ ' - '55309,546 57,211,587 72,862,719 64,264,540
N Total Revenues o e 580,132,370 - . .595,083,118 610,820,162 . 655,622,701 , .
R Expenditures ) o . L C ' s ' S
General Government - ) ‘ T 60,464,041 T 66,113,349 68,978,772 72,082,519
; " Public Safety and Judiciary ) o © 136,466,136 .- 139,318,995 145,509,707 . 151,733,584
L Highways, Streets, Sanitation and Refuse . . 44_,018,32i « 46,004,841 T 44,054,142 /54,373,540
i : Human Seryices ;o , o 81,957,017 87,637,237 89,044,511 . 00,924,428 .
L ‘' Culture and Recreation . - . . _ 21,604,557 7 22,101,310 23,539,612 < 19,628,668
) Education L o 125,669,753 128,823,925 131,762,289 129,041,941
: Non-Departmental . ' 26,410,541 23,461,527 25,153,039 26,211,317
- Capital Outlay : . c 39828063 35347332 58250207 . 43,109,262
Debt Service: . - _ ) < . Lo ‘
* Principal Retirement - . . 36,896,795 -+ ‘37,206,080 . 41473735 - 43,743,522
: Iiterest Payments " - ° : . 34,692,049 34974162 . 40,304,483 40,812,004
s " . Issuance Costs ' L . 1,054,532 ' 382904 683,283, 625,909
Total Expenditures - o ' 609,061,805 621371662 668,753,780 672,286,694
i Other Financin g Sources (Uses) _ , : ‘
Transfers In ' Lo R . 44; 620 298 47,449,811 53,904,655 r 57,680,867
- Transfers Out : : g ) (ALT99562) - (46,073,628) (51,675,655) (54,938,228)
' Proceeds from Refunding Bonds * o L 74,300,000 36,630,116 "9,300,000 -
- Payment to Escrow Agent N . (74,300,000) (36,630,116) , {9,300,000) -
‘ Issuance of Refunding Bonds . . T - ’ - g - --
[ " Redemption of Refunding Bonds . _ T - - - -
. ) Proceeds from Issuance of Bonds i . 31,845,867 50,097,993 68,297,167 3,536,671
- . Premium on Issuance of Bonds - - . -t 2,905,526 -
, Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - - 34,736,603 51,474,176 " 73,431,693 - 6279310*
l . . L " . . - ) -
L - Special Item : . ) . - N . N
. Gain on Sale of Land : s ’ 638321 - 174264 R
;o Disaster l}qcovery (FY2004 Hurricane Isabel} ' , _ - . = - 12,754,707 773,106
< ’ " Total §pecia.l Item - . ' 638,321 174,264 - 12,754,707 i . 7_-73.]06
{ .- - Extraord_inargf ltt?m T, Lo ’ I e SN : ‘.. ' E
ST ‘Disaster C;Js;s (FYZOO?HurricaﬁeIsaberl) S ) : i - - (14,728,475) P _ (4,020.240)
Total Extraordinary Item Lo - _(14,728,475) (4,020,240
N Net Changg in Fund Balances - , - i $ ' 6445489 § 25360496 $ 13524307 §  (13,6318I!7)
. Debt Service as a Percentage of Noncapital Expenditures 1% s 14.6%. 12.3% 12.7%
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CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE
-Last Four Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)
Fiscal Year
2002 2003 2004 2005
Real Estate $ 151,824,518 § 159,003,009 § 170,251,093 $ 181,172,923
E{Ies-l% Local 22,202,874 20,123,954 24,067,131 26,302,100
Personal Property 42,133,029 41,488,407 41,918,417 45,091,878
Machinery and Tools 17,010,104 15,674,402 14,831,660 14,618,256
General Utility Sales 32,439,687 32,415,856 30,272,507 31,124 964
Bank Stock 5,161,545 2,854,562 2,362,154 2,904,338
Prepared Food 13,294,593 13,111,219 14,548,707 16,028,093
Admission 1,391,847 1,465,338 1,804,701 1,195,603
Delinquent Tax Payments-All Classes 7,956,401 12,546,757 10,303,069 9,589,601
Private Utility Poles and Conduits 91,538 93.137 93,506 150,549
Penalties and Interest 4,450,781 5,203,306 4,564,352 4,242,744
Titling Tax-Mobile Home 10,345 10,402 7324 16,942
State Recordation 702,350 675,810 605,153 609,343
Property Rental 1% - 236,383 158,960 120,684
g Vehicle Rental Tax 730,303 955,513 B68,115 864,415
(O8] ABC Board Receipts - 400,770 - -
L Rolling Stock Tax l 33,591 s =
Telephone Commissions - - 547411 466,562
Total General Governmental Tax Revenues $ 299,399915 § 306,292,416 % 317,204,260 $ 334,498,995
CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
Last Four Fiscal Years
Real Property Less: Total Taxable Total Direct Estimated Assessed Value
Calendar Residential Commercial Personal Tax Exempt Assessed Tax Actual Taxable as a Percentage
Year Property Property Property Machinery Real Property Value Rate Value of Actual Value
2002 $  11,179941.738 % - 8 1,507,088,801 $ 790,901,800 $ 2,892,351,707 $ 10,585,580,632 § 2389 % 13,477,932.339 100.00%
2003 7,396,450,777 5,255,385,160 1,393,327,487 678,581,056 3,103,519,875 11,620,224,605 2.382 14,723,744 480 100.00%
2004 7.930,422,754 5.304,286,640 1,172,806,822 631,645,652 3,344 887,395 11,694,274,473 2.380 15,039,161,868 100.00%
2005 9,448,941,200 5.630,282,151 1,330,154,149 670,556,827 3,661,451,800 13,418,482,527 2371 17,079,934,327 100.00%
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[
“Philip Morris, Inc. & Philip Morris, USA
-Boston Properties :

Sun Trust Banks, Ioc.
Chip[:;énham Hospital, Ine. | s
Stony Point Fashion-Park Assoc, ’
Orton Val T Trustee
i ) Federal Reserve Bank of Rickmond
Ethyl Corporation .

One James Center Associates

First States Investors 3500 LLC

Two James Center Associates

American Retirement Cor;;. ’

AH Robias R

Richmond Power Plant LLC

AAPOP,LLP L.

Alleghany Warehouse Co., Inc,

Historic Hoters LLC

Eighth & Main LP

Highwoods Forsyth LP

S J,W Limited Partnership

Omni Center Corporation

Richmord Center Associates

PRVANILP

Walker Maggie L. Governor's

Lowes Home Centers, Inc.

Stoney Point Associates LLC

Dominion Resources, Inc.,

SCDHC-Southwoad, LLC “

CRIT-YA, Inc.

Total of Taxpayer

All Other Propenties |

Totals

CITY.OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS

- & 15,079,233,35]

134

100.00%

2005 Assessed Values as of January 1, 2005
2005 2004 -
Percentage of - Percentage of
Taxable ., Total Taxable ’ R Taxable Total Taxable .
Assessed Valiie Assessed Valne Rank Absessed Vilue Assessed Valug Rank
$ 244,695,700 T 1.62% 1 ‘s 228,442,600 ' 1.72% 1
165,500,000 R 2. 176,400,000 1.33%" 2
156,817,100 1.04% 3 ) - 156,225,200 . 1.18% 3
98,341,000 0.65% 4 92,258,400 0.70% 5
- 86,500,000 0.57% 5 wa . .o wa
82,051,000 0.54% 6 - 76,118,500 7 0.57% 6
74,000,000 0.49% 7 (152,445,900 (L15% L4
64,836,600 0.43% g 62,097,600 047% 8
64100000 - 0.43% 9 . © 64,760,000 - 0A%% 7
63,082,697 0.42% 10 55,120,000 0.42% 9
47,000,600 0.31% um ’ 52,120,000 0.39% 10
44,772,400 0.30% 12 - : 42,163,900' 032% 14
41,216,500 0.27%. 13 t 40,639,200 031% 15
40,000,000 S 027% 14 T owa T na -
© 39,500,000 0226% 157 37,142,800 "028% 16
37,087,800 025% 16" . 36.265,600 027% 17°
saazboo - o2 . " 26,838,000 ‘020% 21~
32,005,000 0:21% 18 - ©. 33,032,600 025% 18
30,200,000 0.20% 19 46,092,000 035% 12
30,701,800 - 0.20% 20 C . 129,856,000 023% - 19
28,880,000 0.19% I 25,750,000 0.19% 2
< +27,576,700 0.18% 2 ) 29,394,000 022% 20
23,150,000 0.15% N . nfa . 'na. wa
23,045,000 0.15% 24 na " e A
21,262,300 -0.14% 25 - oo YU n/a wa
D/ nfa Wi 50,400,000 0.38% 1
na . ma ‘wa - 46,089,000 0.35% 13
wia nia wa 24,396,300 0.19% .23
" nia i nfa wa 24,337,100 "0.18% 24
S 1,601,241,597 10.62% 1,608,944,700 12,14%
’ 13,477.991,754 89.38%" " 11,649,512,694 87.86%
100.00% .8 13258457354



- CITY OF 'RICHMON-D, VIRGINIA-

. PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
’ _As of June 30,2005 -
- ' 2005 2004
! Approximate Percentage of . Approxirr;ale Percentage of
Number of Principal . Number of Princlpal
"Emplover -. Emplovees Employment Rank Emplovees Emplovment Renk
Commenwealth of Virginia 25,084 9.06% 1 19,200 14.12% 1
Fedesal Government o , 15,300 5:53% 2 . 15,100 5.44% 2
Chesterfield County : ' 10,194 368% 3 "9,995 3.60% 3
Henrico County . 9,525 3.34% 4 9484 . 3.42% 4
Richmond City 8879 321% 5 8,761 3.16%- 6
Capital One Financial Corp. 7,346 2.65% 6 9,018 325% 5
HCA,Inc. . ‘ ; 65707 237% 7 6,454 232% ‘8
Virginia Commenwealth University Health System 6,549 2.3% s §,216° i 2.24% T 9
. Philip Moris, USA ' 6,450 233% 9 6462 ' 233% 7
Wal-mart Stores, Inc. 5,600 2,02% 10 . 5804 2.09% L
Wachovia Corporation . 5350 .193% u . - 4,521 " 1.63% i
Dominion Resources, Inc. . 5026 1.82% 12 : , 3,804 1.37% 13
+Bon Secours Richmond Health System 4,325 L.56% 13 v "L 4,044 1.46% 12
Hanover County ' " 3,760 1.36% - 14 3,584 *1.29% 15,
“Ukrop's Super Markets, Iné. T ' 1719 134% 15 C 386 131% 14
Sun Trust Banks, Inc, . 3418 1.23% 16 3,498 _ 1.26% 16
DuPont . 3,100 1.12% 17 3,190 115% 17
‘Bank of America Corporation, 3,100 112% s 2717 . 098% 20
‘WellPoint, Irc. (was Anthem, Inc.) 2,981 1.08% 19 S0 . L 18
. * Verizon Virginia, Inc. o ’ - . 2,700 0.98% 20' 2,550 ¢ U092% a’
Circuit City Stores, Inc. . 2,388 0.86% ) 2r 3,072 L11% 19
Infineon Techuologies Richmond ; 2,056 0.74% T 22 1,755 0.63% 24"
- Delhaize America ( Food Lion). 2,050 0.74% 23 2,000° 0.72% 22
Petersburg City 1,678 0.61%. 24 oA nfa nfa”
Honeywell International Ing, . 1,568 0.57% . 23 1,503 0.69% .23
Alcoa, Ing; . ) . ; na wa. L663 "> 0.60% .25
" Tatat of Principal Employers © 148,925 53,73% ! - 161 ,_SSl 58.19%
Other Principal Employers' 128,060 46.27% 116,056 41.81%
Totals ’ 276785 100.06% -. 272607 100.00%

1

A

Other Principal Employers: These numbers r'épresent the nmm;nt and percentage of the rcmainix‘lg top 50 employers for the citizens within the Ciry of Richmond. '

135



~

. CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA :
REAL ESTATE TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
. Last Four Years

Current Tax Collections'

! ‘Deling . - Total Tax Collections .

Tax Year Tax Rate Total Tax Levy Amognt - Percentage of Levy Tax Collections? Amount | Percentage of Levy
2002 ' l 1.39 2 . 162359912 % 153,719,367 94.7% $ 5221188 § 158,941,055 97.9%
2003 18 175,100,400 - 165,330,253 944% ' 9,498,935 ¢ 174,829,188 " 99.8%
2004 1.38, . . 184,806,582 179,024,489 96.9% ° 7,715,852 186,740,341+ 7 E‘ULU%
2005 . 1.33 . , 201,274,826 ]9I,E39.2_B5 . 95.3% N 7,619,922 199,459,187 '99.1%

CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
_ PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
« Last Four Years R

. X . -
3 -
. . b .
J v - v

ra ‘

.o Currerit Tax Collections’ Delinguent Total Tax Collections to Date
Tax Year . Tax Rate Total Tax Levy | Amount’ Percentage of Levy Tax Collections® Amount Percentage of Levy
2002 ' . 3.70 N 49,798,693 S T 42,133,029 B4.6% s . A985632 % 47,118,661 ,94.6% -
2003 . 3,70 45,967,435 41,662,589 . 90.6% . - + 3,504,544 45,167,133 98.3%
2004 ' 3.70 43,892,886 . 42,080,193 B9% -+ ' 2,596,456 44,676,649 " 101.8%
2005 B 3.70 43,410,392 ) 43,739,697 1008% ) 3,326,636 T 47,066,333 . 108 4%

Current Tax Collections'; These columns replesenl the amount and percentage on the tax levy wnhm the respective tax year reportmg pedod.”
Delmqnent Tax Collections’: This column represents delmqucm taxes collected within the rcspecuve réporting peried. s
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" CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
' RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
: Last Four Fiscal Years '

.Governmemal Activities ’ : Business-Type Activities N

- General Virginia Public General Certificates of General ’ Percentage of )
Fiscal Obllgation ~  School Authorley Obligation HUD Section Participation Obligation Revenue Total Primary Personal
Year Bonds . Bonds - Notes 108 Notes Series 200HA Boiids Bonds Government Income Per Capita

" 2002 $ 353,531,356 § 3836492 F° 12,850,000 § 6475000 § 18840000 § 285,968,639 % 264,061,851 § 945,563,338 14.92% ] 4,810

2003 176,693,205 3483946 5200000 | * 6,765,000 18,840,000 278,982,829 260,504,754 950,559,734 15:13% ; 4,881
2004 418,075,715 3,?63 521 1,820,600 6,125,060 18,225,000 270,503,062 256,891,626 974,903,984 15.50% 5,065
2005 7 392,957,068 3042389 7,000,000 5,595,000 - 17,585,000 " 259,195,982 320,815,598 1,006,191,037 N/A N/A

, CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
- - . RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
) Last Four Fiscal Years

. ) Percentage of
o General . Virginia Public General Lo Certificates of : Estimated Actual

Flscal Obligation School Authority Obllgation * . HUD Section Participation N . . Taxable Vilue of . ) . -
Year Bonds Bonds Notess = 108Nates ~ Series 2001A Totdl Property Per Capita )
2002 . § 353,531,356 3 3836492 § 12850000 § 6475000 $ 8840000 § 395,532,848 374% $ 2,012 .

2003 . 376,693,205 3,483,946 5,290,000 6,765,000 18,840,000 411,072,151, 3.54% ‘ 2,111

2004 418,075,775 3,263,521 1,820,000 6,125,000 - 18,225,0000 447,509.296 383% - 2325

2005. -~ 392,957,068 3,042,389 7,000,000 5,595,000 17,585,000 426,179,457 3.18% - N/A

‘ - -~




Debt Margin ’
Total net applicable to [imit

Legal Débt Margin

Total et debt applicable to the limit as a

.percentage of debt limit

CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION

Last Four Fiscal Years. ,

4

Fiscal Year .
. 2002 2003 2004 2005 N
$ 1,117,994,174 - 3 1,196,677,008 % 1,325,845,739 " & 1,507,923,335
681,368,153 - 689,578,088 738.231,520 685,384,668 -
8- © 436,626,021 S 507,098.920 $ 587,614,219 S 822,538,667 ' R

60:95% 57.62% 55.68% o 45.45%

. Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2005 ) T
/’g:ssess'ed Value (Taxable) $  15,079,233,351 LT
Debt limit (10% of total ssésscd value) 1,507923,335 . y
Debt applicable to limit: ’ . '

General Obligation Bonds 685,384,668 .
¢ Legal Debt Margin ‘ 3 822,538,667 -
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. ’ ! v
o CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA ,
- PLEDGED-REVENUE COVERAGE, | . oo
. : . oo Last Four Years ' : s . "y 5
. Less: Net Revenue . ! ! ’ ) 1
Fiseal " Gross Lt Direct Operating Available for . . -liether\;IceRequiremenls L '
Year - Revenve Expenses * Debt Service Principal - Interest. . | Total Coverage -
2002 5 - 222445000 § 174,450,000 § ‘47,996:000 3 11625000 § 19,252,000 $ 30,877,600 . 135
2003 ' 257,454,000 _ 199,971,000 57,483,000 18,358,000 20,795,000 39,153,000 147
' "R " 280,923,000 26656000 0 64,267,000 ‘ 18,456,000 20606000 39,062,000 165
’ 2005 v 318,975,000 =, 252,034,000 . 66,941,000 v 22,143,000 . 25,151 000 47,294,000 1,42
L - ) . CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA - , .
) L. ' o ' - DEMOGRAPHIC AND: ECONOMIC STAT]STICS B ' .
) B : Last Four Years
N Personat Income .Per Capita ) . Ciy ‘State
Fiscal .. (A_mofmts expressed Personal Median School Unemplu) ment Unemployment
Year Pnnlfl-atinnm‘ in thousands) Income™ Age Enroftment™ ‘ u Rate™
.owez 1965717 " $ ' 6336859 § nxwn C . 363 26,284 62% 41%
2003 R 194,729 6,283,515 - 32,268 37.5 26,136 6.5% L 41%
- 2004 : 192494 6,289,934 32,676 . 36.7 . 25,545 6% . "3.6%.
2005 . NA A NA "wa 25,054 NA NA
(1) Source: U, S Ce'nsus Burf:au Populallun Eshmat:s ngmm C : Teox . . ) . T ' i :
2) Source. us. Depanment of Coinmerce, ECDHOmlC and Statistics Admlmstrauon, Bureau of Economic Analys:s

[&)] Source.
{4) Source:

The Schoal Board of the City of R.lchmund, Virginia, Avmge Dally Mcmbﬂshlp at Seplember 30.
Virginia Emp]oymcm Comxmss:on & UL.S. Department of Labor, Burean of Labor Slausu::s, as of June 2004
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CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION

Last Four Flscal Years

Fiscal Year

Function )
N Governmental Actiyiﬁes: ) .
General Government 531
Public Safiey and Judiciary R . '
Police . ' ’ 809
Firefighters and Officers 399
Others e 537
Highways, Streets, Sanitation and Refuse .
+ Engineering & Maintenance 548 . .
Human Setvices . e
Human Services Advocacy | . 22
Social Services . 483
Public Health. 102
Culture and Recreation p 313
Transportation = . . o T
) " Business-type Activities: b ' i
Gas Utiliy - e 347
Water Utility : . . - 88
" Wastewater Utility. ' . . 101
Electric Utility . 221
Stores and Transportation Division : 14
Coliseom ‘ -
Lahdmark Thehtre - o "9
Cemeteries 15
Total . B . -4371 L

140

00

3

553

793

241

652

540

28

465

004 2005 -
554 583
846"

416 423
671 690
521 ‘532
21 37
461 - 466
104, S
247 266
8 T
314 304
90 81
t 98 90
19 18
14
25 25

. 7 7

18 18
*4.434 4577

05

13, -
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. CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA °

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION

anction
Govemmental Activities:
I_’olice '
Physical Arrests
. Parking Violations
Traffic Violations
- Fire - ,
Number of calls answered i
- Inspections
Highways and Streets
Street resurfacing (miles) -
- Potholes repaired
Sanitation and Refuse
- Refuse collected (tons/day)
", - Recyélables collected (tons/day)
, Culture and Recreation -
Parks permits issued '
Business:type Activities:

Gas oo .
Maximum daily sendout (MCF)
Annual Sendsut (MCF)

Water T :

. Average daily consumptions (MGD)
Maximum'daily consumptions (MCD)
Water in Storage (gellons) ‘

Wastewater .

" Average daily sewage treatment (MGD)
Maximum daily sewage treatment {MGD)

Coliseurn -
Average daily attendance per activity )
Average daily number of events

Landmark Theatre
Total tickets sold for all activities
Total attendances for all activities

‘Cemeteries o

" Number of interments
Number of lot sales
Number of single grave sales
‘Nuber of foundations

Pl

" Last Four Fiscal Years =

_Fiscal Year

002

13,924 .
116,050
- 27657

26,222

2,142

J 141
7,691

.

317 -

40.6

sT9

124,752
16,718,496

" 84.9
1272
25,000,000 .

45.8
79.5

997
"0.30

N/A °
N/A

1,067
©36
635
793

-

142

; 2003 2004,
. 14252 . 15911 -
L 96,079 101,813
.23,150 21,224
25:817 28,258
< 2,774 3,662
98 .82
" 14,833 12,167
317 307
40.8 39.2
505 ° 482
162,574 151,823
19,168,315 17,952,764
Y 776 88.2
1273. 104.7
25,000,000, . 25,000,000
53.7 59.8
© 783 85.0 °
ceoL L0100 7 1,013
0.35 0.37
145,296 141,726
15,773 '14,303
1,079 1,080
20 24
688" 700 -
645 649

2005

17,536
103,594
30,516

30,956
1,853

7 -
-21,011
N/A

. 383

539°

163,129
18,500,224 ~

. 748
94.8
25,000,000.
64.0
85.0

883
033 .
129,598
11,349

1,050
2
646
637



' " 7 Function
Police . ' .
Stations
_Patrol Units
] Fire
Co ' ; Stations
o Fire trucks .
- Highways and Streets
' Streets (miles)
Streetlights
Traffic Signals
- - Sanitation and Refuse
Lo . ’ . Collection Trucks
b Culture and Recreation
Parks acreage
Parks

< ‘ ' ‘Baseball/Softball Diamonds

Athletic Flelds ,

“Swimming Pools
Tennis Courts
‘ - Community Centers
= ) . Theatres
’ Coliseums
" (as ' .
Miles of Service Lines
) , Number of Gate Stations
w - Water . -~ ! :
’ Miles of Water Lines
" Water Pumping Stations,
Wastewater '
‘ Miles of Sewer Lines
T N - Miles of Interceptors ..
- . Sewer Pumping Stations.

<
i

. Golf Courses (Driving RangefPar 3 Course):

‘ . CITY OF RiCHMOND VIRGINIA .o .-r
o » CAPITAL ASSETS STATISTICS BY FUNCTION )
- : Last Four Fiséal Years ‘

Flsca’l Year

143

[
=4
=3
]

|

20

" 1,867
32,856
450

N/A

2,801

141
18

1,736

1,200

12

1,500
42

2003 2004
7 7
133 132
20 - 20
46 46
1,867 1,867
32,977 33,063
453 T 456
'N/A CT .33
2,801 2,801
58 ) 58
54 .54
25, 25
1 1
10 9
141 141
"18 18
2 v 2
1 1
1,766 1,777
8 8
1200 - _1,2'00'

12 12

1,500 \ . 1,500 -

42 )

3 3 -

128

. 20
46’

1,865
33,184
460
38

2,801

“ 1,796
g -

. 1,200

13

1,500
47
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'-\Yolanda B'ooker CGF-M"‘ . ‘ Sonya—Howell ' (: o .Ernestine (Tina) Rollins
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‘ Marcellus Grooms | . ' 'Royce McCargo ) h LaVerne, Tyler” .
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" The. Department of Finance wishes to express its. apprecranon to all City of Richmond Departments
. component units of the City, and other related organrzatrons for their cooperation and assistance. We
extend a special thanks to the City’s General Services Department for prmtlng this. document :
~ Additional coples of this report may be v1ewed on the C1ty s website at www, rlchmondgov com or by
. wrltmg to:. ‘ ] . .
City.of Richmond, Department of Finance
900 E. Broad Street; 10® Floor
Richmond, Vlrglma 23219 |

‘ Cover photographs are courtesy of the Ofﬁce of the Press Secretary to the Mayor unless otherwme
-noted. Photos are 1dent1ﬂed from left to nght as follows : . Y

R ]

L Front Cover Photo of Clty HallT - L
- : Front ‘ ) ' ' '
Pollce on Horseback (photo couttesy of Polrce Department)
. Emergency Fire Drill’ - . oo
The Honorable Mayor L. Douglas Wilder (photo courtesy of: the- Ofﬁce of the Mayor)
River Search and Rescue. ‘
Hurncane Isabel Clean Up
Back Cover Photo of Clty Skyhne (photo courtesy of Robert Barrowchft II)
. Back ’ .
Departrnent of Public:-Works Light and Srgnage T
~ The Honorable Mayor L. Douglas Wilder - A
T " Youth Theatre
Policeman Disaster Drill Intem‘ew
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